


RIFAXIUBINE T E SRR

EEES ff hEss4 HEERPIRRY b
941 1 | RURBKEIZARR Y- ALFRISE 7 24K
942 2 | KWF E1—R1 > MEREHIAR
943 3 | KWF B2 -1 > MR
944 4 | RWLIIE E1—R1 > MERERIAR
945 5 | RWWIE B2 -1 > MR
946 6 |MIKEIR E1—R1 > MEREHINR
947 7 | BPKBIR Ea—mR1> MggER
948 8 |#aLll E1—R1> MER IR
949 9 |#faLll Ea—mR1> MggER
950 10 | K& E1—R1> MER IR
951 11 | K& Ea—mR1> MggER
952 12 | BRIL-885m% E1—R1> MER IR
953 13 | BRI-8Rom% B2 -1 > MR
954 14 |FRL E1—R1 > MEREH IR
955 15 |FRl B2 -1 > MR
956 16 | =f&El E1—R1 > MEREHINR
957 17 | =f&l B2 -1 > MR
958 18 |BLsH E1—R1 > MEREHIMR
959 19 |#tsH Ea—mR1> e
960 20 |7REE E1—RA> MEERERIAR
961 21 | 7REE Ea—mR1> e
962 22 |BREBRF E1—RA> MEERERHIAR
963 23 |BREBF Ea—mR1> MaER
964 24 |EE&EBF E1—RA> MEERERIAR
965 25 |E&EBF B2 -1 > MR
966 26 | BARAE - RIS ET E1—R1 > MEREH IR
967 27 | BARAE - RS ET B2 -1 > MR
968 28 |HEEBRE-NEOBF-ZLE E1—R1 > MEREK IR
969 29 | HEEBR-NEOBF-ZLE B2 -1 > MR
970 30 | X#t E1—R1 > MEREHIMR
971 31 | K#t B2 -1 > MR
972 32 | Hitha E1—RA> MEERERIAR
973 33 | B B2 -1 > MR




Ffs

EEES No hiE5s HEERPIRRY b
974 34 |EH E1—R1> MEREHIR
975 35 B B2 -1 > MR
976 36 | =HELL E1—R1 > MEREHIAR
977 37 | =Rl B2 -1 > MR
978 38 |- RiEith hifg - B X
979 39 | BEEhE FEENRAEER EHIRR
980 40 | Bz BEENRARER S
981 41 | BXI-8R5Rk FEykEE CER) Bl
982 42 | BPKBIR BEKE B
983 43 | MPKBIR BEKE L
984 44 | =iELl SHLELNA (ROR) SIRAFHR
985 45 | HbilEED ALLFRIsE 7 2 b e E th Z= A
986 46 | bt HhjEI
987 47 | gl SiR¥SBFEOHAZ
988 48 | Rl MR DS DBKE
989 49 | gl ERZIEOH%

990 50 |HbjERls Rt HERIEEDDED R
991 51 |HbjEls RS BB IR RO
992 52 |HbjERisEtb R IE ElH E D DB S
993 53 |t Eth HER AN SDOBKE
994 54 | B AEMERIERINE BIRFEOEWE
995 55 | B Ettb HENE
996 56 | BiifEEtb BRI OiEF YD
997 57 | BiifaEEttb [=ErILEA LR
998 58 | BfiifaEtb BFEPOELE
999 59 | B Eib HisosR
1000 | 60 |HiHEEEH REEIZR]
1001 | 61 |XKWELE AILFEL
1002 | 62 |XKWELE RILBRISEIZABRCONT
1003 | 63 |KWELE FaSTPEE
1004 | 64 |KWLZEILE RILFEEHILN DT T4
1005 | 65 |AWLEILE ILDFHEA
1006 | 66 |ALEILE HEEDFEDZEND
1007 | 67 |KWIZEILE RILDOMLEE
1008 | 68 |AWLEILE JE_ERAEIAREICONT




Ffs

EEES HESRAARY h&
No.
1009 | 69 |XKWEILE AELhEs - HF st
1010 | 70 |ARWLEFILE FRIRAEE 2 KUOF > FrIRY
1011 | 71 |RWLBEILE B LN P EIR
1012 | 72 | RKWIEILE —A—FEH (—KEESHORNBZHENIZHED. )
1013 | 73 |RKWEILE JEEE(CDOWT
1014 | 74 | RKWIEILE TESEOEE
1015 | 75 |RKWEILE RILDEWNIZE
1016 | 76 |KWIZEILE TEEILEICRAN2EHEY
1017 | 77 |KWF ESROEE
1018 | 78 |KUWF {EIRTAIREE DM
1019 | 79 |KWF BLOE
1020 | 80 |KWF =0k
1021 | 81 |KUWF e
1022 | 82 |AWF LSBT
1023 | 83 |KWSFF Bt
1024 | 84 |AWF ®3mEr
1025 | 85 |KWSF [ S8 EAHRBD AR LISF e,

BTSN EIRE T LR

1026 1 |BRXiES PoRFRiEE (FRE)
1027 2 | BIXRiEE [ESEEE. F=im. EXRE
1028 3 | BIEXREE B RROEE
1029 4 | mAFHIGERISRESS RATRIGMSES (HRE)
1030 5 | EFKEE B REEE (1)

1031 6 | IBEFIZALD IBEFIZALS (1)
1032 7 | IBEBHIZALD EHIBMECEE

1033 8 | BRASFHIGMES #HEE (EBF)

1034 | 9 |XH4E P -NEeSED

1035 | 10 |IHEFIZFAED IRFEFIZALS - #ET3
1036 | 11 |®REiF AEE (BE—i%)
1037 | 12 |BFAEXEE BEREEN

1038 | 13 |EFRKEE ZEIDTE

1039 | 14 |BBRXREE il

1040 | 15 |BEREXiEE [ESEEE. F=m. EXRE
1041 | 16 |EASFRIBTMRPESS HUEVTF




Ffs

EEES No. hEss4 HEERPIRRY b
1042 | 17 |ABESDTF BEA (ERiN) (&2 (EELE)
1043 | 18 |EABESF IMEED (EESEEA)
1044 | 19 |EABESF SEADONRAER, IRMHFES
1045 | 20 |EBESF 1R
1046 | 21 |EBESF EXE (BXH)
1047 | 22 |Xt#f= Bt (BI0) | BEEOTERR
1048 | 23 |REFE REE. KEBRE, TER%
1049 | 24 ||BEFIFARD EFIBEE P
1050 | 25 |BARFKEE B (fHtER)
1051 | 26 |IHEFIFARD RINEE - BFIREG
1052 | 27 |EASFRIBMERESS EMH L AER

- HE D5 [CAHDYT VAR SRR HEE R R

P
=

1053 1 |HREEIRAAROEESEMERE ] #im T | fEEET
()

1054 | 2 MEsE e

LSRG B AROESEEinEE |
1055 3 TBIERF

FRip T ] () (GRipiin)
1056 | 4 HEBUZLLIfRAt
1057 | 5 |HEZREE FEEE (JXOILyh)
1058 | 6 |HWERMEE EZYE (CILyh
1059 | 7 |HEZRAEE FE (CILyh)
1060 | 8 |WEZRAEE bt (Bgr-gE) (CILyh)
1061 | 9 |HEZRAEE BE (RS- LR) (CILyk)
1062 | 10 |HEREE K- &' (CILyh)
1063 | 11 |=AF MEERARE
1064 | 12 |=AF MEEIRT (N> ILyk)
1065 | 13 |=AF EFIERERFR
1066 | 14 |E=HxF #P9
1067 | 15 |ZkHF PV
1068 | 16 |FAF =M
1069 | 17 |E=EHxF g
1070 | 18 |KE&T MEEfB T (JX>ILyh)
1071 | 19 | XEk PNGE
1072 | 20 | KBk MEERAE
1073 | 21 | K&k RNIEFREFILE




Ffs

EEES No. hEss4 HEERPIRRY b
1074 | 22 | K&k rE
1075 | 23 | KB e
1076 | 24 |HiSttt L/NI Y DR 7L
1077 | 25 |HiBS#st /NI D
1078 | 26 |#iBE#tt SN INDIEES
1079 | 27 |HiBSttt MesgtiiE (JX>ILyh)
1080 | 28 | IIONRIZFREMAE-H LECSER E TEEES
1081 | 29 | IIONRIZFRSEMER - M LiC=ER PEALEE
1082 | 30 |HERMEE FRIGERRGR
1083 | 32 | IIONRIZFREEMER - M LiC=ER EMEEEAE
AEHAEEA BIRBXHGS
1084 1 | HEERREXZRE SR
1085 2 | |IBEEERZRE A0 (BARFERKRF)
1086 3 |IHEEEKRZRE AR (AUBETE%)
1087 4 ||IRERRAZE SZaRkE (BEUER)
1088 5 ||HEEREXZE BE (THesd KE8F)
1089 6 ||HEEREXZE BiE (HRE. B=i5)
1090 7 || BEEREXZE TEELRIEE
1091 8 ||IHEREXZE ZEHFERYIRY
1092 | 9 |IHEERREKZRE SaKE (8)-mhsEs)
1093 | 10 ||HEEREXZRE FIRPREBEF 15
1094 | 11 |[HEEREXZE SaKE (%)
1095 | 12 |[HEEREXZE EE
1096 | 13 |[HEEREXZE —RER
1097 | 14 |IBEERERZE TROBENIIU
1098 | 15 |IAEEREXZE BANDZRLER R IHHRAT
1099 | 16 |IAEEREXZE 1@
1100 | 17 |0 S8
1101 | 18 |&E0M (T OELIF(HHIFHADH)
1102 | 19 |E£EOMW FEsREE CEiEDOIT1E)
1103 | 20 |EEOMW XAEEE
1104 | 21 | &0 HIEER
1105 | 22 |EBFHRRE ShER
1106 | 23 |FILENI]ERK




Ffs

EEES No hEss4 HEERPIRRY b
1107 | 24 |RBLILEATERERR
1108 | 25 |ERBEENTERK
1109 | 26 |%iF&E
1110 | 27 |SHESEA
1111 | 28 |SEAFTHHAKRER
1112 | 29 |FI=ZEURESHER
1113 | 30 |CAUSRRES
1114 | 31 |[A&>55h
1115 | 32 |[AU-T4%

1116 | 33 |FE\K




RIBAXRIIBIRE A EEME RSP



941

No.1 Daisen-Oki National Park, Daisen-Oki National Park Story <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Daisen-Oki National Park

Daisen-Oki National Park, located in the San’in region of western Honshu, is a land of dramatic natural scenery and
rich biodiversity with deep underlying historical, cultural and spiritual roots. The park spans the three prefectures of
Tottori, Shimane and Okayama, and is divided into four areas: the Mt. Daisen and Hiruzen area, the Oki Islands area,

the Shimane Peninsula area and the Mt. Sanbe area.

The park’s remarkable geologic history dates back 26 million years, to the time when the Japanese archipelago first
separated from the Asian mainland. Subsequent periods of volcanic eruptions and lava flows, uplifting and subsidence,
sea level rise, erosion and deposition created a landscape of steep mountains, wide alluvial plains, coastlines and
offshore islands characterized by sheer cliffs, sea caves and deep inlets. Vegetation in much of the park is dominated
by natural forests and grasslands, and the region boasts a great diversity of trees, alpine wildflowers, and grasses. The
region provides an excellent habitat for a wide variety of insects, fish and birds. The sparkling creeks in the park and
its surrounding areas are inhabited by endangered Japanese giant salamanders, which reach lengths of up to a meter

and a half and are one of the largest amphibians in the world.

Daisen-Oki National Park area is the setting for the Izumo Cycle of Japan’s classic mythology, as related in the eighth-
century Kojiki and Nihonshoki texts, Japan’s oldest chronicles. In addition, a wealth of local stories, such as the famous
“Land-Pulling Myth,” have been preserved in the Izumo no Kuni Fudoki, completed in 733. This ancient text records the

political, cultural and spiritual life of people in the eatly eighth century.

Since at least the seventh or eighth century the park’s mountains have been a major center for Shugendo, a unique
Japanese spiritual tradition that combines elements of animism, Shinto beliefs and Buddhist precepts. Practitioners
spent long periods in the mountains, fasting, praying and enduring all sorts of hardships in order to enhance their
spiritual powers. The custom of going on mountain pilgrimages later spread to the common people. Hikers in the park
can walk the same historic trails and visit the same sacred spots today. The sacred status of the mountains down the

centuries has preserved the park’s forests and coastlines in pristine ecological condition.




Visitors to Daisen-Oki National Park have a wide range of destinations and activities to choose from. In the eastern
part of the park are Mt. Daisen, at 1729 m the highest peak in the region, Mt. Senjo and Mt. Mitoku, all sacred peaks
with historic hiking trails that pass through old-growth beech forests, ancient sacred groves surrounding small shrines
and temples. Hikers on Mt. Daisen can choose to participate in grassroots nature conservation and restoration projects.
In the winter, the mountain is covered in snow, providing excellent skiing and snowshoeing. The park’s mountain
destinations combine dynamic volcanic scenery and rich biodiversity with unique opportunities to delve deep into

Japan’s mythology, history and unique traditional nature-based spirituality.

The Izumo Taisha, or Izumo Grand Shrine, is located in the western part of the park. Enshrined here is Okuninushi,
the Shinto kami deity who ruled the San’in region. Near the shrine is a sandy beach where all of Japan’s Shinto deities
come ashore once every year in the autumn. Visitors during this season can witness the many ceremonies held in honor
of these deities for the month they stay in Izumo. A visit to the Izumo Grand Shrine is popular with Japanese people

looking for a spouse. Close to the shrine are Hinomisaki Shrine and Miho Shrine in their beautiful coastal settings.

The Shimane Peninsula and the offshore Oki Islands offer some of the most dramatic coastal scenery in all of Japan,
including the iconic Red Cliff and Kaka no Kukedo Sea Caves, and the impressive Matengai Cliff, one of the highest
in Japan. Tour boats take visitors along the shore and even into some of the larger sea caves, and sea kayaking and
snorkeling are also popular summer activities. The Oki Islands’ spectacular coastal rock formations and diverse geologic
strata have earned them designation as a UNESCO Global Geopark. These islands are home to the Oki salamander, a
rare species found here and nowhere else. The park’s coastal waters are famous for fishing and fish watching, and

Fumishima Island, off the western tip of the Shimane Peninsula, is home to a large colony of black-tailed gulls.

Located in the western end of the park, Mt. Sanbe is a dormant volcano covered by splendid wide grasslands. The area
is dotted with numerous therapeutic hot spring resorts. This mountain is intimately connected to the “Land-Pulling
Myth,” which tells of how the Shimane Peninsula was formed. There is an ancient forest miraculously preserved

underground, still standing just as it was when buried during the mountain’s last eruption some 4,000 years ago.

Adjacent to the park are Nakaumi and Shinjiko, large, shallow brackish lakes famous for clams and migratory waterfowl.
Both are registered as Ramsar Wetlands of International Importance. The historic castle town of Matsue is famous as
a center for Japan’s tea ceremony culture. Matsue Castle, a National Treasure, is one of only twelve castles in Japan that

retain their original keeps.
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No.2 View Point, Daisenji Temple <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>

iz PNITES
(BEFEHER]IVITHA N 7 D1 TIRE

TEDNOIREERR X

Daisenji Temple

Overview

Daisenji Temple, surrounded by dense natural forest, is one of the oldest known centers for mountain worship and
Buddhist religious practice in Japan. Since medieval times, pilgrims have flocked here to worship the bodhisattva Jizo,
the protector of travelers and children. In this region, Jizo also became viewed as a patron saint of livestock. Farmers
began bringing their cattle here to be blessed, which led to the area developing into a livestock market, at one point in
time the largest in all Japan. On clear days, this area offers majestic views of the north side of the mountain and the

Sea of Japan.
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No.3 View Point, Daisenji Temple <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

According to the Izumo no Kuni Fudoki (Record of Local Culture and Legends in Izumo), one of Japan’s oldest surviving
texts compiled in 733, Mt. Daisen was since ancient times considered to be a residence of the gods, where mountain
ascetics practiced austerities. In the eatly eighth century, the monk Kinren built a hall for the bodhisattva Jizo, founding
Daisenji Temple. The temple subsequently expanded into one of the largest Buddhist communities in western Japan.
In the twelfth century another famous monk, Kiko, began promoting Jizo as a special protector of cattle and horses.
Farmers started bringing their livestock to the temple to receive Jizo’s blessings, a practice that soon developed into
livestock trading as well. The Daisen market grew steadily, and by the late nineteenth century was expanded into the

three largest livestock markets in Japan. The market closed in 1937.

The streets leading up to Daisenji Temple evoke the atmosphere of traditional Japan. The 700 m—long stone-paved
sando, or main approach to the temple, is the longest path paved with natural stone in Japan. The approach is lined with
historic inns and sacred sites and ends at the Okunomiya or Mountain Sanctuary of Ogamiyama Shrine. This is the
largest structure in Japan built in the gongen style, with separate worship and main halls connected by a corridor. On
clear days, the view from the Bakuroza, the entrance of the area, encompasses the northern side of Mt. Daisen, the

Sea of Japan, the Shimane Peninsula, Yumigahama Peninsula, and the Oki Islands.

Activities

Visitors can bike down the winding roads of Mt. Daisen to the sea, enjoying the beech forest and magnificent views
of the Sea of Japan, or hike the ancient pilgrim trails through the beech forests of Mt. Daisen all the way to the peak,
passing sacred sites and centuries-old Jizo sculptutres on the way. Along the approach to Daisenji Temple there are
several hot spring inns. A healing soak in a hot spring is fine at any time of year, and winter activities that can be enjoyed

here include snowshoeing and skiing.
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No.4 View Point, Mt. Daisen < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Mt. Daisen

Overview

At 1729 m Mt. Daisen is the tallest mountain in the San’in Region. The summit offers a dramatic 360-degree panorama
of the Sea of Japan, the surrounding mountains, the Yumigahama Peninsula, and the Shimane Peninsula. The mountain
has been shrouded in myth and folklore since before the beginning of recorded history and is believed to be one of
the first mountains in Japan where Shinto kami deities reside. Today the mountain is a popular destination for hikers,
who are attracted by its rich traditional cultural and spiritual atmosphere as well as the beautiful scenery and unique

plants and wildlife found along the trails.
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No.5 View Point, Mt. Daisen < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Nature and History

Mt. Daisen first appears in the “Land-Pulling Myth” recorded in the eighth century Izumo no Kuni Fudok:. This story
relates a mythological interpretation of how the Shimane Peninsula was formed. The local kami deity believed his
kingdom was too narrow and cramped, and decided to expand it by pulling together various pieces of free land from
over the ocean. Mt. Daisen was used as a stake to anchor the new land on the east. The record also described Daisen
as one of the oldest mountains where Shinto kami deities reside. Today, Mt. Daisen is home to one of the largest beech
forests in western Japan, with many unique plants and insects named after the mountain. The lower half of the climbing
trail passes through this beech forest, but at 1300 m elevation the vegetation shifts to low-growing shrubs. Above 1600
m the trail passes over boardwalks surrounded by a unique forest of dwarf Japanese yew trees (Taxus cuspidate var. nana).
Climbers who reach the summit, at 1729 m the highest peak in the San’in region, are rewarded with a magnificent

panoramic view.

Conservation Activities

Since 1965, the number of hikers climbing Mt. Daisen has increased greatly. The increased foot traffic has led to
trampling of alpine plants and loss of vegetation around the summit. To help restore the mountain’s ecosystem,
volunteers participate in the “One Tree, One Stone” project, in which they bring designated tree saplings to plant

around the summit, and stones to help stabilize the heavily eroded slopes.
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No.6 View Point, Masumizu Highlands <KIIRER:, SHY- SR - FILE>
(hEEs 1HK SR

(BEFEEAR]IVITHA N 7 DA TIRE

TEhofc kBRI X
Masumizu Highlands

Overview

The Masumizu Highlands cover the western flank of Mt. Daisen. The view to the northwest takes in the Sea of Japan
and the entire Yumigahama Peninsula. The Highlands are home to a diversity of flowers and wildlife. Winter is the
time for skiing and other snow sports, but the lift runs year-round, and off-season visitors are treated to spectacular

panoramic views of Mt. Daisen and the surrounding countryside. Visits to local farms can also be arranged.
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No.7 View Point, Masumizu Highlands <KILREE;, SE- SR - FELE>
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Nature and History

The Masumizu Highlands are located on the western side of Mt. Daisen. From this side the shape of the mountain
resembles that of Mt. Fuji. For this reason, Mt. Daisen is also called Hoki Fuji—Hoki being the traditional name for
western Tottori Prefecture. The Highlands are known for their beautiful views of the sun setting into the Sea of Japan.
The region is also famous for its great variety of birds and insects. In particular, the Highlands boast a vast number of
butterflies attracted by the many wildflowers. In Japanese, masu is a measuring cup, and wizu means water. The name

“Masumizu” thus conjures up the image of an abundance of high-quality water throughout the year.

Activities

Visitors to the Masumizu Highlands can trek, ski, climb the highlands by snowshoe or lift, or partake in a variety of
other fun activities. The Yokotemichi, once a popular pilgrim route, leads through a highland beech forest. The path is
lined with images of the bodhisattva Jizo, protector of travelers and children. During clear weather, a ride up on the
lift affords breathtaking views that extend roughly 60 km out to sea, encompassing not only the Yumigahama and
Shimane Peninsulas, but the Oki Islands as well. In the winter, skiers can pause on the slopes to look out over the

Yonago cityscape and the Sea of Japan.
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No.8 View Point, Mt. Senjo <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Mt. Senjo

Overview

Mt. Senjo, 615 m in height, is situated east of Mt. Daisen and is home to a grassy plateau, steep cliffs, and a spectacular
waterfall. During medieval times, this mountain teemed with mountain ascetics. Mt. Senjo is also associated with a famous
fourteenth-century historical event that involved the imperial court and the Kamakura shogunate, which had been in

power since 1185.
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No.9 View Point, Mt. Senjo < KRR, SHY - SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

Mountain ascetics have been practicing Shugendo on Mt. Senjo since at least the eighth century. Shugendo is a unique
Japanese spiritual tradition that syncretizes elements from Shinto, Buddhism, and animism. Practitioners engage in
austerities such as fasting, seclusion, and meditation. Together with Mt. Mitoku and Mt. Daisen, Mt. Senjo was regarded
as one of the three sacred peaks of Shugendo practice in this region. In the fourteenth century, the mountain was the
stage for an epic battle. After being banished to the Oki islands by the then ruling Kamakura shogunate (1185-1333),
Emperor Go-Daigo (1288-1339) escaped to Mt. Senjo, where he raised an army and successfully defeated the
shogunate forces. In 1333 the shogunate was toppled, and direct imperial rule was established during the Kenmu
Restoration. This Restoration, however, was short-lived, with new military rulers, the Ashikaga shogunate, taking over
power in 1336. Military shogunates continued to rule Japan until the Meiji Restoration of 1868. The cliffs on the east
side of Mt. Senjo were formed one million years ago through a geological process called columnar jointing, Their shape
has been likened to traditional Japanese folding screens. The 100 m—high waterfall is a must-see. A cherry blossom
festival is held in late April at nearby Mt. Senjo Manbon Sakura Park, when the double-flowered cherry trees are in full

bloom. The mountain is also renowned for its spectacular autumn colors.

Activities

Hikers can enjoy the delicate new leaves in spring, and various shades of red, yellow, and orange as the deciduous trees
change color in autumn. The trailhead is located near the observation deck parking lot. Mt. Senjo Youth Center, located
at the base camp, offers lodging and assistance in figuring out how to best enjoy outdoor activities such as hiking,

nature watching, canoeing, and canyoning,
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No.10 View Point, Daisen Falls <KIUFRIE, BER - BAR - L8 >
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Daisen Falls and the Historic Daisen Trails

Overview

The historic Daisen Trails, sometimes referred to as the holy trails of Mt. Daisen, were built around 400 years ago for
pilgrims and as infrastructure for the livestock market. The trails include the Kawadoko Trail (Kawadoko Michi), Odaka
Trail (Odaka Michi), and Yokote Trail (Yokote Michi.) The Kawadoko Trail passes by Daisen Falls, which is one of

Japan’s 100 most impressive waterfalls.
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No.11 View Point, Daisen Falls <KIUFRIE, BER - BAR - L8 >
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Nature and History

Daisen Falls

In 1990 Daisen Falls was selected as one of Japan’s 100 most impressive waterfalls. The falls originally consisted of
three cascades, but a flood in the first half of the twentieth century reduced the number to two. A typhoon in 2011
damaged the falls again, creating their current form. The spray and thunderous roar of Daisen Falls are especially

impressive when viewed up close.

Kawadoko Trail

The Kawadoko Trail (Kawadoko Michi), along with the Odaka Trail (Odaka Michi) and the Yokote Trail (Yokote
Michi), is one of the old historic pilgrim routes at Mt. Daisen. The trails, laid out around 400 years ago, were also used
to bring livestock to the thriving markets that by then had developed on the mountain. The Kawadoko Trail passes
through Daisen’s extensive beech forests, connecting the central part of Tottori Prefecture and Daisenji Temple. The

stones paving the trail were added by local residents between the seventeenth and nineteenth centuries.

Activities

The Ikkoganaru campground is a convenient spot for accessing the Kawadoko Trail historic pilgrimage route, which
takes about four hours to hike. The distance from the campground to the Daisen Suspension Bridge is about 800 m,
and from there to Daisen Falls is another kilometer. The trail offers excellent bird watching and beautiful autumn

colors.
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No.12 View Point, Oku Daisen, Kagamiganaru <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Oku Daisen

Overview

Oku Daisen is a highland plateau on the southern side of Mt. Daisen, surrounded by beech forests. The area features
a network of hiking trails leading to three mountains, boasts some of the highest quality water in the region, and offers
excellent skiing opportunities in winter. This area is home to a rare high-elevation wetland habitat. One part of the
highlands, called Kagamiganaru, is covered by fields of Japanese silver grass (Miscanthus sinensis) that wave and shimmer
in the early autumn sun. On clear nights, the wide open plateau offers some of the most spectacular stargazing in the

region.
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No.13 View Point, Oku Daisen, Kagamiganaru <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

Oku Daisen is a highland plateau on the south side of Mt. Daisen, surrounded by beech forests. One section of the
plateau, known as Kagamiganaru, supports a rare example of a high-elevation wetland. This marsh, located at 920 m
elevation, is fed by water flowing down from Mt. Karasugasen (1448 m), Mt. Zoyama (1085 m), and Mt. Giboshi (1110
m). Alongside the marsh are grasslands that are home to a variety of wildflowers, including fields of Japanese silver
grass (Miscanthus sinensis), that in autumn turns the area into a shimmering silver sea. The water of Oku Daisen is
naturally filtered and purified as it seeps through the beech forests, and it serves as the region’s water supply. Since

1974, restoration projects have been carried out to revitalize the wetlands.

Activities
The high elevation and open aspect of the Oku Daisen area make it one of the best places to watch the stars at night.
Visitors can stroll and camp in dense natural forests at an elevation of 920 m or hike up Mt. Zoyama and Mt. Giboshi,

which take about 30 minutes to hike. In winter the slopes make for excellent skiing.
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No.14 View Point, Hiruzen < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Hiruzen Highlands

Overview

The Hiruzen Highlands is a resort area famous throughout western Japan. These extensive highlands are situated at
the base of three peaks, Mt. Kamihiruzen, Mt. Nakahiruzen, and Mt. Shimohiruzen. The area has cycling roads, hiking
trails, campsites, and facilities for winter activities. The Hiruzen Highlands are home to many rare species of flowers,

plants, and insects, as well as the largest Jersey cattle ranch in Japan.
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No.15 View Point, Hiruzen < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Nature and History

The Hiruzen Highlands is a plateau situated at 500—600 m above sea level. Jersey cows graze in pastures that look up
to the Three Hiruzen Peaks of Mt. Kamihiruzen, Mt. Nakahiruzen, and Mt. Shimohiruzen. A variety of wildflowers,
such as the dogtooth violet (Erythronium japonicum) and fringed galax (Schizocodon soldanelloides), grow along the climbing
trails. A traditional land management practice, called yamayaki, has been carried out every spring for many generations.
Yamayaki is a form of controlled burning that involves setting fire to the slopes of the mountains. This practice
encourages the growth of new grass for the livestock to graze on, and helps to maintain the grassland habitat that
supports the diverse insects and plants living in the area. Without the annual burn, the vegetation and environment

would change, and the unique wildlife found here now would gradually disappear.

The Hiruzen Highlands are the largest and most famous breeding ground for Jersey cows in Japan. In springtime,
visitors can view the mountains through a veil of yamayaki smoke, or watch the peaks pop up above a sea of clouds.
The Kimendai Observatory, along the border of Okayama and Tottori prefectures, offers a breathtaking panorama

extending from the Hiruzen Highlands to Mt. Daisen.

Activities

The Hiruzen Highlands offer superb hiking, camping, and cycling. There are several camping sites on these highlands,
including a permanent glamping site that features tents hanging between trees, and a camping site with a great view of
the grassland. The Hiruzen Highlands Cycling Course is about 30 km long, and hiking paths with extensive vistas lead

up to the surrounding peaks.
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No.16 View Point, Mt. Mitoku < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Mt. Mitoku

Overview

Mt. Mitoku is revered as one of the three sacred peaks of mountain asceticism in the Hoki region (present-day western
Tottori Prefecture). The mountain itself, approximately 900 m high, was considered to be the home of the gods, and
the entire area was considered sacred ground. This sacred status has assured that the natural environment here has
been well protected. At the base of the mountain is the Sanbutsuji Temple, founded in 706 for mountain ascetics
practicing on the mountain. From there a challenging trail, which is actually an ascetic road, leads to the Nageiredo, the
temple’s Mountain Sanctuary Hall and a National Treasure with a history going back more than 1,000 years. This small
wooden temple clings precariously underneath a shallow overhang on the face of a sheer cliff, and seems to be as much
a part of the rock as a manmade structure. The wonders of the Nageiredo Hall can be scrutinized through a telescope

near the temple.
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No.17 View Point, Mt. Mitoku < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Nature and History

Mt. Mitoku, at 889.7 m in height, is renowned for its pristine natural forests and long history of mountain worship.
Sanbutsuji Temple, at the base of the mountain, was founded in 706 as a hall for mountain ascetics. Even today,
worshippers still climb Mt. Mitoku’s steep rock faces and pray at the temple to purify their six Buddhist senses (sight,

smell, hearing, taste, touch, and mind).

The temple’s Mountain Sanctuary, called the Nageiredo, was constructed over 1,000 years ago, and is designated a
National Treasure. This small wooden temple, surrounded by native broad-leaved forests, clings almost magically to
the sheer rocky cliff. Domon Ken (1909-1990), an accomplished photographer famous for his portrayals of temples,
praised the Nageiredo as the finest architecture in the country. The name Nageiredo means something like “Throw In
Hall”” According to local legend, the hall was built by En no Gyoja (634—701), the founder of Japanese mountain
asceticism. According to legend, En no Gyoja built a hall at the base of the mountain, and then through his spiritual
powers made it very small with his power and hutled it at the cliff. When the hall struck the rock, it became the

Nageiredo as we know it today.

Due to their sacred status, the forests of Mt. Mitoku have not been logged, and thus remain in a pristine natural state.
A wide variety of birds, such as the golden eagle (Aguila chrysaetos), the Oriental dollarbird (Eurystomus orientalis), and

the ruddy kingtisher (Halcyon coromanda), are encountered along the mountain paths.

Activities

Visitors to Sanbutsuji Temple can experience firsthand traditional Buddhist practices such as zuzen meditation and sutra
copying. The trail from the main temple to the Nageiredo Hall is precarious in some sections, and sturdy hiking boots
are advised. This access path requires an entrance fee and is closed in winter. A variety of other walking trails are found
in the area, including the Misasa Onsen Course, the Oshika Valley Course, and the Tawara Highlands Course. Hikers
can relax at the nearby Misasa Onsen hot springs, which along with Mt. Mitoku has been designated a Japan Heritage
site. The mineral waters here have some of the world’s highest concentrations of radon, a weak radioactive substance

thought to improve the body’s immune system.
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No.18 View Point, Jodogaura Coast <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Jodogaura Coast

Overview

Jodogaura is a rugged coastline running about a kilometer down the eastern shore of Dogo Island (Okinoshima Town),
the largest of the Oki Islands. Dotted with pine-topped islets, the area was named after Jodo, the Buddhist paradise,
for its spectacular natural scenery. Jodogaura is interesting geologically for its readily visible strata of rock layers created
by volcanic activity 26 million years ago, as well as those formed by lake sediments. Visitors can enjoy strolling along

the coast, watching birds, snorkeling, and kayaking,
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No.19 View Point, Jodogaura Coast <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

On the eroded coastline of Jodogaura, visitors can observe geological layers dating to 26 million years ago, when the
Sea of Japan was still a land-locked lake. Legend has it that when the Zen monk Ikkyu (1394—1481) visited, he was so
impressed by its extraordinary scenery and crystal-clear water that he named the area “Jodo,” after the western paradise
in Pure Land Buddhism, hence the name Jodogaura. Various bird species such as peregrine falcons (Faleo peregrinus),
ospreys (Pandion haliaetus), and the Pacific swift (Apus Pacificns) can be seen on the rocky beach, cliffs, pine-covered islets,

and rock formations.

Activities
Jodogaura has several walking trails offering picturesque views of the sea and islets along the coast. As a well-protected
marine park, the area is also perfect for snorkeling and sea kayaking. There is a campsite with showers and toilets near

the coast.
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No.20 View Point, Red Cliff <KL, SEX- BAR - fE L8>
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Red CIiff

Overview

The Red Cliff (Sekiheki) of Chiburijima Island is one of the most spectacular coastlines in the Oki Islands. The cliff
was formed by volcanic activity. Visitors can enjoy spectacular vistas from atop the cliff or change perspective by
boarding a sightseeing boat. The red-streaked cliff juxtaposed against the brilliant blue of the sea is particularly

impressive.
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No.21 View Point, Red Cliff <K, SE- B4R - fE L8>
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Nature and History

Standing between 50 and 200 m high, the Red Cliff (Sekiheki) stretches for approximately 1 km along the western coast
of Chiburijima Island, the southernmost of the Oki Islands. Geologically speaking, the cliff is a cross-section view of
a former volcano. The red color is thought to result from oxidation of iron contained in the lava, and the striped
pattern is due to repeated eruptions. The dramatic Red Cliff is one of the most impressive coastal landscapes in the

Oki Islands, and is the defining feature of the landscape of Chiburijima Island.

Activities
There are two ways to enjoy the Red Cliff and Chiburijima Island’s dramatic coastline. One is from the observation
point located on top of the cliff, which overlooks wide sections of the coast and ocean. The other is close up from sea

level, aboard one of the one-hour boat cruises that run from April through October.
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No.22 View Point, Akiya Coast <KILIEE;, SEY- SR - FELE>
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Akiya Coast

Overview

The imposing red cliffs formed through high-temperature oxidation of iron in volcanic lava millions of years ago, the
clear water, diverse vegetation, and numerous interesting rock formations and islets, make the Akiya Coast one of the
most memorable spots in the Oki Islands. Visitors to this shore can enjoy a wealth of marine activities, including

swimming, snorkeling and fishing, or take a romantic stroll out to the “Heart Rock” with someone dear to them.
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No.23 View Point, Akiya Coast <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

Located in the northeast of Nakanoshima Island, the Akiya Coast boasts steep, red cliffs that create a beautiful contrast
with the cobalt blue seawater. There are numerous islets and rock formations along the shore. Volcanic activity from
around 2.8 million years ago created these dazzling red cliffs, which are composed of scoria, a porous volcanic rock,
and other volcanic materials. The large rock with a heart-shaped hole located by the coast is a popular destination for

couples. A nearby campsite allows visitors to watch leisurely as the ferries and hydrofoil cruise by.

Activities
The Akiya Coast offers a diverse menu of marine activities, such as swimming, snorkeling, diving, and fishing. There
is a short, five-minute trail along the coast that offers a romantic stroll out to the rock with a heart-shaped hole. There

is a campsite by the beach equipped with toilets and showers.
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No.24 View Point, Kuniga Coast <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Kuniga Coast

Overview

The Kuniga Coast ranks among the most spectacular landscapes to visit on the Oki Islands. The coast includes the
towering Matengai Cliff, one of the highest sea cliffs in Japan, on top of which cattle and horses graze. The unique
Tsutenkyo Arch is a natural rock formation carved over time by the relentless power of the wind and waves. Visitors

can either walk the coast or board a sightseeing boat to take in both these magnificent coastal landscapes.
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No.25 View Point, Kuniga Coast <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

The Kuniga Coast stretches along the western side of Nishinoshima Island. Its high, sea-eroded cliffs and fascinating
rock formations make it one of the most beautiful places to visit in the Oki Islands. This captivating landscape includes
Tsutenkyo Arch, a sea arch colored with red, white, and gray rocks that contrast sharply with the clear aquamarine sea,
as well as the impressive Matengai Cliff, which towers to a height of 257 m. Cattle and horses are grazing peacefully
on top of the cliffs, creating a unique seaside pastoral landscape. The best ways to leisurely enjoy the views of Matengai
Cliff and Tsutenkyo Arch are either to go to the top by bus or car and hike the short 2.3 km trail all the way down

from the top, which takes about one hour and a half, or board a sightseeing boat for a two-hour cruise.

Activities
Visitors can board a sightseeing boat that cruises along the imposing coastline or hike a trail that passes through pastures
grazed by cattle and wild horses. For the adventurous traveler and marine sports enthusiasts, the area offers excellent

sea kayaking, snorkeling, and diving,

AR DIRER (HAEEER)

BARERESE

E&EBFG. B/ BEORAICENIOTVET, BORRINL. BULEPHEIKEVEAEBNIHDH. RILESD
FRTREEVVSFRD 1 DTY . CCOMBRAIBERO((E, BRIBEVSENRNRTR, B, [IREBOE TSN
B 257MOBE(CEVRDEXREN DD, BALTITRI)>OBERBRMBERLTVWET .. BEBFOED L
Tld FOBENEACHIEN . IR BRSRL RO TVET . BEREPBRIEORERZ2OAUDERELE—EEL)
FEE NRFEETLEEFTITE, ENMSTET 2.3 FO0EVEZ 1 BFREIMNIT/ AF20932ETY, Fzld 2
RO ERR(CERDIETT

7I74ET4
BOLEIY 1y BRI ERCRDD . FOHEOEIIREN N E 2 E 38 %) \(+2733
ZENTEET, BRIFERITITE LV OR-YBIFR(E, S—hvv). 21)-T)b F1ESTREERRETT .

ARFELURIDREERF
2L




966

No.26 View Point, Gohonmatsu Park, Jizozaki <KIUFRIE, BER - BAR - L8 >

(fEE & ] AN E - R it
(BEFEHEAR]IVITHA N 7 D1 TIRE

TEhofc kBRI X
Mihonoseki

Overview

Mihonoseki is a scenic port town located on the eastern end of the Shimane Peninsula. This town is home to a beautiful
bay with deeply indented coastlines, historic streets lined with nineteenth-century buildings, a lighthouse offering
magnificent views of Mt. Daisen and the sea, and Miho Shrine, which enshrines the god of fishermen and prosperity.

Mihonoseki is a great spot to take a short stroll through the San’in Region’s fascinating history and spiritual culture.
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No.27 View Point, Gohonmatsu Park, Jizozaki <KIUFRIE, BER - BAR - L8 >
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Nature and History

Located on the eastern tip of the Shimane Peninsula, the enchanting historical harbor town of Mihonoseki features an
impressive cape and numerous coastal inlets. These inlets form what is called a “rias coast” and can be enjoyed from
either an observation deck or a sightseeing boat. The town itself once flourished as a port for large trading ships called

kitamaebune that distributed goods along the coasts of Japan and the Asian continent.

Mihonoseki is home to Miho Shrine, headquarters for the approximately 3,400 shrines across Japan that enshrine Ebisu,
the god of prosperity and fisheries. Residents of the town have performed rituals for Ebisu at the shrine and along this
magnificent coast for centuries. Historic Aoishidatami Street, located not far from Miho Shrine, is paved with green
stones from the Mihonoseki coast and boasts a number of nineteenth-century inns and houses. A walking path leads
to an impressive lighthouse and observation deck at the tip of nearby Cape Jizozaki. Though visitors cannot climb to
the top of the lighthouse, the cape still offers an extensive vista of the Sea of Japan and Mt. Daisen, with the Oki
Islands floating off in the distance. Mihonoseki Lighthouse was constructed in 1898 and stands about 90 m above sea
level. The seaside restaurant next door once served as the lighthouse keeper’s home and provides visitors with an

opportunity to enjoy local cuisine along with a spectacular view.

Activities

Visitors to Mihonoseki can choose scenic cruises along the shoreline, try their hand at the traditional method of
catching #bino (Japanese flying fish), or participate in numerous marine activities. According to legend, Ebisu, the god
of fishermen and prosperity, once fished in this area. Travelers are welcome to attend the daily morning rituals held
yeat-round at Miho Shrine, which features a serene and graceful performance called the “Maiden Dance.” The one-
hour hike through the forest from Gohonmatsu Park to Cape Jizozaki provides stunning views of the Shimane

Peninsula regardless of the season. From late spring through early May, visitors to Gohonmatsu Park can also enjoy

more than 5,000 azalea (Rbododendron) shrubs in full bloom.
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No.28 View Point, Kaka and Nearby Coastal Areas <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Kaka and Nearby Coastal Areas

Overview

Located on the eastern side of Shimane Peninsula, Kaka and the surrounding coastal areas feature stunning landscapes
that were shaped by long cycles of underwater volcanic activity and coastal erosion. The area boasts a deep connection
to the ancient myths and history of Japan. The Kaka no Kukedo sea caves, for example, were believed to have been
crafted by the gods. Also nearby are the mystical Seven Caves of Tako (Tako no Nanatsuana). Visitors can spend time
in the town of Kaka and on Katsurashima Island, areas with a long history as trading ports harboring large wooden
trading ships, known as &zfamaebune, which sailed up and down the coast of the Sea of Japan during the Edo period

(1603—1867).
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No.29 View Point, Kaka and Nearby Coastal Area <KILRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

Kaka and its environs are home to numerous islands and sea caves that can be reached only by boat, including Kaka
no Kukedo. This famous sea cave is split into two areas, New Kukedo and Old Kukedo. New Kukedo has three
entrances, and the cave itself is huge, measuring 40 m high and 200 m in length. If the weather is not too rough,
sightseeing boats can sometimes go right into the cave, offering passengers a spectacular view of the interior. This cave
is featured in an episode from Izumo no Kuni Fudoks, an eighth-century chronicle. The story goes that the mother of
Sada Okami, one of the gods of Izumo, was about to give birth in this cave, but it was terribly dark. She used her
golden bow to bore light holes in the cave, and not long after gave birth to Sada Okami. Old Kukedo is a smaller cave
about 5 m wide and is said to be the site of the Sai no Kawara, an underworld riverbed whete the souls of children
who died in miscarriages or at a very young age become stranded. The coast of Kaka includes many spectacular rocky
coastal sites, including Katsurashima Island, a lava dome formed 15 million years ago by underwater volcanic activity,
and the Seven Caves of Tako (Tako no Nanatsuana), a series of caves formed by the constant crashing of waves against
50 m-—tall sea cliffs. The town of Kaka itself was an important port town for large wooden trading ships, called

kitamaebune, that distributed goods all along the coast of the Sea of Japan in feudal times.

Activities

Weather permitting, visitors to Kaka can take a cruise boat that visits the mystical sea caves of Kaka (KKaka no Kukedo).
The cruise takes about one hour. There is also a tour of the Seven Caves of Tako (Tako no Nanatsuana). Sea kayaking,
swimming, and fishing are available along the coast, while those who prefer dry land can go for a stroll through the
historic harbor town of Kaka or for a 30-minute trek on Katsurashima Island. There is a campsite on this island,

located right by the beach.
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No.30 View Point, Oyashiro <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Izumo Oyashiro (Izumo Grand Shrine)

Overview

Izumo Opyashiro, or Izumo Grand Shrine, is one of the most important shrines in Japan, described in Japan’s oldest
existing historical chronicles. The shrine figures centrally in stories of the creation of the Japanese nation. The shrine
buildings are excellent examples of Japan’s oldest Shinto architecture, and its natural setting is home to a variety of
unique birds, plants, and trees. Izumo Oyashiro offers visitors an opportunity to enjoy not only history, architecture,

and spiritual culture, but nature abundance as well.
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No.31 View Point, Oyashiro <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

Izumo Oyashiro (Izumo Grand Shrine) is one of the oldest Shinto shrines, appearing in both the Kgjiki (Record of
Ancient Matters) and the Nibon shoki (Chronicle of Japan), the oldest existing chronicles of Japan dating back to the
eighth century. According to the mythology, a host of deities built Izumo Grand Shrine as a residence for the god
Okuninushi. Today Okuninushi is worshipped as a god of matchmaking, and many believers come to the shrine to
pray for his blessing in matters of love, marriage, and relationships. The shrine’s current main hall dates back to the
eighteenth century. Today the hall stands 24 m above the ground, but recent archeological evidence indicates that in
the past it may have towered twice as high. Located in a rich lush natural setting, the area around the shrine grounds is
home to more than 2,000 trees and provides habitat for 90 species of birds and an array of wildflowers. Each year
during the tenth month of the traditional lunar calendar, Izumo Grand Shrine hosts the annual Kamiarizuki, in which

all the deities in Japan leave their home shrines to gather at this location for a conference.

Activities
Visitors can join a regularly scheduled 90-minute guided tour of the shrine grounds or try to spot birds and wildflowers
in the surrounding forests. Stores and restaurants line the approach to the main gate to the shrine. Here guests can find

souvenirs and sample local specialties like Izumo soba noodles and zenzai sweet bean soup.
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No.32 View Point, Hinomisaki < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Hinomisaki

Overview

Cape Hinomisaki is at the western tip of the Shimane Peninsula. The area is home to numerous natural and historical
attractions, including sacred islands, Japan’s tallest stone lighthouse, and a vividly painted shrine. Revered since ancient
times, Hinomisaki’s islands are the site of an annual sunset ritual. The sacred islands are off-limits to the public, but
visitors still flock to the Hinomisaki shoreline to enjoy the unique view of the sunset illuminating the columnar jointing
rock formations. The brilliant vermillion Hinomisaki Shrine is believed to protect Japan at night, while Ise Jingu, the
most important shrine in Japan, acts as the country’s guardian during the day. In addition to strolling through the many
important religious and historical sites, visitors to the coastal area around Cape Hinomisaki can choose from a diverse

menu of popular marine sports that includes kayaking, snorkeling, and scuba diving.
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No.33 View Point, Hinomisaki <KLLBE, SEY - SR - [FE L8 >
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Nature and History

Cape Hinomisaki is home to the tallest stonemasonry lighthouse in Japan. Built over a century ago, this white tower
rises approximately 44 m, and visitors willing to climb to the top can enjoy magnificent views of the coastline. The
coast near Hinomisaki is unique, with clusters of hexagonal rocks formed by columnar jointing, closely spaced,
intersecting fractures in the rock that form as volcanic lava flows cool and contract. The jagged coastline and inlets
make access difficult, so the area’s unique ecosystems remain largely untouched. Fumishima Island, for example, serves
as an important breeding ground for black-tailed gulls (Larus crassirostris). The birds arrive in late November and early
December and remain on the island until mid-July. Fumishima Island has long been considered an important sacred
site and has been considered off-limits to humans since ancient times.

Hinomisaki Shrine, with its brilliant vermillion paint, is dedicated to Amaterasu. The sunset, in particular, has long been
revered here. One of the buildings on the shrine grounds—the one where Amaterasu is enshrined—is considered to
represent the setting sun. The mzyuki ritual, an annual celebration of the sunset, is held here to this day, offering
spectators to the coast an opportunity to witness Japan’s unique nature spirituality while enjoying a stunning view of

the sun as it sinks into the Sea of Japan.

Activities

Visitors can work up an appetite by swimming, kayaking, snorkeling, and diving along the coast of Hinomisaki.
Afterward they can enjoy the delicious seafood bowls offered by local restaurants. Other activities include climbing the
lighthouse, visiting Hinomisaki Shrine, and strolling along the shore to enjoy spectacular views of Fumishima Island

and the sea cliffs with their unique columnar joints. These coastal views are especially spectacular at sunset.
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No.34 View Point, Sagiura <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Sagiura

Overview

The harbor town of Sagiura, just east of Hinomisaki, flourished as a copper mining town, and as an important stop
for large wooden trading ships, called &#tamaebune, that sailed up and down the Sea of Japan during the Edo period
(1603-1867). Today, traces of the town’s former affluence remain in its atmospheric streets and merchant lodges where
sailors and traders once stayed while their ships were in port. Visitors are sure to enjoy a stroll through this historic
town with its red-tiled roofs. With numerous caves, islets, and fascinating rock formations nearby, a boat ride along the

shore is also a fun excursion.
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No.35 View Point (explanation), Sagiura <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

Facing the mountains north of Izumo Oyashiro (Izumo Grand Shrine), Sagiura is home to Inasehagi Shrine, an auxiliary
shrine of the Izumo Grand Shrine, constructed in the same ancient architectural style. The Izumo Grand Shrine is
petiodically rebuilt, and the old wood is then used to refurbish Inasehagi Shrine. The deity enshrined here is Inasehagi.
According to Japan’s oldest chronicles, when the goddess Amaterasu’s messengers were trying to convince the god
Okuninushi to pass control of the land to her descendants in a peaceful manner, Inasehagi ran to Miho Shrine to confer
with Okuninushi’s son, Kotoshironushi. As a result of his efforts, the father and son agreed to transfer control, and

bloodshed was avoided.

Visitors can follow a path leading to a cemetery near the large tunnel of Sagiura that affords a view of the town with
its red sekishu tiled roofs. These strong tiles, characteristic of architecture in central Shimane, invoke the prosperity of
a time when trade flourished along the Sea of Japan. There are still inns in town that look much the same as they did
in the Edo period (1603-1867), when sailors and merchants stayed here while their trading ships were anchored at
Sagiura port. The coast itself is home to captivating caves, islets, and rock formations. Visitors are encouraged to get
on a boat to see the coastal scenery up close, especially if the weather is nice and the boat can enter the Mikazuki Bay
Cave (Mikazuki-wan-do). Light filters through a hole in the top of the cave, which is shaped like a crescent moon

(mikazukid), turning the water a brilliant emerald hue and creating a truly unforgettable scene.

Activities

Visitors can stroll through the streets of Sagiura to experience the atmosphere of times gone by and enjoy a cup of
tea in one of the historic inns that once served sailors. Hiking routes, which take about two hours one way, lead from
the town down to the coast, opening up an opportunity to explore the sea cave. Boats are a good way to tour the

various islets and coastal grottos. Sagiura offers some of the best fishing spots in the region.
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No.36 View Point, Mt. Sanbe <K, SE- B4R - fE L8>
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Mt. Sanbe

Overview

Standing at the center of Shimane Prefecture, with its peak soaring 1126 m above sea level, Mt. Sanbe is an impressive
freestanding mountain with abundant nature and scenic hiking trails. The mountain is mentioned in the eighth century
Izumo no Kuni Fudoki chronicle. Its slopes feature a rare combination of grassland and beech forest habitat. Mt. Sanbe
is still one of the few active volcanoes in the Chugoku region, feeding several excellent hot springs at the foot of the

mountain and in the surrounding area.
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No.37 View Point, Mt. Sanbe < KLLBEI, SEY- SR - L8 >
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Nature and History

One of only two active volcanoes in the Chugoku region, Mt. Sanbe last erupted about 4,000 years ago. Several peaks
surround the basin, and the volcano is the source of many excellent volcanic hot springs, including the popular Sanbe
Onsen. Mt. Sanbe features in ancient Japanese mythology. The eighth-century Izumo no Kuni Fudoki describes a “Land-
Pulling Myth” in which a native god who believed his kingdom to be too small used Mt. Sanbe and Mt. Daisen as stakes

to anchor some extra pieces of land he pulled in from offshore.

The grasslands of Mt. Sanbe are maintained by an annual burning, called Ai-ire, that encourages the sprouting of new
grass. Mt. Sanbe’s landscapes change dramatically with the seasons, making the mountain an interesting place to visit
throughout the year. Visitors especially enjoy the thousands of rabbit-ear irises (I7is laevigata) that bloom at Himenogaike
Pond at the northern foot of Mt. Sanbe in early summer. At the Sanbe Azukihara Buried Forest Park is a miraculously
preserved ancient forest, still standing, frozen in time at the moment it was buried underground during Mt. Sanbe’s last

eruption over 4,000 years ago.

Activities

A variety of trails on Mt. Sanbe provide hiking options for hikers of every level, from beginners to advanced mountain
climbers. Snowshoeing is a popular activity on the lower slopes in winter. The north side of the mountain features
campgrounds and picnic sites with great views of the peak, as well as the Shimane Nature Museum of Mt. Sanbe,
where visitors can learn more about the region’s wildlife and ecology. On the south side is Sanbe Onsen, a hot spring
that boasts one of the highest outputs of gushing water in western Japan. Restaurants serve up local specialties such
as Sanbe soba noodles and Sanbe beef, which diners can savor while enjoying a view of Mt. Sanbe on the west side.
Vineyards spreading across the landscape on the east side offer yet another unique vista. Here visitors can stock up on
locally produced wines, then ride a lift that whisks them up the mountain for a breathtaking panorama of the
surrounding area. Adventurous travelers can challenge themselves with river kayaking and shower climbing, which

involves clambering up waterfalls and mountain streams.
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No.38 Lake Nakaumi and Lake Shinji <KIRER, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Lake Nakaumi and Lake Shinji

Nature and History

Lake Nakaumi, the fifth largest lake in Japan, straddles the boundary between eastern Shimane Prefecture and western
Tottori Prefecture. Both Lake Nakaumi and adjacent Lake Shinji connect to the Sea of Japan by means of the Sakai
Channel. Although both lakes are brackish, the salinity of the water, and subsequently the resident wildlife species,

differs in each.

Around 200 species of birds have been recorded at Lake Nakaumi and Lake Shinji. Visitors can observe up to half of
these, including many rare species, at the Yonago Waterbird Sanctuary. Lake Nakaumi and Lake Shinji serve as one of
Japan’s largest wintering grounds for waterfowl, including the Asian subspecies of tundra swan (Cygnus columbianus).

The two lakes are registered as a Ramsar Wetland of International Importance.

Activities
Visitors can cruise across Lake Nakaumi aboard a boat, go for a ride in a seaplane, or try bird watching at Yonago

Waterbird Sanctuary. The sanctuary is particularly enjoyable in winter when the tundra swans arrive.
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No.39 Kagikake Toge Pass <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Kagikake Toge Pass

Overview

Kagikake Toge Pass crosses a southern spur of Mt. Daisen. The pass provides a superb view of the mountain’s south
face, which many believe to be its most spectacular vista. From this vantage point, visitors can take in Daisen’s extensive
beech forest, one of the largest in western Japan, and above that the long rocky slopes leading to the summit. The

landscape changes from new green foliage in spring and summer to colorful leaves in autumn.
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No.40 Kagikake Toge Pass <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature and History

Located about 900 m above sea level, Kagikake Toge Pass offers impressive views of Mt. Daisen’s southern flank. The
view overlooks the mountain’s vast beech forest, and the contrast between the rocky surfaces and the foliage on the
central and lower slopes is especially beautiful. The andesite rock that is typical of lava dome volcanoes like Mt. Daisen
cracks quite easily, creating features like the long rock wall between the mountain’s north and south flanks. These

features accentuate the mountain’s beauty, especially in the colorful autumn season.

The Daisen Parkway runs through Kagikake Toge Pass, offering great views of one of western Japan's largest beech
forests. When autumn arrives, the beech and other deciduous trees turn rich shades of gold and red, contrasting sharply

with the mountain’s rocky summit covered in freshly fallen snow.

Activities
Just a 5-minute drive from Kagikake Toge Pass is the tranquility of the Kidanizawa mountain stream. Visitors can stroll
through a peaceful forest serenaded by the gurgle of running water and the songs of local birds. In winter, the

surrounding area is a popular ski and snowshoeing destination.
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No.41 Kagamiganaru Marshlands, Oku Daisen, Kagamiganaru <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Nature of Kagamiganaru Marshlands

At 920 m above sea level, the Kagamiganaru Marshlands are a rare example of a mountain wetland. Water and melting
snow collect in the flat area between Mt. Karasugasen (1448 m), Mt. Zoyama (1085 m), and Mt. Giboshi (1110 m),
creating this unusual wetland ecosystem. Human activity, including the use of the land for the grazing of military
horses, had dramatically decreased the natural wetlands over time. In recent years, however, researchers, volunteers, and
various organizations have been actively restoring this important ecological resource. As a result, native wetland flowers
like false hellebore (Veratrum oxysepalum), Japanese itis (Iris ensata var. spontanea), kiseruazami thistle (Cirsium sieboldiz),
sawahiyodori (Eupatorium lindleyanum), and hangonso ragwort (Senecio cannabifolins) have increased in number, and even
rarer plants like yanagitanpopo hawkweed (Hieracinm umbellatum) can now be seen growing in the Kagamiganaru

Marshlands.
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No.42 Masumizu Highlands, Masumizu Highlands <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
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Masumizu Highlands

Masumizu Highlands

The meadows of the Masumizu Highlands are stunning natural scenery, and are home to diverse species of plants,
butterflies, and birds. The view from here encompasses the western face of Mt. Daisen, which bears a strong
resemblance to Mt. Fuji, Japan’s most famous and symbolic peak. Because of this, Mt. Daisen is sometimes called Hoki
Fuji or Izumo Fuji, “Hoki” being the former name for western Tottori Prefecture. The lower areas look out on the
coast along the Sea of Japan, including the Yumigahama Peninsula, Sakaiminato Port, and the Oki Islands. Watching

the sun setting into the Sea of Japan at dusk is a truly special experience.

The Meaning of “Masumizu”
The name “Masumizu” is believed to carry the meaning of “an abundance of crystal clear water,” and refers to the
high-quality spring water that abounds in these highlands. These springs are said to never dry up, and for centuries,

farmers and travelers have stopped here to quench their thirst.
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No.43 Masumizu Highlands <KIIRER:, SHY- SR - FILE>
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Masumizu Highlands

Mt. Daisen

Mt. Daisen, at an elevation of 1729 m, is the highest mountain in the Chugoku Region of western Honshu. Renowned
for its spectacular volcanic landscapes, the mountain and its surroundings were designated a national park in February
of 1936. Mt. Daisen was once an active volcano, and its current form was shaped by volcanic activity between one
million and twenty thousand years ago. The northeastern side of the mountain contains its oldest features, including
the caldera wall on Mt. Senjo Peak. Later periods of volcanic activity produced lava domes like Misen Peak. In between
these geological periods, volcanic activity and the passage of time gave rise to other important landscape features,
including the Masumizu Highlands and Kagamiganaru at the foot of the mountain, as well as the rugged scenery on
the steep slopes around the highest peaks. Viewed from the west, Mt. Daisen’s outline resembles the smooth,
symmetrical lines of Mt. Fuji, Japan’s highest peak, giving rise to the alternate names Hoki (an old name for this region)

Fuiji, or Izumo Fuji. When viewed from the north or south, however, the mountain’s outline is rocky and uneven.

Mt. Daisen’s Ecosystems

The central slopes of Mt. Daisen are home to one of western Japan’s largest beech forests, while the high slopes around
the summit support unique colonies of dwarf Japanese yew trees (Taxus cuspidate var. nana). The mountain is habitat for
many species of birds and insects, as well as rare alpine plants like the Daisen ashibososuge sedge (Carex scita var.
parvisqguama) that grows only on Mt. Daisen. There are many species of flowers and butterflies during the spring,

summer, and autumn seasons at the Masumizu Highlands, at an elevation of 700-800 m.
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No.44 Mt. Sanbe’s Grasslands, Mt. Sanbe <KIUFRIE, BER - BAR - L8 >
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Mt. Sanbe

Mt. Sanbe is part of the Daisen-Oki National Park because of the sustainably managed grasslands covering the foot
of the mountain, which supports a diverse ecosystem. The local farmers have since long ago used these grasslands as
pastures for cattle grazing, A process of controlled burning called hi-ire encourages growth of new grass and also

maintains the environment and provides habitat for a rich diversity of plants and animals.

Mountain Grasslands
When Mt. Sanbe was incorporated into Daisen-Oki National Park in 1963, the mountain was almost completely
covered with grasslands used to pasture cows and horses. Managed grasslands like these support a unique ecosystem

and biodiversity. This habitat has become rare in Japan, but is being preserved at Mt. Sanbe.

Benefits of Mt. Sanbe’s Grasslands

As an environment shaped through human interaction with nature, the grasslands of Mt. Sanbe provide a wealth of
essential ecosystem benefits. The grasslands store water, and supply food for livestock, organic compost for crops and
raw material for traditional thatched roofs. They serve as vital habitat for threatened species of plants, like yusuge daylilies
(Hemerocallis citrina var. vespertina) and pasque flower (Pulsatilla cernua), as well as insects like the horned dung beetle (Copris

ochus).

Conservation Activities

Local people maintain and protect the vital ecosystems on Mt. Sanbe. Children at nearby elementary schools plant and
care for yusuge daylilies (Hemserocallis citrina var. vespertina) and pasque flower (Pulsatilla cernua) in the grassland areas. Each
spring, hi-ire, a controlled burning that encourages new growth and maintains the grassland ecosystem, is carried out
on the western plains. The grasslands are regularly mowed, and trees that invade the area are cut down. Some of the

proceeds from sales of the resulting firewood are reinvested in the conservation programs.
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Guide Map of Daisen-Oki National Park Cape Jizozaki Area

In 1963, Cape Jizozaki and other parts of the Shimane Peninsula, the Oki Islands, and Mt. Sanbe were added to Daisen
National Park, and the park was renamed Daisen-Oki National Park. Cape Jizozaki was originally called Cape Mihonosaki.
Shipwrecks, however, frequently occurred along the adjacent coast and cliffs, and sailors started praying for safe passage
to Jizo, the bodhisattva who protects travelers. Cape Miho became known as “the cape where Jizo resides,” and the name

eventually changed to Cape Jizozaki.

Cape Jizozaki is part of the Shimane Peninsula and the Shinjiko Nakaumi Estuary Geopark.
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Cape Jizozaki

Located at the eastern end of the Shimane Peninsula in Daisen-Oki National Park, Cape Jizozaki provides splendid
views of the Oki Islands and the Sea of Japan on clear days. The small island known as Okinogozen Island lies about
3 km northeast of Cape Jizozaki. This island is documented in the Izumo no Kuni Fudoki, an eatly eighth-century
topographical and cultural chronicle of the Izumo region, which recounts local legends about the formation of the
Shimane Peninsula. In the chronicle Okinogozen Island is called Todo Island. According to one myth from the
chronicle, the god of Miho Shrine, Kotoshironushi, enjoyed fishing on Okinogozen Island. The waters around the
island are still productive fishing grounds. Ships pass between the island and Cape Jizozaki when traveling between

Sakaiminato and the Oki Islands.

Cape Jizozaki is part of the Shimane Peninsula and Shinjiko Nakaumi Estuary Geopark.
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Terrain of the Shimane Peninsula Coast

The region stretching across eastern Shimane Prefecture and western Tottori Prefecture has a unique topography. The
region includes the Chugoku mountain range in the south, sedimentary lowlands such as Lake Shinji and Lake Nakaumi,
and Shimane Peninsula, created through tectonic uplift. Shimane Prefecture is divided in half by a fault, with the areas
east of the fault subsiding to form ria (drowned river) inlets, and the western part uplifting to form coastal
promontories.

The shoreline of the Shimane Peninsula is a succession of capes and bays following one after the other like the teeth
of a saw. Spectacular coastal landscapes include cliffs and sea caves such as the mystical sea caves of Kaka (Kaka no

Kukedo) and the Seven Caves of Tako (Tako no Nanatsuana).

The entire area is part of the Shimane Peninsula and Shinjiko Nakaumi Estuary Geopark.
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Panorama from Cape Jizozaki Park

Cape Jizozaki, located at the tip of the Shimane Peninsula, offers a panoramic view that includes the Sea of Japan, Mt.
Daisen, and Miho Bay. From the east side of the observation deck, visitors can pick out Okinogozen Island and
Jinogozen Island about 3 km offshore. According to ancient legend, the god Kotoshironushi, enshrined at Miho Shrine,
once fished in the waters around these islands. On clear days, the Oki Islands are visible in the distance. The west side

of the deck overlooks the coastal scenery of the Shimane Peninsula, with its ria inlets.

Cape Jizozaki is part of the Shimane Peninsula and Shinjiko Nakaumi Estuary Geopark.

AR DIRER (HAEEER)
KRR D)5V

HjERE (E SRS EORIHKICAIEL THD. BARBOIL KRR/ SYE, KU, ERBZWETEET . COEETY
Fn5E, BARBEZ—LEIBENTETIN TYFORAINS 3 FO5EICE. DROHE S MBS [N
BPEERAFTT . BOMGHRICENE ERMIECIESNIEBERELVSIHL ENSOETHDZEUVALZEEDNT
WEI. BNERCRRRKESZESICEUIENTEET  TyvFOREAINSE, U7ARBROMAZZF D BIR
FEORHBRBRERAREZRENTEET,

KEtEE BIR¥S-REBPESA/-I0—8TT,

ARFELURIDREERF
BU




989

No.49 Origins of Cape Miho, Cape Jizozaki Area <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
(a4 ] R Bl
(Bm T EBRAKIER
TEDNOIREERR X

Origins of Cape Mihonosaki

The eastern tip of the Shimane Peninsula, now referred to as Cape Jizozaki, was formerly called Cape Mihonosaki. The
Iznmo no Kuni Fudoki, an eighth-century text describing local culture and legends, includes a story known as the “Land-
Pulling Myth.” In this story, one of the native gods of Izumo believed his country to be small, and so used a rope to
pull in extra land. The parts he managed to drag in later became Cape Mihonosaki and Cape Hinomisaki. Local legends
also relate that Kotoshironushi (the god enshrined at Miho Shrine, also known as Ebisu) enjoyed fishing on the islands
Jinogozen and Okinogozen. These two islands are visible 4 km offshore through the shrine’s torii gate and are still
considered part of Miho Shrine’s precincts today. Ceremonies performed every year on the 5th of May by the island

residents honor Kotoshironushi and his wife.

During summer, dynamic sunrises can be seen over the sea surrounding Okinogozen Island. The outline of the island
changes minutely with air pressure and humidity, and local fishermen use the shape to predict the upcoming weather
and decide whether to go out fishing or not that day. According to ancient stories recorded in the annals of Miho
Shrine, an echo of kagura (sacred dances performed at shrines) music is said to resonate from the ocean floor around
Okinogozen Island, marking this spot as mystical space that transcends the realm of everyday experience. A place of

worship was built on the cape in 1973.

This area is part of the Shimane Peninsula and Shinjiko Nakaumi Estuary Geopark.
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Migratory Birds at Cape Jizozaki

Mihonoseki, on the eastern tip of the Shimane Peninsula, is located on a major coastal bird migration route. In spring,
summer birds such as the orwrj, or blue-and-white flycatcher (Cyanoptila cyanomelana), and the kibitaki or narcissus
flycatcher (Ficednla narcissina) pass by on the way back from their wintering areas in Southeast Asia, while winter birds
like the shirohara/pale thrush (Turdus pallidus) head north to breed. Birds such as the #guisu/Japanese bush warbler (Cettia
diphone), mejiro/ Japanese white-eye (Zosteraps japonicns), and hiyodori/brown-eared bulbul (Hypsipetes amanrotis) also migrate

around this time. In autumn, the birds pass by again on their southward journey from breeding to wintering grounds.

From the left: blue-and-white flycatcher; narcissus flycatcher; pale thrush; Japanese white-eye; brown-eared bulbul
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Trees Along the Scenic Nature Trail

This scenic nature trail once passed through a forest of pines, but a nematode infection destroyed most of these trees.
The area is now home to a lucidophyllous forest, composed of evergreen broad-leaved trees with thick, glossy leaves.

Evergreen broad-leaved trees growing along the trail include the following species:

Japanese pittosporum (Pittosporum tobira): clusters of round capsules form at the tips of drooping branches
Kuroki (Symplocos lucida): bark is dark grey, smooth, and thick

Yabunikkei cinnamon (Cinnanomum tenufolium): thick leaves with three prominent veins

Japanese privet (Lzgustrum japonicurm): oblong grey fruit resembles mouse scats

Sudajii chinquapin (Castanopsis sieboldzi): produces 1.5-1.8 cm acorns

Mt. Daisen and the Sea of Japan can be viewed from Cape Jizozaki Park, but visitors can see Mt. Daisen overlooking

Miho Bay from this nature trail.
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Forests of Cape Jizozaki Park

The inland areas of the Shimane Peninsula were formerly covered with pine forests (Pinus thunbergii). Most of these
pine trees, however, were lost in a nematode infection that started around 1980. Today the forest consists primarily of
evergreen broad-leaved trees such as machilus or Japanese bay tree (Machilus thunbergii), Japanese camellia (Camellia

Japonica), and Japanese privet (Ligustrum japonicum).

Washed by the warm Tsushima Current, the area around Cape Jizozaki Park has a broad diversity of plant life. The
hamabiwa or Japanese litsea (Litsea japonica) is an evergreen shrub with thick, 15 cm—long leaves that are covered with
thick hair on the undersides. These leaves resemble those of the biwa or Japanese loquat (Eriohotrya japonica). The
“hama” in the name indicates a coastal species. The Shimane Peninsula is the easternmost limit in distribution for the

Japanese litsea.

From the top: Japanese litsea leaves; dense hair on leaf underside
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Panorama from Cape Jizozaki

Located at the tip of the Shimane Peninsula, Cape Jizozaki is one of the few spots where both Mt. Daisen and Miho
Bay can be seen at the same time. From the observation deck, viewers can watch boats cruising Miho Bay, or enjoy the
view of Mt. Daisen. From late November to early February, the sun rises from behind Mt. Daisen. From middle June

to early July, the sunrise over the Sea of Japan can be seen through the torii gate near the lighthouse.

Photo: Sun rising behind Mt. Daisen on January 4
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Formation of the Shimane Peninsula

The Japanese islands became separated from the Eurasian continent around 20 million years ago, forming the Sea of
Japan. Geological strata dating from the time the islands were still part of the continent are found in the eastern part
of the Shimane Peninsula, and younger strata formed as the Sea of Japan expanded are also visible in many places.
This expansion stopped roughly 15 million years ago, after which sediments that had accumulated in the shallows
washed down to the depths. About 10 million years ago, the Shimane Peninsula was uplifted and expanded in the east-
west direction. About 7,000 years ago the Chugoku mountain range uplifted and seawater flooded into the Peninsula’s
basins to form Lake Nakaumi and Lake Shinji. Later, accumulated sediments carried by the Hii and Hino rivers created

alluvial plains like the Izumo Plain and Matsue Plain, as well as the Yumigahama Peninsula.

The “Land-Pulling Myth,” recorded in the eighth-century Izumo no Kuni Fudokz, offers an alternative explanation of
how the Shimane Peninsula was formed. According to the myth, the god Yatsukamizuomitsuno felt his territory was
too cramped, and decided to expand it by pulling land from the continent. According to myth, the ropes he used
became Sono no Nagahama Beach and the Yumigahama Penisula. Mt. Daisen and Mt. Sanbe served as stakes to secure

the new land in place.

This area is part of the Shimane Peninsula and Shinjiko Nakaumi Estuary Geopark.
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Izumo Matsushima

Izumo Matsushima consists of over twenty rocky islets of varying sizes, formed as heavy waves eroded uplifting
volcanic rhyolite rocks dating back about sixteen million years. Sargassum and other marine algae have formed dense
undersea forests on the rocky seabed surrounding the islets, creating ideal habitat for reef fish such as scorpion fish
(Sebastiscus marmoratus) and dark-banded rockfish (Sebastes inermis). Large schools of red sea bream (Pagrus major) and

yellowtail (Seriola quingueradiata) make Cape Hinomisaki a popular destination for visitors interested in fishing;
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Marine Life at Hinomisaki

Around Cape Hinomisaki, the warm waters of the Tsushima Warm Current mix with the surrounding colder water,
creating a diversity of marine environments. The seabed can fall to depths of up to 20 m and is rocky in some spots
and sandy in others, enhancing the ecological diversity. Further out are steep underwater cliffs and ravines. These
diverse marine environments and varying depths support an abundance of marine life. Cape Hinomisaki is the northern
limit for many types of coral, such as Nihon-awasango (Alvegpora japonica) and Amimesango (Psammocora profundacella).

A rare species of sea squirt was discovered in these waters.
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Topography of Cape Hinomisaki

Cape Hinomisaki is made up of two lofty coastal terraces, at heights of 25 m and 34 m. The Hinomisaki Lighthouse
stands on the lower terrace, and there is a parking lot on the upper. These terraces are thought to have been formed
underwater between about 200,000 and 100,000 years ago, when the sea level was much higher than today. Waves

scraped and flattened the seabed, which was then exposed to form the level terraces we see today.

A 10-15 m thick layer of weathered soil once covered the Cape Hinomisaki area. However, powerful waves driven by

harsh seasonal winds have stripped away the soil on the western side, exposing the underlying bedrock.
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Coastal Vegetation

The soil in this area is thin and composed mainly of weathered rhyolite volcanic rock. Forests of Japanese black pine
(Pinus thunbergii) are able to thrive in this thin poor soil. The pine forests provide a habitat for various salt-spray tolerant
shrubs, including Japanese cheesewood (Pittosporum tobira), hamahisakaki (Eurya emarginata), hamabiwa (Litsea japonica),
Japanese privet (Ligustrum japonicun), Indian hawthorn (Rbaphiolepis indica var. umbellata), and himeyuzuriha (Daphniphyllum
tegfsmannii). For some of these coastal shrubs, the outer coast of the Shimane Peninsula is the eastern limit of their
distribution along the Sea of Japan. The peninsula coast supports rare plants such as the tetsuhoshida fern (Thehpteris

interrupta) and obasugikazura vine (Asparagus rigidulus).
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Rocks at Cape Hinomisaki

The geology of Cape Hinomisaki is characterized by jointed vertical cliffs. The rocks here consist mainly of dome-
shaped rhyolite, an igneous rock that formed as magma cooled within the earth’s crust about 16 million years ago. The
cross sections of these rocks show irregular pentagonal or hexagonal shaped columns that were formed by the gradual
contraction of lava as it cooled. These geologic structures, known as columnar jointing, form perpendicular to the
surface of the cooling lava. The rock breaks away more easily along these joints, and over the centuries the pounding

waves have sculpted the columns into geometric shapes.
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Fumishima Island: Home of the Black-Tailed Gulls

This islet near Cape Hinomisaki, known as Fumishima Island (Sutra Island), is a vital wintering and nesting habitat for
black-tailed gulls (Larus crassirostris). The name of the islet is said to derive from the prism-shaped vertical rock
formations, known as columnar joints, found all over the island, which resemble stacks of sutra scrolls. Every
November, approximately 3,000 black-tailed gulls descend upon Fumishima Island. From April to May they breed here,
hatching and raising their chicks. Then, around July, they depart north. In 1922, the western shoreline of the island,
facing the Sea of Japan, was designated as a Japanese Natural Monument for its role as a breeding ground for black-

tailed gulls.
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Daisenji Priests” Quarters

In the past Daisenji Temple was much larger than today, and at one time was home to over a hundred monks’ living
quarters. In the Edo period (1603—1867), the temple complex consisted of the Sairakuin Hall, its administrative center,
with at least forty-two buildings serving as quarters for monks and pilgrims. Anti-Buddhist legislation enacted in 1875

sent the complex into decline, and today there are only ten buildings.

In 1914, the acclaimed writer Shiga Naoya (1883—1971) stayed at Renjoin Hall. The climax of his celebrated pre-war
novel An’ya Koro (A Dark Night’s Passing), in which the writer-protagonist travels to Mt. Daisen for a pilgrimage and

contemplation, was based on Shiga’s own experiences of climbing Mt. Daisen.
p > g p g

The ceiling paintings of nearby Enryuin Temple, which was reconstructed in 2009, were executed by the famous manga

artist Mizuki Shigeru (1922-2015), who was raised in nearby Sakaiminato.
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Monks' Living Quarters at Mt. Dalsen




Daisenji Temple is an expansive temple which used to house over 100 living quarters for Buddhist priests.
In the Edo Era, Sairakuin served as the administrative center and consisted of 42 sub-temples.
However, only 10 sub-temples remain after the reconstruction following the abolition of the Meiji Era anti-Buddhism

movement.

In 1914, the literary master Shiga Naoya stayed in the Renjoin Temple, which used to stand in the present location.
Shiga is known to have written the final chaper of his novel Anya Koro (A Dark Night's Passing) based on his hiking
experience at Mt. Daisen.

The nearby Enryuin Temple (rebuilt in 2009) 1s famous for its ceiling painting of Yokai monsters painted by the manga

artist Shigeru Mizuki from Sakaiminato City in Tottori Prefecture.
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Daisen-Oki National Park

Daisen-Oki National Park extends over the three prefectures of Tottori, Shimane, and Okayama. The 35,353 hectares
of the park has four distinctive regions. The eastern side encompasses volcanic landscapes with mountains and
highlands that include Mt. Kenashi, the Hiruzen Highlands, and Mt. Daisen, the highest peak of the Chugoku region.
Northwest of the mountain range, the Shimane Peninsula consists of both elevated and submerged coastlines. South
of the peninsula, the park includes Mt. Sanbe, a tholoid-type volcano which has extensive pastures. Offshore are the

Oki Islands, large and small islands whose steep cliffs rise dramatically from the ocean.
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Daisen-Oki National Park Facts

Daisen-Oki National Park spans three prefectures-Tottori, Shimane, and Okayama. The 35,053 hectare national park
is made up of four unique areas: the volcanic landscape of mountains and highlands from Chugoku Mountain Range's
highest peak, Mt. Daisen, to Hiruzen and Mt. Kenashiyama; the Oki Archipelago with the beautiful sea cliffs and
scenery of the open sea surrounding Dogo and Dozen Islands; the remarkably elevated and submerged coastline of
Shimane Peninsula; and the scenic tholoide style volcano and pasturelands in Mt. Sanbei Region.

(Designated on February 1, 19306)
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Amida-do Hall

The Amida-do Hall is the oldest extant Buddhist structure in the Daisenji Temple complex. The hall collapsed due to
landslides in 1529 and was reconstructed in its current location in 1552. The Amida-do was originally used for a
Buddhist practice known as jogyo-zanmat, in which practitioners circumambulated the hall for ninety days while chanting
the name of Amida Buddha. This practice came to an end during the anti-Buddhist legislations of the late nineteenth
century, after which the Amida-do became a regular worship hall enshrining the Amida Buddha. The 266 cm—tall
wooden Amida image in this hall was carved by the twelfth-century sculptor Ryoen (dates unknown) and is flanked by
images of the Kannon bodhisattva of mercy, and the Seishi bodhisattva of strength, wisdom, and power. Both the hall

and sculptures are designated Important Cultural Properties.
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Amidado Temple

Amidado is the oldest building among the existing temples of Daisenji Temple. It collapsed due to a landslide in 1529
and was rebuilt in its curent location in 1552. It was originally built as a hall for the purpose of exercising the Jogyo

zanmai-gyo, but since the excercise fell out of practice during the Meiji Era, it became a hall for the worship of

Amitabha.

The main object of worship is a wooden Amitabha Tathagata that was made in 1131 by Ryoen, a Buddha craftsman,




and stands 266 cm tall. Kannon and Seishi are enshrined on both sides as two accompanying Bodhisattvas. The building

and statue of Buddha are designated as National Important Cultural Properties.




1004

No.64 Beech Tree Forest in the Foothills of Mount Daisen, Daisen Mountain Trail

<KILFRIL, FSHR - SAR - FE LR >

(M RILE L&
(R T ERK]I BN

TEDNOIREERR X

Beech Forest in the Foothills of Mount Daisen

Mount Daisen boasts one of the largest beech forests in western Japan, and is also home to Mongolian oaks (Quercus
erispula) and painted maple trees (Acer pictum subsp. mono), as well as shrubs like lindera (Lindera umbellata), redvein maple
(Acer rufinerve), scatlet leaved viburnum (IV7burnum furcatum), daphniphyllum (Daphniphyllum macropodum subsp. humile) ,
and hydrangeas (Hydrangea serrata var yesoensis). This species composition is unique in combining the characteristics of

beech forests found on the Pacific Ocean with those of the Sea of Japan.
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A Beech Forest Surrounding Mt. Daisen

Mt. Daisen boasts in having one of the largest beech forests in Western Japan.

You can find beeches, Mongolian oaks, and painted maples growing in the atrea, as well as many shrubs including
lindera, redvein maple, scatlet leaved viburnum, daphniphyllum, and hydrangea.

In this way, the beech forest of Mt. Daisen possesses the characteristics of beech forests along both the Sea of Japan

and the Pacific Ocean.
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Mountain God (Yama no Kami-san)

In the past, this spot served as a place of worship for people climbing the mountain. Climbers would pray for a safe
ascent as the sun rose over the eastern ridge. The Daisen Guide Club erected this small shrine in 1991 and named it
“Yama no Kami-san (the Mountain God).” The spot serves today as a resting area for climbers heading up the

mountain.
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The Mountain God

This location used to be a worship spot. Mountain climbers would pray for a safe hike to the sun rising over the eastern
ridge.
In tribute to this, the Daisen Guide Club rebuilt the small shrine in November 1991 and named it "yama no kami-

san"(Mountain God).

This spot is frequently enjoyed as a rest area during hikes.
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Changes in Vegetation Patterns

The vegetation of Mt. Daisen changes dramatically as one climbs toward the summit. At around 1200 m, the influence
of snowstorms becomes more pronounced, and the beech forests give way to shrub vegetation. Above 1300 m, trees
such as redvein maples, rowan (Sorbus commixta), and symplocus (Symplocus sawafutagi) grow only one or two meters high.
From the area of 1600 m the vegetation changes again, to low-growing shrubs like privet (Ligustrum tschonoskii), willow
(Salix sieboldiana Blume) and honeysuckle (Lonicers strophiophora var. glabra). The vegetation of Mt. Daisen is a unique

mixture of elements from both northern and southern Japan.
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Change of Greenery

When going past the 5th Station, which is affected especially by snow and storm during the winter, the beech forest
changes into a region of shrubs. The growth of the redvein maple, Japanese rowan, and sapphite berry are stinted near
the 6th Station to a height of 1-2m. The Tschonosky privet, willow tree, morrow's honeysuckle and other trees near

the 7th and 8th stations also become shrubs.

Mt. Daisen is also known for its mix of northern and southern plants.
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Toilets on Mt. Daisen

There are very few toilets on the trail up the mountain. Hikers leaving the trail to relieve themselves pollutes the
environment and damages the vegetation. The mountain hut at the top does have a flushing eco-toilet, but the tank
has to be brought down to the foot of the mountain for periodic emptying. To preserve the environment of Mt. Daisen

for future generations, please follow these five points of toilet etiquette:

1) Make sure that you are in good health before climbing the mountain.
2) Visit a toilet before starting off.

3) Carry your own portable toilet.

4) Use the toilet at the summit only if necessary.

5) Take all your trash home, including toilet paper.
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Toilets on Mt. Daisen




Mt. Daisen is visited by many climbers, but due to the lack of toilets along the mountain trail, visitors are causing bad
odors and contaminating the paths with their urine, as well as damaging the natural environment by leaving their
footprints behind when relieving themselves.

The mountain shelter at the summit is equipped with a water flowing eco-toilet that utilizes natural energy to protect
the surrounding natural environment from pollution, but the degraded sludge in the septic tank accumulates and must
be treated at the base of the mountain.

In order to protect the precious nature of Mt. Daisen for future generations, please follow the "Mt. Daisen's 5 Articles

of Toilet Etiquette." fully understand that toilets on the mountain are special, and use them with consideration.
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Wooden Boardwalks at the Summit

Alpine meadows once covered the summit of Mt. Daisen, but many of these have been destroyed by climbers. Without
the vegetation to stabilize the slopes, rain and meltwater washed away the soil. To restore this vital habitat, Tottori
Prefecture started the Mt. Daisen Summit Vegetation Restoration Project in association with the Mt. Daisen Summit
Preservation Group, as well as other related organizations. Wooden boardwalks have been installed near the summit,
and the beneficial impact of the project so far can be seen in the pictures below. Please stay on the boardwalks and in

the designated areas around the buildings to help to protect the mountain.
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Wooden Boardwalk Around the Summit

The summit of Mt. Daisen was once covered in an abundance of grass, but the green is disappearing due to continuous
trampling by climbers and sediment discharge caused by rain and meltwater. In order to protect the fading greenery,
Tottori Prefecture worked together with the Mt. Daisen Summit Preservation Group as well as other related
organizations to carry out the "Mt. Daisen Summit Green Restoration Project (wooden boardwalk construction etc.).
You can cleatly see that the project is making progtess as a result We ask climbers and visitors not stray away from the

wooden boardwalk, mountain shelter, and mountain shelter area.
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Stone Hut, Jizo Pond, and Sanskrit Pond

The summer climbing trail was completed in 1920. The following year, the stone hut was built by volunteers as an
emergency shelter. Two ponds are located to the left behind the hut. The upper one is Jizogaike Pond, and the lower
one Bonjigaike Pond or the Sanskrit Pond. In the past an annual ritual, known as misenzgenjo, was performed here. Two
senior monks and three guides climbed up to the ponds bringing copies of sutras in metal cylinders. They picked
bunches of mugwort and Japanese dwarf yew, and collected water from the two ponds with akaoke, special pails used
for water offerings. The sacred water was brought down and offered to the Buddha, and the mugwort distributed to
believers as a medicinal herb. In the late nineteenth century, the Buddhist name wisenzenjo was changed to the Shinto

name mohitori-shinji. The ceremony is still carried out from the evening of July 14% to the eatly morning of the 15t
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Stone Hut, Jizo ga ike & Bonji ga ike Ponds

Local residents volunteered to create this stone hut in 1920, following the year the summer mountain climbing path
was established, to serve as a shelter. It is said that the total costs amounted to 800 yen in the currency of that time.

There are ponds to the left and behind the hut, the top named Jizo ga ike, and the bottom named Bonji ga ike. This

sacred site has been used to conduct the "Misen-zenjo" practice since ancient times.




Every year, two senior monks and three spiritual leaders would climb up to these ponds, copy sutras, take branches of
mugwort and Japanese yew, and use an akaoke (pail used, for ceremonial water to get water from the ponds before
descending the mountain.

The sacred water is offered to Buddha, while mugwort was distributed to believers as a medicinal herb.

(This practice is currently held from the evening of July 14th to the early morning of the 15th as "mohitori-shinji.")




1010

No.70 Special Natural Monument: Mt. Daisen’s Dwarf Yew Forest, Daisen Mountain Trail

(22 | AL L <KILFRIL, FSHR - SAR - FE LR >
(Bl T EEAK] B
TEHNOIERFERFR X

Mt. Daisen Dwarf Yew Forest (Special Natural Monument)

Much of the slopes around the summit of Mt. Daisen is covered with a dwarf variety of Japanese yew (Taxus cuspidata
var nana). This species is dioecious, the plants are either male or female. The branches of the female plants have bright
red berries. Mt. Daisen’s forests of dwarf Japanese yew are the largest in the country, covering eight hectares, and also
represent the southern and western limit of this species. Designated in 1952 as a national-level Special Natural

Monument, the Mt. Daisen Dwarf Yew Forest begins at around an elevation of 1600 m on the mountain.
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Special Natural Monument: Mt. Daisen Pure Forest of Daisen Japanese Yew

The gentle slope of the tableland atop Mt. Daisen is mostly covered with a pure forest of the Japanese Yew.

The Japanese Yew is a type of yew, whose roots differ by gender. The female produces a beautiful red berry-like fruit.
This pure forest is the most southwestern location of pure forests and boasts the largest concentration of trees in all
of Japan. The National Natural Monument "Mt. Daisen Pure Forest of Daisen Japanese Yew" consists of the eight

hectares above the 8th Station. (Designated on March 29, 1952)
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Alpine Meadows at the Summit

The summit of Mt. Daisen is frequently blasted by powerful winter winds, which prevent snow from accumulating, As
a result, the vegetation here is dominated by alpine meadows containing species such as Shikoku-furo geranium
(Geraninm shikokiannm), Ezonoyoroi-gusa angelica (Angelica sachalinensis), Daisen-kisumire violet (I7ola brevistipulata subsp.
minor), Iwakagami acony bell (Schizocodon (Shortia) soldanelloides), and Higenogariyasu reed grass (Calamagrostis longiseta).
In depressions and other areas where snowdrifts have a better chance of accumulating, flowers such as Nangoku-
kugaiso veronica (IVeronicastrum japonicum var. anstrale), Shimotsukeso meadowsweet (Filipendula multijnga) and Sarashina-

shoma bugbane (Cimicifuga (Actea) simplex) bloom in eatly summer, splashing the slopes with colorful alpine flowers.

AR DIRER (HAEEER)
NN

AOTE EFRUVWRADBRA R EZRLTHD. FEALSHHDERA, TOFER. ILTEOHELE(FST7770. I
V/)3045Y . A1 F IV ATHHE &5 AV ZRBEDLSREILAEI N ILEBOITVEY . BHL VSRR

SEOREEECEF>TVIAAYD. SE'YTYD Y32 F230IBEDTEN, FIBICHEILIEYIDTEEZ ODFE
ED

ARBELIBIOREEMRR X

The Vast Grassland to the Summit

This wind beaten bushy grassland reveals the harsh forces of the wind in this alpine landscape.

Japanese marbled cranesbill, Angelica anomala, Viola brevistipulata, Schizocodon, and especially Calamagrostis
longiseta can be seen in the mountain peak surroundings where there is little snow. In areas where there is relatively
heavy snow or snowdrifts. Veronicastrum Japonicum, Meadowsweet, Cimicifuga simplex and many other flowers

bloom in eatly summer and form a carpet of flowers.
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One Tree, One Stone Project

Mt. Daisen is the highest mountain in the Chugoku region. As one of the “100 Famous Mountains” in Japan, the
mountain attracts many climbers each year. Mt. Daisen’s alpine vegetation began disappearing in the 1960s and 70s,
due to trampling by the increased number of climbers. This problem escalated in the 1980s, when the loss of vegetation
led to soil erosion. In April 1985, local conservation groups and government agencies formed the Mt. Daisen Summit
Conservation Group. They established the “One Tree, One Stone” project, in which climbers are asked to carry one
tree and one stone to the summit to help restore the ecosystem. The stones helped stabilize the slope and protect the
growing saplings. Projects of this sort were rare in Japan at the time. As a result of these efforts, the summit vegetation

has substantially recovered, but further efforts are required to restore this vital habitat to its former glory.
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One Tree One Stone Program

Mt. Daisen is the tallest mountain in the Chugoku Region and is listed among Japan's Best 100 Mountains, receiving
many visitors each year. In the 1960s and 70s, the alpine flora almost disappeared as a result of trampling impacts. This
environmental problem exacerbated in the 1980s when soil erosion and sedimentation began to occur as barren areas

increased.




This raised the alarm, and in April 1985, local conservation groups and a government agency gathered to form Mt.
Daisen's Summit Conservation Group. They initiated the One Tree One Stone Program which called for climbers to
carry one tree and one stone to the summit in hope of regeneration. This was a unique case in Japan where volunteer
groups and public officials willingly worked together for the environment. Although much of the vegetation has

regenerated, the program still needs to be carried out in order to have the environment restored to its original state.




1013

No.73 Northern Cliffside, Daisen Mountain Trail <KIUFRIE, BER - BAR - L8 >
(s ] RILELLE
(BfmF EEAR]BR
TEhofc kBRI X
Nortthern Cliffside

The north face of Mt. Daisen is a 2 km—long rocky cliff, starting at Misen Peak (1709 m) and running through the
summit peak of Kengamine (1729 m), Tengugamine Peak (1710 m), and Sankoho Peak (1516 m). There are many
deeply carved ravines, such as Gyojodani and Misensawa, carved through this northern wall. The masses of rock on
this side have been likened to traditional Japanese folding screens (byob#), and are called Obyobu iwa (Large Folding
Screen Rock) and Kobyobu iwa (Small Folding Screen Rock). The rocky face of Mt. Daisen frequently crumbles and

slides. Snow remains visible between the rocks through early summer.
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The North Wall

The rugged masculine North Wall of Mt. Daisen stretches 2 km from around Misen Peak (1709m), Daisen's highest
peak, Kengamine (1729m). Tengugamine(1710m), all the way to Sankoho(1516m).

Many deeply carved valleys, such as Gyojadani and Misensawa, can be found at the foot of this majestic wall.

There are also large masses of rock called, Large Byobu Cliff and Small Byobu Cliff. In early summer, snow can be

still seen in between those cliffs. Additionally, Mt. Daisen's rock quality is fragile and can easily crumble, causing rocks

to tumble frequently.
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The Gyoja Mountain Ttrail

Mountain climbing became popular in Japan during the late 1920s and early 1930s. On January 4%, 1937, Katsuma
Kennosuke led his Shimonoseki Alpine Group to the summit of Mt. Daisen through Gyoja Valley, making them the
first climbers to reach the top via this route. This trail was then used frequently by climbers, but weathering and
landsides along the mountain’s north face eventually led to its closure. In 1988 the old trail was replaced by the new

Gyoja Mountain Trail, which is still in use today.
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Changes to Gyoja Mountain Trail

Mountain climbing boomed in the Showa Years and on 4th January 1937, Kennosuke Katsuma led his Shimonoseki
Alpine team through Gyojadani Valley and to the summit. They were the first people to take this route.
Although many climbers had started taking the Gyojadani Route, the trail became unusable due to extensive damage

and concerns of rocks falling from the North Wall. In 1988, an alternative trail was made, which is the same Gyoja

Mountain Trail used today.
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Origins of Mt. Daisen

Mt. Daisen was formed by volcanic activity that started about 1 million years ago and ended around 10,000 years ago.
During the eatly stages of this formation, from about 600,000 to 400,000 years ago, large-scale volcanic activity created
the peaks of Mt. Senjo, Mt. Kabutogasen, and Mt. Yahazugasen. Mt. Daisen then remained dormant for about 100,000
years but resumed volcanic activity about 300,000 years ago. During these later stages of mountain building, explosive
eruptions discharged large amounts of pyroclastic flow, volcanic pumice and ash, covering the surfaces formed in the
eatlier period and shaping the huge mountain seen today. Around 17,000 years ago, large amounts of lava were pushed

up from the heart of the mountain, resulting in the lava domes of Sankoho Peak, Misen Peak, and Mt. Karasugasen.
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The Origins of Mt. Daisen

Mt. Daisen was formed as a result of volcanic eruptions that started over 1 million years ago and ended 10,000 and

some years ago.

Large scale volcanic activity took place approximately 600,000 to 400,000 years ago forming the mountain base from

Senjosan to Kabutogasen to Yahazugasen. this period is known as “Old Daisen.”




After being dormant for 100,000 years powerful volcanic activity resumed around 300,000 years ago. With explosive
eruptions, large amounts of pyroclastic rock and volcanic pumice ash covered over the "Old Daisen" surface to form

the expansive mountain base. This period is known as "New Daisen."

There were a series of volcanic eruptions during the 2nd stage (New Daisen) and large amounts of gas and volcanic
ash were ejected. Additionally, lava flowed out from directly beneath Mt. Daisen and started forming a lava dome

(Misen, Sankoho and Mt. Karasugasen).
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Wildlife and Vegetation Along the Gyoja Mountain Trail

The Gyoja Mountain Trail runs through a forest that includes beech trees, Mongolian oaks (Quercus crispula Blume),
painted maples (Acer pictum Thunb.), redvein maples (Acer rufinerve), and willows (Salix sieboldiana Blume). This vast forest
is beautiful throughout the year, from green leaves in spring to colorful foliage in autumn. Mt. Daisen is a sanctuary
for wild birds. More than 100 species have been recorded on the mountain, including summer breeders such as the
narcissus flycatcher (Ficedula narcissina) and blue-and-white flycatcher (Cyanoptila cyanomelana), and residents like the
varied tit (Parus varins) and the coal tit (Periparus ater). Many small mammals, land snails, and over 1,000 species of insects

live on Mt. Daisen, forming a rich biodiversity and stable ecosystem.
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Wildlife and Vegetation in Gyoja Mountain Trail

Gyoja Mountain Trail is filled with lush greenery. Various high and low trees can be found such as beeches, tall
Mongolian oaks, painted maples, redvein maples, and willow trees.

This vast forest embellishes Mt. Daisen with fresh new green leaves in the spring and colorful foliage in autumn,
displaying an array of seasonal beauty throughout the year. It is also a sanctuary for wild birds.

Summer birds such as Natcissus Flycatcher and Blue-and-white Flycatcher, and resident birds such as Varied Tit and
the Coal Tit, are among the over 100 species of birds confirmed.

Mt. Daisen is also home to numerous species of small mammals, land snails, and over 1000 species of insects, having

a stable ecosystem.
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Tonen Memorial Stone

This large stone commemorates Tonen, a calligrapher, painter, and poet who eventually became the head priest of
nearby Enryuin Temple. Tonen was born in Kaike in 1796 and entered Enryuin as a priest in 1806. He compiled the
Daisen Miscellany (Daisen akki), an important historical resource about the region completed in 1846. He passed away

in 1861.
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Shinanobo Gensei Memorial Stone

Shinanobo Gensei (P—1357) was the head priest of Daisenji Temple and the younger brother of Nawa Nagatoshi (?—
1336), a fourteenth-century warlord from Hoki (present-day western Tottori Prefecture). In 1333, Nagatoshi raised an
army at Mt. Senjo, and fought alongside Emperor Go-Daigo’s (1288—1339) forces in their campaign to overthrow the
Kamakura shogunate (1185—1333) and restore direct imperial rule. Gensei gathered armed monks from a number of
different regions to assist his brother. Emperor Go-Daigo’s restoration campaign was initially successful, but imperial
rule was short lived. In 1336 the samurai regained power, with the establishment of the Muromachi shogunate (1336—
1573). Military rule of Japan continued for over five centuries, until the Meiji Restoration of 1868.

Gensei passed away in 1357 in Yatsushiro, Higo (present-day Kumamoto Prefecture) at age 56. After his death,
members of the imperial house commissioned this memorial stone to commemorate his contribution to the restoration

campaign.
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Bridge of Avidya (Mumyo no Hashi)

The name of this bridge, Mumyo in Japanese and Avidya in Sanskrit, is commonly interpreted as meaning “delusion
or ignorance” in Buddhist theology. The Diamond Sutra, an ancient Buddhist scripture in which the Buddha teaches
his disciple Subhuti about the doctrine of emptiness, is carved on the back of this bridge. People believe that crossing

this bridge will purge their sins and allow them to be reborn in the Pure Land of Amida.
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Harmony Rock

This cedar tree and rock have formed a complex interwoven relationship, which led to it being called the Harmony
Rock. It is said that prayers will be answered if you pray before the rock. People come here to pray for a suitable

marriage partner or daughter-in-law, or to be blessed with children.
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Yoshimochi’s Jizo

During the middle of the Edo period, in the eighteenth century, the wealthy patron Yoshimochi Jinemon from Aimi
(formerly a part of Hoki, now Tottori Prefecture) developed close ties with Goken, the then head priest of Kyogoin
Temple. Yoshimochi donated this sculpture of the bodhisattva Jizo to Daisenji Temple. Jizo watches over travelers for
a safe journey, and in this region is also revered as a protector of livestock. Daisenji Temple is home to many Jizo

statues, but this is one of only a few carved from natural stone.
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Site of the Sairakuin Hall

The Sairakuin Hall formerly stood in the forest behind this open space. It became the main monks’ quarters of Daisenji
Temple around 1605. The building was over forty meters wide and had both a main gate and a separate gate for the
clergy and samurai. The hall flourished for two and a half centuries, home to a thriving Buddhist community. It

gradually declined due to political movements in the latter half of the nineteenth century.

Since ancient times Japanese spiritual culture included a syncretic mixing of Buddhist and Shinto beliefs. After the Meiji
Restoration of 1868, however, the new government forced the separation of the two religions and launched a campaign
to promote Shinto while destabilizing and weakening Buddhism. Temple lands were seized, and monks were forced to
become Shinto priests. On September 30, 1875, Daisenji Temple was closed and regular maintenance stopped. In the

following decades the once-magnificent Sairakuin Hall slowly fell into decay.
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Crow Pond (Karasugaike)

Mt. Daisen has seven ponds: Red Pine Pond (Akamatsuike), Kettle Pond (Kamagaike), Big Field Pond (Onoike),
Inkstone Pond (Suzurigaike), Crow Pond (Karasugaike), Kanman Pond (Kanmanike) and Jizo Pond (Jizogaike). The

Crow Pond is the smallest of these.

RS DIRER (HAEERR)
Bt

RISFICFFARAM, ENM0Mh, KEH, oM, B, i, tENBOO0MABIFET . BrBEARILE
MO TERE/NEVHTY,

ARBELIBIOREEMRR X
U




1024

No.84 Backward-Facing Gate, Daisenji Temple <KIRER:, SHY- SR - FEILE>
(s KLLISF
(Bm T EBRAKIER
TEDNOIREERR X

Backward-Facing Gate

This gate originally functioned as the front gate of the Sairakuin Hall, which was the main monks’ residence at Daisenji
Temple. In 1875, however, the temple was closed and turned into a Shinto shrine, and the original temple gate was
moved to become the gate of the inner shrine. The gate is back to front relative to the shrine, since when it was moved

to its present site, its orientation was not adjusted.
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History and Nature Around Daisenji Temple

Mt. Daisen is beautiful year-round. Alpine flowers bloom from spring to summer, while the leaves of maples and other
deciduous trees turn color in autumn. The mountain looks beautiful under snow in the wintet.

The natural scenery is enhanced by the region’s cultural and historical background, with its history of mountain worship
and spiritual journeying. Numerous sculptures of the bodhisattva Jizo watch over pilgrims along the approaches to the
temple, and the paths are lined with memorial stones dedicated to notable figures from the past. Local folklore contains

stories of mythical creatures like the Crow Tengu, a part-human, part-avian being said to reside on Mt. Daisen.

Visitors to Daisenji Temple climb stone steps to reach the main hall. Another old, stone-paved path leads from
alongside the hall up to the Mountain Sanctuary of Ogamiyama Shrine, an Important Cultural Property. Following this
path into the deep forest, visitors pass Jizo sculptures, gates, worship halls, memorial stones, and natural springs for
drinking water. This forested path offers a chance to fully experience Mt. Daisen’s unique mystical atmosphere and

abundant natural, spiritual, and mystical treasures.
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Daisen has great scenery for each season such as pretty flower of alpine plants in Spring and summer, autumnal tints,
and snowscape in winter. Here, Daisen, is not only a wonderful nature place but also a historical mountain worship

spot where many trainee monks gathered. There is mysterious story which is like Karasutengu-legends in this area.

Many stone images of Jizo and stone monument exist in Daisenji area approach.

If you go through, you will find more mysterious scenery which passed over many years. Daisenji main temple and

Ogamiyama Shinto shrine (Important cultural assets) are a part of them.
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First of 12,000 Tenjin Shrines in Japan

Hofu Tenmangu Shrine was founded in 904 for the worship of Tenjin, the deification of Sugawara no Michizane, a
real-life aristocratic scholar, poet, and administrator who was banished to Kyushu from the court in Kyoto in 901.
Michizane stayed in Hofu on his way into exile, hoping in vain for the charges against him to be dismissed as false. He
eventually died in Kyushu in 903, but a number of miracles occurred in Hofu on the day of his death: a pillar of light
shone into the sea and a mysterious cloud settled on the hill behind where the shrine now stands. These miracles were
interpreted to mean that Michizane’s soul had returned to its last stop in Honshu, and so in 904, just one year after his

death, this shrine was built for him in Hofu.

The miracles witnessed in Hofu were benign, but far more alarming events went on to unfold in Kyoto. Lightning
struck not just the imperial palace, but also killed individual aristocrats who had helped engineer Michizane’s downfall.

Clearly, Michizane had become a powerful god who needed to be propitiated.

As a god, Michizane was known as Tenjin, an abbreviation of Tenman-Daijizai-Tenjin, or “the heavenly god who can
manipulate the weather freely,” in reference to his ability to control the lightning, After the deaths of Michizane’s arch-
rival Fujiwara no Tokihara in 909 and Emperor Daigo in 930, propitiating Tenjin became a matter of national

importance.

Today some 12,000 Tenjin shrines, or Tenmangu, are found in Japan. Hofu Tenmangu is the first in the country and
ranks alongside Kitano Tenmangu in Kyoto and Dazaifu Tenmangu in Kyushu in importance. Hofu Tenmangu is
unusual in a number of other ways: four gods are enshrined here, not just one (the other three are Michizane’s mythical
ancestors). Also, the main sanctuary (bonden), offering hall (beiden), and the worship hall (baiden) are three separate

buildings in most shrines, but here they are all combined into a single one.




Hofu Tenmangu burned down in 1952, and was rebuilt over the next decade following the designs shown on ancient
scrolls. Over time Tenjin came to be worshipped as the god of learning, reflecting Michizane’s accomplishments as a

poet and scholar during his lifetime. That is why many people still come to Tenjin shrines to pray for academic success.

Hofu Tenmangu Quick Facts

* Dating from 904, Hofu Tenmangu is the oldest of the 12,000 Tenjin shrines in Japan.

* There are 57 stone steps leading up to the shrine, because Michizane was 57 years old when he reached Hofu en
route to exile in Kyushu.

* The oldest tree in the shrine grounds is an 800-year-old camphor tree.

* The portable shrine and cart for the shrine’s Gojin-kosai Festival together weigh a massive 1.5 tons—as much as a
rhinoceros!

* The torii gate at the entrance to the shrine grounds is the oldest stone torii in Yamaguchi Prefecture.
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The Hofu Tenmangu Shrine Museum displays a selection from some six hundred items that were presented to the

shrine as votive offerings. This is a brief overview of some of the most important.

Picture Scroll of the Shrine’s Origins
An illustrated biography 75 meters long
The most important exhibit in the museum is the Picture Scroll Showing the Origin of Matsuzaki Tenjin in Six Scrolls, Complete

with Box (Matsuzaki Tenjin Engi Emafki Rokkan Hakotsnki).

This is a set of six illustrated scrolls, with a total length of 75 meters when placed end to end. There are two versions
of the scroll: the original Kamakura Edition, which dates from 1331, just before the end of the Kamakura period
(1185-1333), and a copy called the Muromachi Edition, which was made between 1504 and 1520 during the Muromachi

period (1336-1573).

The first five scrolls recount all the classic legends about Sugawara no Michizane (845-903) both in life—bidding
farewell to the plum tree in his Kyoto garden on his way into exile; the ox at his funeral sitting down and refusing to
move—and as the deity Tenjin—hurling vengeful thunderbolts at his enemies, for example. The sixth scroll, however,
is devoted entirely to the story of Hofu Tenmangu. (The Matsuzaki in the title comes from the fact that Hofu

Tenmangu was originally known as Matsuzaki Shrine.)

It was forbidden to exhibit the original Kamakura Edition of the scrolls outside Hofu Tenmangu. As a result, it was
seldom unfurled and exposed to the light, and so the colors are extraordinarily vivid and the paper quite wrinkle-free
for something almost 700-years-old. Ironically, because of this prohibition, the Kamakura Edition copy is actually in

better condition than the Muromachi Edition, despite being nearly two hundred years older!




In addition to its artistic value, illustrations from the scroll proved of great practical use when the shrine had to be

rebuilt after burning to the ground in 1952, allowing it to be reconstructed according to the original plans.

Copper-Gilt Treasure Pagoda

A pagoda for peace

This 40-centimeter-high Copper-Gilt Treasure Pagoda (Kondo-hoto) was presented to the shrine in 1172. It enshrines a
bead of green glass designed to evoke an actual relic of the Buddha. In the late twelfth century when the pagoda was
presented to the shrine, Japan was in a state of upheaval, as the imperial court was losing power to the shogun watlords.
As the inscription on the pagoda explains, a local official, Fujiwara no Suesuk, presented the miniature pagoda to the
temple to pray for the long life of Retired Emperor Go-Shirakawa, rich harvests in Suo Province (modern Yamaguchi
Prefecture), and the well-being of the people. The Copper-Gilt Treasure Pagoda is the oldest artifact of known

provenance in all 12,000 Tenjin shrines in Japan, which makes it uniquely precious.

Bonsho Bell
The spoils of war

Other exhibits include this bonsho, or Buddhist temple bell, which was struck to tell people the time. Dating from the
Kamakura period (1185-1333), it was presented to the shrine by Ouchi Yoshitaka (1507—1551), the local daimyo, who
had looted it from Tenfukuji Temple in Fukuoka.
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Hoshoan: Green Tea in a Green Garden

The Hoshoan (“Fragrant Pine Hermitage”) teahouse dates from 1991 and was built on the old site of the monks’ living
quarters. In the ninth century, Sugawara no Michizane (845—903) revived the practice of drinking tea at the imperial
court (though the tea itself had a rather more medicinal taste than today’s drink), and this teahouse pays homage to
that legacy. The Hoshoan itself is a small traditional teahouse at the eastern end of the garden, but there is a much larger
two-storied building in front. Both buildings overlook a beautiful garden intersected by a stream full of carp. The
admission fee to the teahouse includes a cup of mwatcha green tea and some seasonal Japanese sweets. If you wish to
follow proper etiquette when drinking your tea, pick up the bowl with your right hand, place it on the open palm of

your left hand and then rotate it twice to the right, so that you do not drink from the front of the cup.

Gyotenro: A Secret Meeting Place for Revolutionaries

Immediately on the left as you enter the Hoshoan garden stands an old wooden building known as Gyozenro. This was
once an outbuilding belonging to a local inn, where it was used for pickle-making. As the original staircase leading up
to the second floor was retractable, it was the ideal place for having secret meetings. Many local samurai who played
key roles in overthrowing the shogunate and restoring the emperor to power in the Meiji Restoration met here at

Gyotenro.

Among the shishi, or “men of high purpose,” who had meetings here were Ito Hirobumi (1841-1909), who drafted
Japan’s original constitution and became the country’s first prime minister in 1885, and Takasugi Shinsaku (1839—-1867),
who first proposed using non-samurai in the armed forces. They were all inspired by the example of Sugawara no

Michizane (845-903), who had been a government official in life before becoming a god after death.
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A Pure Mind in a Pure Body

The origins of Amidaji Temple are intricately entwined with Todaiji Temple in Nara. Founded in the eighth century,
and long the most important Buddhist institution in Japan, Todaiji was destroyed in 1180 during a clan war. Rebuilding
proceeded rapidly, and the Great Buddha statue was fully restored by 1185. Reconstructing the hall that housed the
statue demanded a vast amount of timber, so Emperor Go-Shirakawa (1127-1192) sent Shunjobo Chogen (1121-

1206), the monk in charge of rebuilding work, to Yamaguchi to cut down and ship back 130 enormous trees.

Chogen arrived in Yamaguchi in 1186 and established Amidaji as a branch temple of Todaiji in the following year. The
temple’s role is to pray for the health and well-being of the emperor. Chogen had visited China to study Buddhism,
and Amidaji reflects the religious innovations he encountered there. Both the Amida Nyorai—the main deity in Pure
Land Buddhism after whom the temple is named—and yokuto nenbutsu—bathing as a form of self-purification—are
imports from China. The complex consists of seven buildings (two of which are for bathing) set in a mountainside

garden full of hydrangeas and is home to several National Treasures.
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A Masterpiece of the Taisho Era

A stroll garden centered around a pond, the garden of the Mohri Principal Residence is the masterpiece of garden
designer Sakuma Kintaro and a perfect expression of Meiji- (1868—1912) and Taisho-period (1912-206) aesthetics. As
is often the case in Japan, the idea is to combine the artificial garden harmoniously with Mt. Tatara behind and with

the “borrowed scenery” (shakkei) of Mitajiri Port and the Inland Sea in front. Mixing flat spaces (hiraniwa) with trees

and water features (rinsen), the garden is designed to look attractive whatever the season.

The garden contains some two hundred fifty varieties of trees. Numerous pine trees—some elaborately shaped, some
simply tall—are dotted throughout the garden. The flat space immediately beside the house is covered with sand to

evoke the nearby seaside.

The pond is shaped like a gourd (a symbol of wealth and fecundity) with a small body of water surrounded by boulders
and fed by a waterfall opening out into a larger expanse of water past the faikobashi semicircular bridge. The smaller
part of the pond is designed to evoke a ravine landscape while also delighting the ear with the sound of water flowing

down the surface of the biggest single rock in the garden.

The garden contains nineteen stone #oro lanterns. The very large one just to the right as you approach the bridge
has a base made of cement, a novel material at the time the house was built. The drainage culverts that run

beneath the whole garden are another invisible piece of what was then the latest technology.

After making a circuit of the garden, visitors are welcome to have a rest in MAI, the café located in the atmospheric

old building that was once home to the family offices.
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From Daimyo’s Castle to Duke’s Mansion

Until the late nineteenth century, the Mohri clan were feudal lords (daimyo) who controlled all of modern-day
Yamaguchi from their family seat at Hagi Castle on the Sea of Japan. As Japan moved towards a more modern,
centralized form of government with the Meiji Restoration, most of the daimyos’ castles were destroyed to prevent
them from revolting. Along with many other castles throughout Japan, the Mohri clan’s Hagi Castle was torn down in

1874 because it was a relic of the old regime that the new Meiji government was intent on sweeping aside.

That meant that when political stability finally returned to Japan, the Mohri family—despite having a mansion in
Tokyo—had no suitably grand house to live in in their own ancestral lands. Duke Mohri Motonori decided to build
himself a new main residence in Yamaguchi in 1892, but construction was delayed by a seties of wars. Building work

finally got under way in 1912, and the mansion was finished by 1916.

The mansion was designed by the Japanese architect Hara Takesaburo. A large and complex structure, the way it
combines traditional, high-quality materials with all the most up-to-date conveniences defines it as a masterpiece of

modern Japanese architecture. Of a total of sixty rooms, just two are Western-style.

Two Family Crests
Throughout the mansion, you will encounter the two crests of the Mohri clan. If you look up as you enter the porte-
cochére, you will see both the ichi-ni-mitsuboshi (a single horizontal line above three circles) and the omodaka (three-leaf

arrowhead). These crests are repeated throughout the house on everything from lighting fixtures to sliding door pulls.

Precious Woods and Ancient Trees




The ceiling panels of the porte-cochére are made of zelkova with a beautiful grain, and the whole house is full of rare
and precious woods that communicate the wealth and status of the Mohri family. The floor of the first corridor in the
house, for example, is made of two slabs of Taiwanese zelkova, each around eight meters long and 1.5 meters wide.
For the pillars and the lateral beams, hinoki cypress from Kiso is used. Meanwhile, the sliding doors in the reception

rooms are made of Yakusugi, 1,000-year-old cedar from the island of Yakushima.

A Guest Wing Fit for an Emperor

The grandest section of the house—and the only part that is two stories high—is the guest wing (&yakuma-to), which
was built specifically to host visits from important people, including even the emperor. It consists of three linked
reception rooms (ohiroma) with intricate coffered ceilings. A discreet passage leads from the reception room to the guest
bedroom behind enabling the emperor or other important visitors to move from private to public space without
encountering anyone else. The mansion was inhabited for fifty years, from 1916 to 1966. Over that time it received a

total of three imperial visits, one from Emperor Taisho and two from Emperor Showa (Hirohito).

Room with a View
The second story of the guest wing is reached by way of a massive staircase, with three landings and steps made of a
single block of hinoki cypress each. More modest in scale and casual in design, this upper floor with its magnificent

view over the garden is where the guests came to relax.

More things to look out for in the Mohri Principal Residence (Link to #10.)
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The museum of the Mohri Principal Residence contains four National Treasures, the highest of all classifications for

Japanese cultural artifacts.

Landscape of the Four Seasons (Shikisansuizn) is the work of the celebrated ink painter Sesshu Toyo (1420—15006). From
right to left, the 16-meter-long scroll shows spring, summer, autumn, and winter. The different seasons can be identified
through specific visual cues: plum blossoms for spring, seaside scenes for summer, village festivals for autumn, and

snow for wintet.

Dating from the late Kamakura period (1185-1333), the &oshigatana is a short sword 26.5 centimeters in length that a
samurai would wear pushed directly into their belt as a backup weapon to their long sword. Although there is no

inscription, the workmanship suggests that the sword was made in Taima near Nara.

The Collection of Waka Poems from Past to Present (Kokin Wakashu) is believed to date from the middle of the eleventh
century in the Heian period (794-1185). Just three of the original twenty scrolls survive in full, and this is the eighth in
the series. Written in a graceful, flowing hand and decorated with specks of gold dust and mica, it is a masterpiece of

the kana script.

Shikiryokohongi Daifyn is a history of China. This copy was made in 1073. What makes this example special is the fact

that it was copied and annotated by Oe no Iekuni, an ancestor of the Mohti family.
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A Reliquary and a Record

More than three meters high and 820 kilograms in weight, this massive treasure pagoda (#¢ppoto) dates from 1197. Inside
the pagoda is a small crystal five-ringed tower (gorinto), with the rings symbolizing Earth, Water, Fire, Wind, and Air in
ascending order. The tower contains relics of the Buddha brought back from China by Chogen (1121-1200), the
founder of Amidaji Temple—along with the entire practice of worshipping such relics, known as shari-shinko. The
pagoda itself is the work of Japanese artisans who learned how to cast metal from Chen Heqing, a Chinese craftsman

active in Japan.

The podium features relief inscriptions on all four sides. The single large Sanskrit character in the center indicates a
point of the compass. Meanwhile, the Japanese script provides a detailed record of why and when Amidaji was built,
also listing the temple’s location, the seven buildings that make it up, key equipment (such as the cauldron to heat the

bathwater), a prayer for the well-being of the emperor, and the names of Chogen and important government officials.

This is the oldest treasure pagoda in Japan. Because it displays an extraordinary level of craftsmanship and provides an

important account of Amidaji’s history, it was designated a National Treasure in 1954.
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Hamo Daggertooth Pike Conger Eel

Hofu gives a new lease of life to a traditional Kyoto delicacy

The daggertooth pike conger (bamo) is a species of eel that grows up to two meters long. An aggressive animal with a
pointed head, large mouth, and sharp teeth, it lives close to shore and is found in large numbers in the nutrient-rich
waters at either end of the Inland Sea. Yamaguchi ranks in the top five places in Japan for its hamo catch, with Hofu

having the biggest catch in the prefecture.

Traditionally, however, most of the hamo caught in Yamaguchi were sent to Kyoto, where the fish was prized by the
aristocracy. Even today, bamo remains a must-have dish during Kyoto’s Gion Festival in August. It is prized for its rich

umami and for being fattier than fugu (pufferfish) without being oily.

An old favorite. A new start.
In the early 2000s, the city of Hofu decided to stake a claim to its native fish and develop Aamo into a local specialty to
attract foodie pilgrims. The Tenjin-hamo brand was created and twelve local restaurants formed the Hamo-juku School

to study techniques for cutting the fish—which has 1,200 bones!-—and develop tasty new recipes.

Proximity to the sea means that bamo from Hofu is unusually fresh. Collaboration among restaurants, meanwhile,
guarantees an unusual level of skill, creativity, and innovation among local cooks. Recent Hamo-juku initiatives include

the application of nose-to-tail principles to hamo so that every part—from the swim bladder to the liver—can be eaten.

Hamo has now established itself on Japan’s gourmet map. People come to Hofu not just to see Hofu Tenmangu Shrine

and visit the historic residences of the Mohrti clan, but also to feast like lords on delicious eel.




TENJIN-HAMO EEL QUICK FACTS

* Hamo has 1,200 bones. As a result, it’s very hard to prepare.

* Hamo is so difficult to prepare that Hofu fishmongers used to give it away for free.

* Hamo was a popular seasonal delicacy with the Kyoto aristocracy.

* Hamo season is from mid-May to mid-September—precisely when fugu is not available.

* Hamo in Hofu is far less expensive than in Kyoto—and fresher too.
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The Mohri Principal Residence was built in the early twentieth century just as Japan was establishing itself as one of
the world’s great powers. As a result, the house incorporates a range of modern features that were highly unusual for

the time.

New Technologies

The innovations start literally as soon as you arrive. For example, the great gate at the foot of the drive is built on a
cement foundation—cement was still a novel material in Japan at the time. The house was also the first in the region
to have a telephone, which is why the last four digits of the residence’s telephone number even today are 0001. An

American-made home generator provided electricity, and there was a boiler to provide hot water.

Unusual Imports
In sharp contrast to the closed country under the shogunate, post-1868 Japan was very much plugged into the global
trade network. This is reflected in the fittings of the Mohri Principal Residence. For example, all the lighting fixtures

(which incorporate the family’s floral crest) were custom made in Germany.

Extravagances and Experiments

Plate glass was still a novelty in Taisho period (1912-26) Japan. Having a lot of glass windows was thus one way to
project wealth and status. The two garden-facing floors of the guest wing of the Mohri Principal Residence have no
less than fifteen windows. And in a very unusual—and rather impractical—touch, the amado shutters that are supposed
to protect from wind and rain are actually inside rather than outside the windows! A close look at the glass of the

windows reveals a certain number of bumps, bubbles, and other irregularities. This is probably because the glass was




handmade—first blown, then rolled out flat—rather than today’s machine-made float glass.

Huge Rocks and Ancient Trees
An enormous rock sits beside a Japanese sago palm in the inner garden of the guest wing. For practical reasons, this
rock had to be installed first, and then the house built around it! The unpapered sliding doors in the guest wing are

made of Yakusugi, Japanese Yakushima cedar from trees over 1,000 years old.
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A Staging Post on the Way to Edo

The origins of Eiunso go back to 1654, when it was known as the Mitajiri Teahouse (Mitajiri Ochaya) and had a very
specific function. During the Tokugawa shogunate (1600—-1868), Japan’s feudal lords had to spend every second year in
the shoguns’ capital of Edo, so that the shoguns could keep a watchful eye on them. The local daimyos of the Mohri
clan were no exception. From their base in Hagi Castle, some 50 kilometers from Hofu, they traveled by road to Mitajiri
Port to go to Osaka by sea and thence by road to Edo. Since a daimyo could not very well stay alongside ordinary
people in a normal inn, the Mitajiri Teahouse was built specifically to accommodate the daimyo and his retinue as they

made their way to the capital.

The size of Mitajiri Teahouse fluctuated over the centuries. In the seventeenth century, it shared the site with the offices
of the local administration. When, however, Mohri Shigetaka (1725-1789) decided to retire here, he moved the
administrators out and greatly expanded the residential part of the building. The central, Edo-period (1603—1867) part

of the building dates from 1783, the year Shigetaka moved here.

With the end of the shogunate in 1868, the feudal system was abolished and the daimyo were no longer obliged to
spend every second year in the capital. Having outlived their purpose, most of the daimyo inns in Japan were sold off
or demolished as a result. The Mitajiri Teahouse survived only thanks to the poor health of Duke Mohti Motoakira
(1865-1938). Advised by his doctor that Hofu’s warm climate would do him good, Motoakira lived here until 1916,
when he moved into the Mohti Principal Residence. Subsequently, the Mitajiri Teahouse was used as a second home

by the Mohri family, who would retreat here when important visitors came to stay at the main house.

The villa is a marvelous microcosm of three centuries of Japanese architecture: the part you enter dates from the
Taisho petiod (1912-1926), the central part from the Edo period, and the furthest part from the Meiji period (1868—

1912).




The Mohri family presented the house to the city of Hofu in 1939 for use as a community center, and it was renamed

Eiunso in 1941. After World War 11, it was briefly used as a dance hall by the New Zealand troops who occupied Hofu.

Highlights of the Interior

Goza no Ma

This series of rooms is where Shigetaka used to receive visitors and hold audiences in the eighteenth century. He would
sit in the furthermost room, enjoying the view over the inner garden on one side and the outer garden on the other.
(Special thin pillars are even used to minimize any obstruction to his view!) The details of the room also provide
insights into the social hierarchy. In the room furthest away from the daimyo, for example, the tatami mats have a plain
black border because the less important people sat there. Meanwhile, the corridors for important people have soft,

warm tatami mats underfoot, while those used by servants have bate, cold wooden boards.

Design Notes from the Tea Ceremony

The Mitajiri Teahouse is built in the swkiya-zukuri style, a style inspired by the aesthetics of the tea ceremony and
involving the use of natural, rustic materials. Notice, for example, how the ranma transom screens between rooms are
all of different patterns, and how the 7ageshi decorative tie beams along the walls are rounded (like tree trunks) rather
than flat. The sliding doors in the garden corridor are carved with Chinese poems and made from single sheets of

cedar.

The Second Floor
The second floor has a delightful view over the garden. It also provides an opportunity to look down on the roof,
which is made of delicate hinoki cypress bark. Hinoki-bark roofs must be replaced every thirty years or so, but do a

good job communicating the feel and texture of nature.

Crests Abounding
The crest of the Mohri clan—an omodaka, or three-leaf arrowhead—is in evidence throughout the house. Look for it
on the sliding doors, door pulls, and decorative nailhead covers. The clan chose this crest because the shape of the

flower suggests the sharp tip of a weapon—in fact, it is also known as kachikusa, or “victory flower.”
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A Minister in Life; a God in Death

Deitied as the god Tenjin after his death in 903, Sugawara no Michizane (845-903) was a historical figure from the
Heian period (794-1185). The son of a scholarly aristocrat of middle rank, he rose under Emperor Uda’s patronage to
be Minister of the Right, one of the top positions in the government, through sheer power of intellect rather than
family connections. Michizane’s success eventually aroused the resentment of his more highly-born rivals. As a result,
after Emperor Uda’s abdication in favor of his son, Emperor Daigo, Fujiwara no Tokihara, the Minister of the Left,
invented false charges against Michizane that resulted in his banishment from the court in Kyoto. He was sent to the
city of Dazaifu in Kyushu, which was the seat of government for Kyushu and the place where emissaries from China

and Korea were received.

Before leaving Kyoto, Michizane begged Retired Emperor Uda to help clear his name. The last place Michizane stayed
in Honshu was Hofu, then a provincial government administrative center. Michizane was received kindly because he
had blood ties with the local Haji clan. He also lingered in Hofu because, still hoping that the charges against him would

be dismissed as false, he was reluctant to make the final sea crossing over to Kyushu.

Michizane finally reached Dazaifu in 901 and died in 903, just two years later, of what legend says was a broken heart.
The miracles that occurred in Hofu on the day of his death—a single beam of light shining into the sea, a mysterious
cloud covering the peak of a nearby hill—convinced people that the soul of the man who had never wanted to leave
Hofu and Honshu in the first place had returned in death. If his soul had come back, they reasoned, then it would

need a place to live. That is why the Hofu Tenmangu Shrine was built in 904, just one year after Michizane’s death.
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No.13 Mohti House—Seasonal Flowers <BsAFTH. LLO>
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A Garden for All Seasons
The garden of the Mohri Principal Residence is designed to look beautiful whatever the season. The seasonal notes
begin as soon you pass through the main gate. To the left of the driveway leading up to the house is a double row of

azaleas, which flower in early summer. On the right is a maple forest, the leaves of which turn brilliant red in autumn.

Here is a season-by-season list of the garden highlights.

Spring
Plum blossom: Late February
Cherry blossom: Late March to early April

Yaezakura cherry blossom: ~ Mid-April to end of April

Wisteria: Late April to early May

Azalea: Mid-May to mid-June

Ayame itis: Late May to early June

Japanese water iris: Eatly June to mid-June

Threeleaf arrowhead: Eatly June to September

Summer

Watetlilies: July to October

Autumn

Maples: Mid-November to eatly December

Keep a careful eye out when you are near the old summerhouse by the pond and you may come across omodaka (three-

leat arrowheads), the flowers that the Mohrti family use for one of their crests.
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The Plum and the Ox: Symbols of Legends

The plum and the ox are two key symbols associated with Sugawara no Michizane (845-903), the man who after his
death became Tenjin, the god enshrined at Hofu Tenmangu Shrine. As an aristocratic aesthete of the Heian period
(794-1185), Michizane was a great lover of flowers, plum blossoms in particular. Legend has it that when he was
banished to Kyushu, he first stopped off at his Kyoto mansion to bid farewell to the plum tree in his garden. When
Michizane got to Kyushu, his three favorite varieties of tree—the cherry, plum, and pine—are supposed to have tried
to fly after him. The cherry withered away from loneliness; the pine tried to follow him but ran out of strength; only
the plum tree made it all the way, flourishing and giving comfort to Michizane in his exile. In this way, the plum blossom
became the symbol of Tenjin and appears as the crest of many Tenmangu shrines in Japan. It is also the reason why

there are around 1,100 plum trees in the grounds of Hofu Tenmangu.

In Shinto, every god has their own designated animal servant or messenger. In the case of Michizane, that animal is
the ox—and there is an anecdote that explains why. Michizane died in exile in Dazaifu in Kyushu in 903. Despite his
disgrace, as a man of a certain stature he was still entitled to a grand funeral with an ox-cart to carry his body. As the
funeral cortege was making its way to the burial ground, however, the ox pulling the cart sat down and refused to
budge. This was interpreted to mean that Michizane wished to be buried precisely at that spot. Ever since, the seated
ox has been one of the symbols of Tenjin, the deified Michizane, and it is believed that the deity is enshrined within

seated oxen images. There are three statues of seated oxen at the Hofu Tenmangu.
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Picture Scroll Showing the Origin of Matsuzaki Tenjin in Six Scrolls, Complete with Box

(Matsuzaki Tenjin Engi Emafki Rokkan, Hakotsuki)

This set of six illustrated scrolls tells the life story of Sugawara no Michizane (845-903) and his apotheosis into the
god Tenjin. Placed end to end, the six scrolls measure a total of 75 meters. This set, known as the Kamakura Edition,
dates from 1331. Because it was forbidden to display the scroll outside the shrine, it was seldom exposed to light, and

as a result it is in extraordinarily good condition for something almost seven hundred years old.

The sixth scroll in the series is devoted entirely to the story of Hofu Tenmangu, and the scenes of the shrine in it were
an important reference when the shrine had to be entirely rebuilt after a fire in 1952. The name “Matsuzaki” comes
from the fact that Hofu Tenmangu was originally called Matsuzaki Shrine. It is extremely rare for a scroll this old to

still have its original storage box, hence the mention of the box in its full title.

Picture Scroll Showing the Origin of Matsuzaki Tenjin in Six Scrolls (Muromachi Edjtion)

(Matsuzaki Tenjin Engi Emafki Rokkan)

This set of six illustrated scrolls tells the life story of Sugawara no Michizane (845-903) and his apotheosis into the
god Tenjin. Placed end to end, the six scrolls together measute a total of 75 meters. The Muromachi Edition of the
scrolls was made between 1504 and 1520 and is a copy of the original 1331 Kamakura Edition. The copy was made to
get around a prohibition against displaying the original scrolls outside the shrine. Because it was shown to more people,
the newer copy is actually somewhat less pristine than the older original.

The first five scrolls recount all the classic legends from the life of Michizane, such as him bidding farewell to his plum
tree before going into exile and the ox that pulled his hearse sitting down and refusing to move, but the sixth is devoted

entirely to the story of Hofu Tenmangu.




Copper-Gilt Treasure Pagoda

Treasure pagodas like this contain crystals designed to evoke the sacred relics of the Buddha. In this case, the bones
are represented by a green glass bead. A local official, Fujiwara no Suesuke, presented this 40-centimeter-tall treasure
pagoda to Hofu Tenmangu in 1172. At the time, Japan was in a state of upheaval, with the emperor losing power to
the shoguns. On the pagoda is a prayer for the long life of Retired Emperor Go-Shirakawa, rich harvests in Suo
Province (modern Yamaguchi Prefecture), and the well-being of the people. It is the oldest artifact of known

provenance in all 12,000 Tenjin shrines in Japan.

Temple Bell
This bonshe, or Buddhist temple bell, was struck to announce the hour. Dating from the Kamakura Period (1185-1333),

it was presented to Hofu Tenmangu by Ouchi Yoshitaka, the local daimyo, who looted it in the 1530s from Tenfukuji

Temple in Fukuoka, Kyushu when he was fighting the Shoni clan.
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No.16 Amidaji Temple Hydrangea Festival <BAAFT. LLE>
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Life Lessons from Flowers

In Japan, hydrangeas, or gjisai, are intimately associated with the June rainy season. Because they change color according
to the acidity of the soil, they have another name: shichihenge, or “tlowers that change color seven times.” This has made
them into a symbol of mutability: they teach us that everything in life is uncertain and that we should value each and

every day given to us.

Amidaji Temple has been holding an annual hydrangea festival every June since 1991. The temple grounds are now
planted with around 4,000 hydrangea plants from eighty different varieties. It takes between thirty minutes to an hour
to walk the designated route through the grounds. If you cannot make it in June, the grounds are also beautiful in

November when the leaves turn.
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No.17 Temple Precincts, Kondo Main Hall <BsAF. LLE>

(fEsx] REBEDSF
(BT ERAK] WEB YAk

TEDNOIREERR X

A Temple to Protect from Calamity and Pray for Happiness

Suo Kokubunji was founded in 741 at the decree of Emperor Shomu (701-756). With a reign marked by rebellions,
natural disasters, and epidemics, Emperor Shomu believed that Buddhism could help restore peace and stability to his
realm, and ordered the construction of state-maintained temples, or kokubunji, around Japan. The greatest of these was
Todaiji in Nara, originally known as Yamato no Kokubunji. Sixty-eight of these state-maintained temples were built in
total. In the ensuing 1,300 years, however, most of them collapsed, burned down, or were moved from their original

sites.

Suo Kokubunji is unique in that it still stands in its original precincts (though the temple compound is now slightly
shorter on its east-west axis) and with many of its key buildings still in their original locations. This fact was established
when the main hall, or &ondo, was restored between 1997 and 2004 and the bases of the original pillars were found

directly beneath the present ones.

The main hall was erected in the late eighteenth century by Mohri Shigetaka, which is why the crest of the Mohri clan
is carved into the beams of the £ohai, the roof above the stairs leading into the building, The two-story hip-and-gable
roof makes for a massive and imposing structure. In the restoration, weathered old tiles were used for the front side
of the roof, while newer ones of a uniform color were used on the back. The main hall contains some fifty Buddhist

images, of which the most important is the Healing Buddha.
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No.18 Butsuzo Religious Statues <BsAF. LLE>
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A Host of Heavenly Beings

The Main Statues

There are around fifty butsuzo, or religious statues, in the &ondo main hall. They are arranged hierarchically, with the
Healing Buddha (Yakushi Nyorai) occupying the central position on the main dais as the principal object of worship.
On either side of the Healing Buddha are a Nikko (Sunlight) Bosatsu and Gakko (Moonlight) Bosatsu from the early
Heian period (794-1185). They survived a 1417 fire in which the original Healing Buddha statue was destroyed.
Compassionate beings who have put off their own enlightenment to save others, bosatsu always wear elaborate robes,

with a sash and a crown of sunlight or moonlight.

The statues at either end of the central dais are the four heavenly kings (Shitennd). Originally gods from India, their role
is to guard the faith. They are armed, have a flaming nimbus around their heads, and are trampling devils underfoot.

With their contorted shapes, multiple limbs, and mischievous faces, these devils are well worth a close look.

The turquoise washi paper behind the dais dates from the 1997 — 2004 restoration of the temple. It is decorated with

the crests of the imperial household: the chrysanthemum and the paulownia.

Other statues
In the rear shrine (gjin) are five nyorai from the Muromachi period (1336—1573). Made of wood, except for the one in
the center which is bronze, they used to be in a pagoda that once stood in the temple grounds. The plump and genial-

looking god at the far end of the £gjin is Daikokuten, one of seven lucky gods who bring prosperity and good fortune.

Returning to the inner shrine (naiin), there is an enmeifugenbosatsu supported by four large elephants (and multiple
smaller elephants below them) in the corner. It has twenty arms on the principle that the more limbs a god has, the

morte people it can help. The elephants—not an animal native to Japan—are of a slightly eccentric shape, with elongated




bodies and oversized, human-looking eyes made of crystal.

In the west corner of the inner shrine is 2 wooden statue of a seated monk. This is Kukai, the Buddhist monk who

brought esoteric Buddhism from China to Japan and established Shingon Buddhism on Mt. Koya in Wakayama.
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No.19 Yakushi Nyorai Healing Buddha <BAAFT. LLE>

(fEEx®] REBED ST
(BfETFEEA] WEBBAb

TEDNOIREERR X

The Healing Buddha and the Benefits of This World

The principal image of worship among the fifty effigies in the Main Hall of Suo Kokubunji Temple is Yakwushi Nyorai,
or the Healing Buddha. Both its position in the center of the dais and its size relative to the other statues reflect its
importance. The Healing Buddha saves people from disease, relieves hunger and thirst, meets people’s material needs

and, broadly speaking, provides “benefits of this world” (gense-riyaks).

Made with the joined-wood-block construction technique known as yosegi-zukuri, the Healing Buddha is seated on a
lotus pedestal (a symbol of paradise) with a nimbus behind him that features carvings of the Dainichi Buddha, celestial
nymphs, and fantastic birds. His attire of a simple monk’s robe shows that he has found enlightenment. During the
restoration of the Main Hall between 1997 and 2004, the Healing Buddha was moved. During this process, it was
discovered that the medicine jar in the left hand of the image could be opened—something unique among Yakushi

Nyorai in Japan. The jar’s gilt interior contained a mixture of grains, Chinese medicine, glass, and other minerals.

At the same time, the left hand of the original tenth-century Healing Buddha was found inside the base of the present
one. When the temple burned down in 1417 after a lightning strike, the statue was too large to be carried out, but the
chief priest detached one of its hands and rescued it from the flames. At 64 centimeters in length, it is twice the size

of the hand of the present Yakushi Nyorai, suggesting that the original statue was proportionately bigger.

AR DIRER (HAEEER)

AERENUIR IR F &
RBLEDFORECHDNER 50 AROHRT, ELHEMHREBDILERE. FEPURTY ., BIMEOFRICEZE
SNTHD, RESTHMOARELEE T DETOEEZRNRIRENTOVE Y . FERINR(, FmUDS AZH, HLZE




BRI, ERODBEMEHIZL TNET . INTCHBWTREF 2 bl50E T,

FEMAR(E, VKON DA ZDEEDEIESEGREAM (FAEGLL THBSNTVSESE) ZARVWTESTHD. 7
BHICRIRCKBWE, 20T (CRREMESAMINEESN TOVET . FIZEREMINROEREE(JARDFR L ZRITED
TECBOTVEFY , BRMBIEORZZFICFESLT. EVZRMIUIRTH DI EZRLTVET, 1997 Fh'5
2004 FORITITONIAZ OFMEIRIAR P . EADIRAKEIBZEINIU COIMEDEF(CHFO TV E
FHRFINBLCRD, BAROZERINRTEIELVEONFERENELZ, FORAEFEET, PICFERIATE
FHEVPRFR HSAREDHNNAOTWVZDTY .

BIBF(CS OFEMAFAROERERF I AAINS, 10 HICORERMINRGOEFNIRERINEURL. 1417 F, EE(C
SOFFMNEERUEE  AMENKREBETHIEVH I TENTERN OO TIN HEFOERN EF2REE0
RDITERZRNZDTY . COEFERSH 64cm HD. SOFEMURAMROFLOE 2 FEOKRESHHIFTY .
HBHDAMRFEEREN O TEZRELTVET .

AEELARIDREERRR
U




1045

No.20 Romon Gate <BpAFTh. LLO>
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Two-Story Gate with Guardians

Traditionally, Buddhist temples were built on a north-to-south axis, with the main entrance at the south end of the
temple precincts. This two-story gate (romon) with a hip-and-gable roof forms the southern entrance to the temple.
First constructed in 1596 by the local daimyo Mohti Terumoto, the gate was completely rebuilt by another member of

the family, Mohri Shigenari, in 1767. The gate is a decade or two older than the main hall.

On either side of the gate stand two muscular, terror-inspiring guardians known as Nio (two kings) or Kongo Rikishi
(mighty wrestlers) dating back to the Muromachi period (1336—1573). Their role is to protect the temple and the religion
of Buddhism. The inside of the gate is decorated with carvings of vegetables and ears of rice to promote rich harvests.

The current gate was repaired once in 1911 and then dismantled, restored, and rebuilt in 1956.
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No.21 Shotendo Temple <BsAF. LLE>
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Temple of Good Luck

In the west corner of the Suo Kokubunji Temple compound stands the Shotendo. This modestly-sized temple was
completed in 2008. The original Shotendo was built by the local daimyo Mohri Yoshihiro in 1702. Shoten is a god who
provides people with health, prosperity in business, harmonious marriage, and good fortune overall. He is derived from
the Indian god Ganesha, whom Kannon, the Goddess of Mercy, converted from a destructive deity to a benign god
who protects the faith and keeps harm at bay. The temple exterior features charming sculptures of lion-dogs and
elephants. The intetior of the gohai roofed entrance features some straightforward symbols of prosperity and luck, such

as gold bars, a key, and Buddhist prayer beads. The ideogram just above the beads reads “‘fukx,” meaning “luck.”
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No.22 Hamo Preparation and Dishes <BsAF. LLE>
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Hamo Daggertooth Pike Conger Eel

A fish that’s as difficult to prepare as it’s delicious to eat

A Technical Challenge

The daggertooth pike conger eel, or hamo, has an astonishing 1,200 bones. Despite being a seasonal delicacy for Kyoto
aristocrats, hamo was seldom eaten by ordinary families because few people had the know-how or equipment to cook
it for themselves. To prepare hamo, you first need an unusually large, heavy, and expensive knife. This special knife is
around thirty centimeters long, six centimeters wide, and made of two kinds of steel. You must then cut the bones
with extreme precision, making eight cuts per centimeter to crush the bones and render them edible. Since the hamo
season lasts only five months a year, practice time is limited and mastering the technique takes five years or more. Even

the most expert cook needs around 15 minutes to cut the bones and prepare a single daggertooth pike conger eel.

The Full Monty

During hamo season from Mid-May to mid-September, restaurants in Hofu serve a full-course hamo meal with ten
courses, eight of which feature hamo. During this meal, each guest will consume an entire fish. Hamo shabu-shabu,
when you briefly switl the fish in a pot of simmering water to cook it, offers a wonderful contrast of textures—soft
white flesh, chewy collagen-rich skin, and crisp vegetables as well. It is also a feast for the eye, with the flesh switling

and swelling like a many-petalled peony as it cooks.

True gourmets will also appreciate hamo sashimi, a very labor-intensive dish. To make it possible to eat hamo raw, the
cook has to make a series of diagonal cuts into the body and extract the bones with pincers. The restaurants in Hofu
have also worked together to develop unique regional recipes such as fried #anban-marinated hamo, hamo swim bladder,

and raw hamo liver with sesame oil and salt.
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No.23 Eiunso Garden, Kagetsuro Teahouse, Suikinkutsu <BpAFTH. LE>
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A Garden Inspired by Chinese Art

Dating from the 1780s, the garden of Eiunso is contemporary with the central, Edo-period part of the villa built by
Mohri Shigetaka (1725-1789). The focal point is a pond designed to evoke China’s Dongting Lake, a famous site for
its beauty and a popular theme for Chinese painters. The rocks in the garden were collected from all over Yamaguchi.
Of particular note are the tortoise stone (&ame-ishi) just beside the stone lantern at one end of the island, and the stone

water basin (chogubachi) incorporated into the far bank of the pond.

Suikinkutsu: Japanese Water Music

One interesting feature just beside the veranda of the central part of the house is the s#ikinkutsu dating from the 1780s.
When a ladleful of water from the stone basin is emptied onto the black stones at its base, the water filters through the
stones and produces a musical tinkle as it drips down. This is because an earthenware pot with a hole in its base is
buried upside-down beneath the stones. The sides of the pot form an echo chamber, which amplifies the sound of the

drops landing on the pool of water below.

It is called a suikinkutsn, or “water koto cave,” because the sounds it produces supposedly resemble the notes of the
koto, a stringed musical instrument often called the Japanese harp. Like a wind chime, the sound is supposed to be

cooling and refreshing,

A Teahouse Within a Teahouse
In one corner of the garden sits the Kagetsuro Teahouse. Originally built in the precincts of Suo Kokubunji Temple
in 1786, it was dismantled and rebuilt here in 1888. Kagetsu refers to an eighteenth-century style of tea ceremony

conducted by five people in an eight-mat tatami room. The Kagetsuro Teahouse has a range of different room sizes,




allowing it to accommodate up to thirty people and a variety of tea ceremony styles.
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Family Treasure Trove
As one of Japan’s most important feudal families for many centuries, the Mohri clan accumulated many treasures. The
Mohrti Museum has a collection of some 20,000 items, which are displayed in a series of rotating exhibitions throughout

the year.

Although most famous for its four National Treasures, the museum contains many other interesting and valuable pieces.
For instance, there is a famous letter written to his three sons by Mohri Motonari, the sixteenth-century daimyo under
whom the clan achieved its greatest power. In the letter, Motonari advises the three of them to act in unison because

“one arrow by itself can be broken, but three arrows bound tightly together cannot.”

The collection also includes a wealth of historically important documents from the latter half of the nineteenth century,

when the shogunate fell into decline and eventually made way for restored imperial rule.
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Gojin-kosai: A Festival to Commemorate a Pardon

Every shrine in Japan has its own festival, and Hofu Tenmangu is no exception. The Gojin-kosai Festival has its roots
in the origin story of Hofu Tenmangu. Tenjin, the god enshrined here, is the deified Sugawara no Michizane (845—
903), an aristocratic administrator from the latter half of the ninth century who was exiled to Kyushu whete he died,

disgraced and unpardoned, in 903.

The Gojin-kosai Festival commemorates the events of the year 1004, when Emperor Ichijo finally issued a decree
pardoning Michizane, 101 years after his death. The imperial messenger bearing the document arrived at Katsuma no
Ura, the local harbor, now some distance inland after land reclamation. (This was the same harbor where Michizane
had arrived when he came to Hofu in 901.) Every year, on the fourth Saturday in November, a boisterous crowd of
thousands pulls a huge wheeled portable shrine housing Tenjin down the shrine steps to the site of the old harbor

some 2.5 kilometers from the shrine. A ceremony takes place and the shrine is then pulled back again.

The festival is also known as the hadakabo-matsuri, the naked monk festival, because many of the participants wear only

a white loin cloth, their nakedness symbolizing the idea of serving the god in a pure and natural state.

Another reason for shrine festivals is that the gods can get weary responding to people’s requests day in, day out, so
when a crowd of believers take the god out of the shrine precincts and give his spirit a good shaking, it reinvigorates
him and provides him with the energy to deal with another yeat’s worth of prayers and requests from his human

supplicants.
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Most Powerful Warlords in Western Japan

By the late sixteenth century, the Hiroshima-based Mohri clan were the most powerful warlords in the Chugoku area
(the modern prefectures of Hiroshima, Okayama, Shimane, Tottori, and Yamaguchi). Under Mohri Motonari (1497—
1571), the clan reached the zenith of its power, controlling a domain that stretched from the border of modern-day

Okayama Prefecture in the east down to Fukuoka Prefecture in the west.

This dominance, however, was short-lived. When Motonari’s grandson Terumoto supported the losing side in the Battle
of Sekigahara in 1600, the victorious Tokugawa Ieyasu punished him by reducing his domain to a quarter of its original
size. Forced out of Hiroshima, the clan built a new castle in 1604 at Hagi on the Sea of Japan side of modern-day

Yamaguchi Prefecture. This was the origin of the Choshu Domain also known as the Hagi Domain.

Choshu and the Meiji Restoration

The Mohrti clan presided over Choshu until around 1870, when Japan’s warlords were forced to surrender their domains
to the emperor, and the feudal system made way for today’s prefectural system. In the early years of the Meiji period
(1868-1912), the former daimyo were made to live in Tokyo to loosen their bonds with their people and to prevent
them stirring up trouble. By the late 1880s, however, things had settled down sufficiently that then-head of the family
Duke Mohrti Motonoti could leave Tokyo and return to Yamaguchi. Motonori instructed one of his followers to find
a suitable location for a grand modern residence. The place that he found was at the bottom of Mt. Tatara overlooking
the plain of Hofu. It had a warm climate, a spectacular view of the Inland Sea, and was close to the port. (There was

no railway until 1904.)

In 1892 Motonorti gave the go-ahead and the family started buying up patcels of land and stockpiling wood. However,

construction was delayed by the First Sino-Japanese War (1894-1895) and then by the Russo-Japanese War (1904—




1905). Once building work finally got under way in 1912, the house was completed in five years. As Motonori had died
in 1896, Duke Mohri Motoakira (1865—1938) was the first member of the family to live in the house, taking occupancy

in 1916.
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Nio-mon: An Ancient Gate

This Edo-period (1603—1867) gate with its thatched roof is the oldest building in the entire Amidaji Temple complex.
It was built in 1685 by Mohri Narinobu, the local daimyo, to replace the original thirteenth-century gate that had
collapsed more than a century earlier. The present gate has the same design and dimensions as its predecessor. The
gate gets its name from the Nio—literally two kings, the pair of muscular, fear-inspiring guardians who stand on either
side of it. (Interestingly, the thatch on the roof has to be replaced every twenty-five years on the south side of the gate,

but every ten to fifteen years on the north side, where it gets less sunlight and stays damp longer.)

Kongo Rikishi: Two Terrifying Guardians

Referred to either as Nio (two kings) or as Kongo Rikishi (mighty wrestlers), these figures are often found standing guard
at temple gates. Traditionally, the statue on the right has his mouth open making an “a” sound, while the one on the
left has his mouth closed to make an “um” sound. Like alpha and omega in Christianity, this combination connotes
balance and completeness. Traces of vermilion paint show where the wood blocks that make up the statues are joined.
The craftsmanship is extraordinary. The dynamic details—the popping veins, heaving rib cages, and switling robes—
are typical of Kaikei, the sculptor who created them. Weighing 340 kilograms, and 2.7 meters (right) and 2.75 meters

(left) tall, the statues date from the early Kamakura period (1185-1333). Imposing though they are, they are modest in

comparison to the similar guardians Kaikei made for Todaiji Temple in Nara, which are over eight meters in height.
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Hagi Castle, also known as Shizuki Castle, was built in 1604 by the Mori clan. The Moti clan were the
rulers of the Choshu domain and were part of an alliance against shogun Tokugawa Ieyasu (1543—1616) at the end
of the Sengoku period (1467-1568). Ieyasu’s victory at the Battle of Sekigahara in 1600 gave him the power to force
the Mori to move to Hagi from their capital of Hiroshima. Despite being sent far from central Japan to a sparsely
populated backwater where they were unlikely to threaten the Tokugawa shogunate, the Mori were able to turn Hagi
from a remote delta into a major city. Hagi Castle was their stronghold until the late nineteenth century when they
left to join the new Meiji government. In 1874 the government dismantled it and many other castles to clearly show
that the age of samurai rule had ended. The grounds of the dismantled castle were made into a city park and were
registered as a World Heritage Site as part of the “Sites of Japan’s Meiji Industrial Revolution: Iron and Steel,
Shipbuilding and Coal Mining” inscription in 2015.

The park contains several gardens, a Shinto shrine to the Mori family built in 1878, and a teahouse that was
moved here in 1889. In spring, over 500 Yoshino cherry trees make this a perfect spot for hanami, the custom of

celebrating the seasonal change and appreciating the blossoming flowers with an outdoor picnic.

Hagi Castle was organized into the following sections:
- The Hon Maru, the inner ring of defense of the castle and the location of its main keep and living quarters
- The Tsume Maru, a small fortress inside the Hon Maru on top of Mount Shizuki
- The Ni no Maru, the middle ring of defense that contained various gardens, temples, and shrines
- The San no Maru, the outermost ring of defense and the residential area for high-ranking samurai, beyond

which lay the area for tradesmen that comprised the castle town
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Hagi castle was built by Lord M6ri Terumoto in 1604. It was constructed on both flatlands and mountainous areas and
included three rings of defenses, with a fortress on the top of Mount Shizuki.

The main keep was situated at the foot of the mountain, but was dismantled in 1874. Today, only the stone walls and
one part of the moat remain.

The ruins are designated as a National Historical Site.

In spring 500 trees of Yoshino cherry bloom in the park.
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The Mori ruled the Choshu domain (modern-day Yamaguchi) during the Edo period (1603—1867). After
being forced to move to Hagi in 1603 they built Hagi Castle here in 1604. The castle stood for over 250 years as the
center of the Mori family’s power. Situated at the foot of Mount Shizuki, Hagi Castle was designed to be especially
difficult to capture—it was protected by three moats, large stone walls, several gates, countless guardhouses, and the
entire upper-class samurai district. Even if attackers breached these defenses, at the very top of Mount Shizuki was a
small fortress where defenders could make a final stand.

However, with the end of samurai rule in 1868—a change that the Mozi helped cause—the lords of Hagi
not only relinquished control of their domain and castle, but led the way in removing symbols of the past: the main
tenshn, or keep, was torn down in 1874, and in following years the castle’s land was sold off by the Meiji government.

The area once occupied by Hagi Castle is designated as a National Historic Site (1951) and is registered as
one of the UNESCO World Heritage Sites known as the “Sites of Japan’s Meiji Industrial Revolution” (2015). It is

now open for public use as Shizuki Park.
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The Hananoe or “flower creek” tea house was built in 1854 by Mori Takachika (1819—1871), the thirteenth
lord of the Choshu domain. It was originally located along the Hashimoto River within the San no Maru, the
outermost part of Hagi Castle. Takachika would often have lively debates and political discussions during his tea
ceremonies.

In 1889, the Hananoe tea house was purchased by a local group led by former samurai Shinagawa Yajiro

(1843-1900) and was moved here to the vacant castle grounds for preservation.
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The "Hananoe" tea house was built in approximately 1845 inside the “Hananoe" palace, which was built along the
Hashimoto River at “Sannomaru" by the Takachika Morti, the 13th warlord of the Mori clan. It is said that many
political discussions between the watlords and vassals wete held around 1860. In 1889, the "Hananoe" tea house was

purchased by Yajiro Shinagawa and others, and moved to the current location in Shizuki Park. The tea house contains

a four and one half mat-sized tea room and a three-mat sized "Mizuya" washing place.
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The Mori gave up their castle and left Hagi shortly after the Meiji Restoration of 1868. The shogunate had
been replaced by a new political structure that was centered around the emperor, and samurai families across the
country relinquished their titles and land. In 1878 the people of Hagi built Shizukiyama Shrine on the grounds of the

former castle to show their devotion and gratitude to the Mori. Five of the Mori lords are enshrined here.
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Constructed in 1878, this shrine is located close to the inner bailey of Hagi Castle. Five of the Hagi Domain Feudal

Lotds ate enshrined here, including Méri Motonari, one of the most powerful watlords of the Sengoku period. Festivals

are held here every year in April and October.
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The Kikuya family can trace their lineage back to the nobles of Settsu province (today part of both Osaka
and Hyogo Prefecture) during the early Northern and Southern Courts period (1336—1392). During the eatly sixteenth
century they were retainers of the Ouchi, a family who ruled several provinces in western Honshu from the castle town
of Yamaguchi. The Ouchi were eliminated by the Mori in the 1550s, after which the Mori became the principal power
in the region. With no family to serve, the Kikuya family renounced their samurai status and became merchants.

Even though merchants were the lowest social class, the Kikuya remained one of the domain’s preeminent
families. In 1600, the Kikuya helped raise money for Mori Terumoto (1553—-1625) and his retainers to return to
Hiroshima from Kyoto after their side’s loss at the battle of Sekigahara. It was at this critical moment that the Kikuya
family proved themselves as one of the Morti’s greatest allies. With their defeat, the Mori were forced to move their
capital from Hiroshima to Hagi. The Kikuya came with them and helped to transform Hagi into the new center of the
Mori family’s political and economic power. As a reward for their loyalty, the Kikuya were given the plot of land where
their expansive residence has stood for over 400 years.

The Kikuya aided the development of Hagi by bringing merchants, craftsmen, and samurai in great numbers.
Soon, Hagi was the tenth-largest town in Japan with a population of over 30,000. Many of the domain’s foot soldiers
and middle-ranking retainers lived in a neighborhood that the Kikuya built to the north of their own residence. Even
the town’s beach came to be called Kikuyahama, or “Kikuya Beach.”

For their service to the Mori the Kikuya were granted the title of goyofatsu, or official merchants to the Mori
family. They also received the hereditary post of machidoshiyori, charged with the town’s government and upkeep. The
Mori lords and their retainers often visited the Kikuya home to do business or relax. In this way, the Kikuya built not
only a great fortune but a reputation as one of the new city’s most important families. When officials from the

shogunate visited Hagi, they were often housed in the Kikuya mansion.
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The genealogy of the Kikuya family can be traced to Tsumori Settsu no kami Kunikazu Ason (Settsu no kami is the
title for a lord of Settsu province --present day Osaka- and Ason indicates a court noble) who was head priest of the
Sumiyoshi Shrine in Settsu province in the eatly period of Northern and Southern Dynasties (1336-1392). Later in the
medieval era his successors served the Ouchi clan and settled in Yamaguchi. With the downfall of the Ouchi clan the
Kikuya family abandoned the rank of samurai, wartior class, to become chonin, merchant class. At that time it acted
as the leading family of the 48 towns of Yamaguchi. In the twelfth year of Eiroku (1519) when Teruhiro Ouchi who
was assisted by Sorin Otomo (1530-1587), a Christian feudal lord, made an attack on Yamaguchi, the Kikuya family
distinguished itself in the war by leading the people of the 48 towns in the defense of Konomine Castle in which they
were besieged. The Kikuyas received the citation for gallantry from the hand of Motonari Mori, the reigning feudal
lord of Yamaguchi and the surrounding area.

Immediately after the battle of Sekigahara (1603), on hearing that Terumoto Mori was short of funds for his
homecoming to Hiroshima from Fushimi in Kyoto, the Kikuyas helped to meet his immediate needs by raising money
for him. Up to this point, the Kikuya family had held the name of Tsumori as their family name, but it was then changed
into Ishikawa and still later into Kikuya.

When Terumoto Morti came into Hagi to make it his stronghold in the ninth year of Keicho (1604), the Kikuyas were
given their residential site in the present place. They made a great contribution to the readjustment of town lots and
streets, building houses for both Hanshi (samurais of middle class) and ashigaru (samurais of lower class) on
Akogahama beach. The beach came to be called Kikuya Hama which was later called Kikuga Hama. After that the
Kikuyas held a hereditary appointment in an office of Odoshiyori with official control and responsibility of the
government and upkeep of the town of Hagi, Mori's castle town. They also held the post of Goyotatsu (the purveyor
to the Mori clan). Their residence was often designated Honjin (formerly an inn for daimyo, feudal lords) for Gojyoshi,
alternative delegates from the Shogun. It was also often used as offices of the Mori clan dealing with lawsuits, welfare

and similar matters.
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The Kikuya residence is one of the oldest and best-preserved merchant houses in Japan. Little has been
changed since the latter half of the Edo period (1751-1867), and the site has been nationally recognized as an
Important Cultural Property by the Agency for Cultural Affairs.

Five buildings in the residence have been fully restored and are designated as Important Cultural Properties:
the main residential building (om0ya), the main storehouse (hongura), the treasure house (kanegura), the kitchen area
(kamaba), and the rice granary (komegura). Together these indicate the Kikuya family’s wealth and the many functions
of their residential compound, which served simultaneously as a home, storefront, warehouse, and community meeting
place. The omoya in particular has been consistently in use since its construction sometime between 1652 and 1657.

The home has several entrances. These were built in accordance with the social rules of the Edo period that
dictated which entrances a person could use on the basis of their class and individual importance. The nagaya mon, for
example, was only used when welcoming distinguished guests from the shogunate.

The residence is filled with displays of Edo-period artifacts from the Kikuya family’s vast collection. Objects

such as cooking pots and utensils are also on display to give a sense of the Kikuya family’s day-to-day lives.
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As valuable cultural assets designated by the national government, five buildings have been restored: "Omoya", the

main residential building, "Hon Gura", the main storehouse, "Shin Gura", the treasurchouse, “Kamaba", the Kitchen

area with the hearths to cook rice in and "Kome Gura" , the rice granary.




According to old documents and family records preserved by the 'family, "Omoya", the residence is estimated to have
been built in the eleventh year of Keicho (16006), which is two years after the residential site was bestowed on the
Kikuyas in 1604. Terumoto Mori, the lord was invited to the celebration on the completion of the buildings. The whole
structute is one of Japan's oldest extant examples of a merchant's house. Storehouses and outbuildings are important
in that they form a "yashiki" (residence) style. "Shoin" and "Nagaya Mon gate have been restored to their original state

and as a result structure of a large scale merchant house has been maintained.
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This large garden is the shinniva “new garden,” and was built during the Meiji period (1868—1912). The river
which runs through the garden has always been dry and is filled with stones arranged to resemble the flow of a river.
Unlike the inner garden opposite the shoin, which was built during the Edo Period (1603-1867), this garden is intended
to be walked through. The garden contains a variety of different plants, and the grass was added after World War II.

FECAEERXDIRER (HAEEER)

FRELMHEINZCOILVERS. BIERHME (1868-1912) (B THNI. STFRHMSOREDOKRIHAICFERTELS
FRERBDRFOFGEEERERT, EZRN3)& ERICEREDEN JIEHNLRBCLIN S TER
INELBO TV CORRTFN DEARZRU TS, CORECFZIELAROEYINMER SN 35 IR HFRAEIR(C
ZEnEmMEns.

ARBELIBIOREEMRR X
U




1060

No.8 Study (Shoin) <gkr, LWOE>
(MEse] REFREE
(BT EEA] /CSILyk

TEHNOIERFERRE

Kikuya residence’s study, known in Japanese as a shoin, was built around 1651 as the primary reception area
for honored guests. The current structure is a late twentieth-century reconstruction. The shoin looks out onto a
traditional Japanese garden designed in the &aresansui (dry landscape) style.

In the center of the garden is the kago-oki-ishi, a large, flat stone on which a £ago, or palanquin, would be
placed. A guest important enough to merit such transport would have first entered through the onarinon to the
garden’s left and could then enter the shozn from the wooden veranda. The veranda is made from zelkova wood, a
luxury item that lower-class townsfolk were forbidden to use. The veranda was usually covered with cedar boards, but
when important visitors came these would be removed to reveal the zelkova boards underneath.

The garden’s plants are selected and arranged so that the garden will remain beautiful throughout the year.
The maples light up in red and yellow in the autumn, while the pine are a rich green in all seasons. The stones are

positioned to make the garden seem larger to a viewer seated in the shoin.
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Shoin or Drawing Room
From the old documents in the family's possession, it is estimated that this structure was built in the fourth year of

Keian (1651). Visitors from the shogunate were place for various offices of the Mori clan. The present building is a

reconstruction based on the old drawing,
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The omoya zashiki is the reception suite of the main residential building and an early example of the sukiya
gukuri style of Japanese residential architecture. The term sukiya originally referred to buildings that were used for tea
ceremonies and evoked its refined tastes. The term su#kiya zukuri has since come to denote an informal variant of the
shoin style that incorporates teahouse aesthetics and has been used in the homes of the wealthy beginning in the Edo
petiod. The family’s main business was conducted in the cboba, literally the “ledger room,” and the doma (the “earth
space”). The compacted earth floor of the doma serves as a transitional area between the indoor and outdoor spaces

of a traditional Japanese home.
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The earth-floored area has five layers with a depth of 50cm. Each layer represents an increase in the elevation of the
road which has been reconstructed five times since the 9th year of Keicho (1604) up to the present day. The stone on

which shoes were taken off and three pieces of the roof tile were excavated from the earliest layer, When the present

building was restored to the original state, it was built over the first layer of 1604 with the elevation of 30cm.
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The hongura, or main warehouse, was first built in the Edo period (1603—1867). The current building is
likely a nineteenth-century reconstruction and is now used as a display area for the Kikuya family’s private collection
of artifacts.

According to a carved inscription found on one of the metal ornaments hanging from the eaves, the
kanegnra, or treasure house, was constructed in 1825. The five-sided stone chamber embedded in the center of the
room was designed as an extremely secure place for the Kikuya family’s greatest treasures. It would be covered with
another stone slab and hidden to protect it from fire, water and theft. Now the &anegura is used as an additional

display area for books and historic documents from the Edo period.
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Hon Gura or the Main Storehouse and Shin Gura (KKane Gura or the Treasure House).

According to the old family map, "Hon Gura" was built on the present site quite eatly, but the present building is
presumed to have been rebuilt in the second half of the 19th century.

The date of this building is presumed to be 1825. A carved inscription can be found on one of the metal ornaments

hanging from the eaves that bears the 8th year of Bunsei (1825). A tile floor for the first floor and a cellar

constructed of stone are unique in a building of this age.
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Tokoji is a temple of the Obaku School of Japanese Zen Buddhism, which came to Japan in the
seventeenth century with the arrival of a Buddhist monk and philosopher named Ingen. Tokoji was built in 1691 by
the Mori clan, who ruled the Choshu Domain (modern day Yamaguchi Prefecture) from 1603 to 1867. The large
cemetery behind the temple contains the graves of odd-numbered generations of the Mori lords, beginning with the
third generation. The graves are surrounded by hundreds of stone lanterns which each represent one of the lord’s
retainers. The temple grounds also contain several buildings nationally recognized as Important Cultural Properties.
The spirituality that these buildings express through a unique blend of Chinese-influenced architecture and

craftsmanship has made Tokoji among the most highly regarded Buddhist temples in the region.
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Founded in 1691, Tokoji is a temple of the Obaku School of Japanese Zen Buddhism. It is one of the
temples built by the Moti clan, lords of the town of Hagi and the Choshu domain (modern-day Yamaguchi Prefecture)
during the Edo period (1603—-1867).

The Mori were already devotees of the similar Rinzai School of Zen Buddhism when Obaku was brought
from China during the mid-seventeenth century, and they quickly adopted the new school upon its arrival. They also
began practicing a Chinese style of burial called shobokuso which mandates the separation of the graves of the odd and
even generations. Starting with the third generation, the odd-numbered generations of Mori lords and their families
were buried here at Tokoji alongside more than 500 stone lanterns. These lanterns were donated by their vassals as a
show of loyalty. The first lord and the even-numbered lords are buried at Daishoin, another Moti clan temple on the
other side of Hagi.

Within Tokoji’s grounds are several nationally recognized Important Cultural Properties, including the outer
gate (somon), main gate (sanmon), bell tower (shoro), and main hall (daiyn hoden). These buildings all represent a unique
form of Chinese-influenced architecture, craftsmanship, and spirituality that make Tokoji singular among the Buddhist

temples in Yamaguchi.
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Tokoiji is one of the family temples of the Mori feudal clan which was founded by an Obaku zen Priest named Egoku

Domyo-Zenji. You can see more than 500 stone lanterns which were dedicated by Moti vassals. This temple was




founded in 1691 and the construction influenced by Chinese style.

(D SOMON (outer gate/Built in 1693) Important cultural property. This small gate has a Chinese styled roof,
crowned with MAKARASs (imaginary fish).

(@ HOKYOINTO This stupa was built for deceased people of the Mori clan.

(3 SANMON (main gate/Built in 1811) Important cultural property. SANMON literally Means

"The Three Gates”. Buddhism says "there are three gates of emancipation and they are KU nothingness. MUSO
formlessness MUSAKU no-acting”.

@ SHORO (bell tower/Built in 1694) Important cultural property. There is a big bell and a big dharma drum on the
second floor of this tower. The big bell was made by the Gunji-family in 1694.

(® DAIOHODEN (main hall/ Built in 1698) Important cultural property. Enshrines a statue of
Shakyammi-Budda flanked by two disciples, Ananda and Kasyapa. The Obaku Zen School has its roots in the Ming-
Dpynasty, so the priests chant standing in Chinese, therefore there are no tatami mats in this hall.

(6 KAIPAN This large wooden fish was struck to announce meals and services.

@ HOJO HOJO literally means abbot's chamber. This building was also used as a resting room for the Mori lords.
ONIGAWARA The function of these decorated roof tiles is to guard and protect from evil one.

© TOMBS OF MEIJTI RESTORATION LEADERS This is the place where four leaders and eleven samurais are
buried.

TOMBS OF MORI LORDS The majestic, austere tombs of five Mori Lords (all odd-numbered generations

except the first one) are situated up the stone pathway flanked by nearly 500 moss covered stone lanterns offered by

vassals.

@ TOMB OF MICHIAKI KATORI He is second son of Motohiko Katori.
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At the upper end of this cemetery are the graves of the odd-numbered (third, fifth, seventh, ninth, and
eleventh) generations of the lords of the Mori and their wives. In front of each pair of graves is a stone pillar recording
the achievements of the lord and lady buried beneath it. Near the top of these pillars, the male crest (one line, three
dots) and female crest (three-leaf arrowhead leaves) of the Mori family are engraved. The pillars sit upon stone turtles,
each with a unique face.

Surrounding these graves are hundreds of stone lanterns. Each was paid for by a retainer of the Mori to
show his devotion. On August 15th the lanterns are lit, and their holes covered with paper as part of Obon, a Buddhist

festival honoring ancestral spirits.
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In Tokoji mausoleum there are 10 graves, including the five watlords of the Hagi Clan (the third, fifth, seventh, ninth,
and eleventh ones), their wives, family members, and other related personages. Outside of the gate there are a Houjyo
pond, a bridge made of stone, and the graves of the participants in the Meiji Restoration. The graves of the wartlords,
wives, and the related persons are shaped into rectangular pillars with “Karahafu” roofs on them. These roofs are
higher on the corners than center. The crest of the Mori family is engraved on the grave stone on the warlords and
their wives.

The aforementioned three mausoleums provide invaluable information of the customs of the burial methods for the

watlord and his family in the Edo era.
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This somon, or outer gate, is the entrance to Tokoji Temple, an Obaku Zen Buddhist temple built in 1691 by

the Morti clan. Obaku Zen was brought from China to Japan in the seventeenth century. The somon, like the rest of
Tokoji, is built using a unique mixture of Japanese and Chinese architectural styles. The roof of the gate and its metal
ornamentation are Chinese; the decorative terminal roof tiles depict makara, a mythical fish of Indian origin. These
appear in place of the more typical shachiboko, a mythical animal from Japanese folklore with the head of a tiger and
the body of a carp. This water-related ornamentation is meant to protect the wooden gate from fire. The gate’s red
color is achieved using a mineral-based dye called benigara. ‘To the right is a stele forbidding entry to visitors who have
consumed alcohol or eaten vegetables like garlic, onions or leeks. This prohibition is common to all Zen Buddhist

temples, as strong-smelling vegetables and addictive substances are believed to obstruct the way to enlichtenment.
ples, g g veg y g
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Gokokuzan Tokoji Temple is established in 1691 by Yoshinari Mori, the third watlord of the Hagi (Choshu) Clan. It is
one of the most famous temples of Oubaku Zen Buddhism. The first monk in charge of this temple was Egoku, from
Hagi. The picture of "Gokukuzan" painted by this monk, deocrates the front face of the temple main gate. This main
gate has four thick pillars and eight thinner ones. This gate also has two entrace halls that constitute a structure called
the "Sangen Niko Hakkyaku". The roof is shaped in the "Kirizumazukuri" structure with a higher central part. The
roof is shaped in the roof is decorated with "Makara", a roof deocration that is characteristic of the main gates of

Oubaku Zen Buddhism.




1067

No.15 Daio Hoden (Main Building) <Fkri. LLAOE>

(sl RIESF
(BT ERK] =Rtk

TEDNOIREERR X

Built in the late seventeenth century, the daio hoden is the main building of Tokoji Temple where the monks
conduct rituals to honor Buddhist deities. The main statue (bongon) of this hall depicts the historical Buddha,
Shakyamuni, but the hall also contains other statues which were collected from buildings that have since been destroyed.

The hall contains several elements unique to the Obaku Zen school that indicate its Chinese heritage: the
statues are all hand-carved by monks in the Chinese style. Instead of being covered with fafami mats as would be typical
in a Japanese building, the floor is fatakz, packed lime plaster and clay. Rather than kneeling to recite their prayers,
Obaku Zen monks pray while standing. Even the coffered ceiling is characteristic of Obaku Zen in the resemblance it

bears to Chinese architecture.
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Daiohoden is the main building at Tokoji temple, constructed by the fourth Hagi Domain Lord, Mori Yoshihiro. This
building houses a Buddha statue and has an open space under the overhang of the roof. The area is 289.61m2. The
tiled roof is in the gabled style, featuring a hoshu roof decoration at the center, and deocrative shachihoko carp to

cither end. The doma floor is a mixture of trampled lime plaster and clay. The latticed ceiling is characteristic of Obaku

Zen Buddhism, but the details are reminiscent of ancient China.
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This main gate, called the sanmon (lit. “three gates”) was built 121 years after Tokoji Temple’s establishment
in 1691. The name relates to a Buddhist teaching about the three gates to enlightenment—emptiness, formlessness,
inaction—and is an essential component of all Zen temples.

In the center is a slightly raised line of stone. This is the boundary that marks the entrance to the temple’s
holy precinct. To the right and left of the central gate are dedications to the temple and gate that were inscribed after
their construction. Stuck to the gate itself are votive slips called senjafuda (lit. “thousand shrine tags”) which bear the
names of visitors to the temple. On the sides of the main gate are stairs leading to the structure’s second floor, which
contains eighteen statues of rakan, trainees on the way to enlightenment. On the gate’s opposite side is a sign whose
text references an Indian legend about donating land to a temple as a show of devotion to the Buddha. This alludes to

the Mori clan’s generosity in providing the land on which the temple was built.
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The "Sanmon" Gate was built by the tenth watlord of the Clan, Natihiro Mori in 1812 (121 years after the establishment
of Tokoji Temple.). The "Sanmon" Gate is a two-storied gate with a double-structured roof that is called
"Irimoyasukuti". : a roof on which four faced roof tiles are placed under the aforementioned Kirizuma-shaped roof.
The roof exemplifies the Shinto-shrine roof called "Honkawarabuki," and it has flat roof tiles connected by
ovetlapping half-cylinder shape roof tiles. On the central part of the roof, a roof decoration called "Robantsuki Houju"
is placed. On the second story there eighteen "Rakan" trainee Buddhist statues and a Buddhist statue of "Rushanbutsu."
The overall structure of this gate is similar to the styles of ancient China. This gate is a superb example of a Sanmon

of a rural temple built in the late Edo era.
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This bell tower is thought to have been built shortly after the main portion of Tokoji was constructed, in the
late seventeenth century. The tower’s upper story contains a large bronze bell as well as a dharma drum. The bell was
cast by the Gunji family, who were local craftsmen, and donated by the fourth Mori lord. The bell’s surface is inscribed
with the name of Tokoji’s first abbot, Engoku. At Tokoji, the bell and drum are now used only during year-end
ceremonies. At temples with more resident monks, similar bells are used for the call to daily prayer and other regular

activities.
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Nationally Designated Important Cultural Property

The bell tower is thought to have been constructed bvy the fourth Lord of Hagi Domain, Mori Yoshihiro in 1694,
when he donated a bell to Toko-ji Temple. The area of the tower is 52.21m?, with small terraces between the upper
and lower roofs, a characteristics building style of Obaku Zen Buddhism.

The bell's surface is inscribed with the name of the first monk, who was in charge of the temple, Egoku. The bell was

cast by the father and son, Kahyoe and Nobuyasu Gunji.
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Founded in 1656, Daishoin is a temple of the Rinzai School of Japanese Zen Buddhism. It is one of the
family temples of the Mori, lords of the Choshu domain (modern-day Yamaguchi Prefecture).

The Mori established Daishoin to honor Mori Hidenari (1595-1651), the head of the family during the
Mori’s relocation to Hagi. The Mori family adopted a Chinese system of burial called shobokuso that mandates separation
of the graves of the odd- and even-numbered generations. The even-numbered generations of Mori lords and their
families are buried here at Daishoin. Over 600 stone lanterns donated by vassals to show their continued loyalty fill the
graveyard. The grave of the first lord, Mori Hidenari, was moved here from Hagi Castle, and the rest of the odd-
numbered lords are buried at Tokoji, another Mori clan temple on the other side of Hagi.

Daishoin’s main hall is nationally designated as an Important Cultural Property. The hall has been restored
to ensure the preservation of its many artifacts, as well as the simple yet distinct form of Zen Buddhist architecture

which contains them.
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In addition to the graves of first lord Mori Hidenari (1595-1651) and his wife, which were moved here
from Hagi Castle, Daishoin’s cemetery contains six pairs of large graves fronted by stone fori7 gates. These graves
were made for the even-numbered generations (second, fourth, sixth, etc.) of the Mori family and their wives. The
cemetery also contains the graves of the lords’ other family members and some of the family’s attendants.

Surrounding these graves are hundreds of stone lanterns, each paid for by a Moti retainer to show their
continued devotion to their lord. The holes of the lanterns are covered with paper and lit on August 13th as part of
Obon, a Buddhist festival honoring ancestral spirits. Some of the holes are full circles, representing the sun, while

others are in the shape of crescent moons.
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Daisho-in Cemetery holds the graves of the first Hagi Domain Lord, Mori Hidenari, and the following even-numbered
generations of domain lords from the second to the twelfth generation. Their families, and those who followed them
in death also rest here. There are more than 52 graves and the total area is 5,117.30m?.

Twenty-two of the graves are surrounded by individual fences, and seven have their own torii gates. There are more
than 600 stone lanterns, one stone bridge and other stone structutes including a stone path leading up to the cemetery
and a stone gate which meets it. Manyof the lanterns and torii gates were donated by retainers of the warlords and

other associated people.
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Founded in 1656, Daishoin is a temple of the Rinzai School of Japanese Zen Buddhism and one of the
family temples of the Mori, lords of the Choshu domain (modern-day Yamaguchi Prefecture).

A large cemetery is located behind the temple within Daishoin’s grounds. In the cemetery are the graves of
Mori Hidenari (1595-1651) and the subsequent even-numbered (second, fourth, sixth, etc.) lords of the Mori clan,
surrounded by hundreds of stone lanterns. The grounds also contain a restored main hall and study building, a small

Zen garden, and a statue of the Shinto deity Akadoji—the only one of its kind in Japan.
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Akadoji, whose name means “red child,” is a Shinto deity and the son of the moon god. This wooden statue
is in excellent condition and is the only known statue of Akadoji in Japan.

The statue is exceptionally old, dating from the latter half of the Kamakura period (1185-1333). It is made
of pieces of hinoki cypress wood and its eyes are crystal. Despite representing a god from Japan’s native religious
tradition of Shinto, the statue has a distinctly Chinese design similar to statues from the Song dynasty (960—1279).
Notably, the statue’s jacket curves at the shoulders, as do the lapels. Other features of its clothing, such as the sash
around its upper abdomen, resemble styles dating from the Tang dynasty (610-907). The statue still has its original

steel crown, which is highly uncommon for pieces of such age.
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It is said that Akadoji was one of the enshrined deities of Kasuga Shrine. Ayame-no-Koyane-no-mikoto, known as a
messenger at the time of Tenson-korin (a descendent of the Sun-Goddess). There are almost no similar examples of
Akadoiji elsewhere.

This statue is 61.2 cm high, and was made by assemlbing peices of hinoki cypress wood. It is a colored statue, with
crystals used to create the eyes. It is thought to have been produced during the late Kamakura period. It is particular
interest to note that this statue contains elements of the Chinese Song dynasty style; the curved decorations on the
shoulders of the jacket, and the curled up design of the lapes show the influence of the Song dynasty. In addition,
there are few existing examples of statues in which the crown of steelwork on the head has not been lost over time,
making this statue with the original crown still intact a rare and valuable piece.

This figure is wearing Tang style clothing, with a sash around the upper abdomen. Judging from the hairstyle that is
parted to the right and left, and the very thick feel to areas such as the turned over cuffs and the clothing around the

upper abdomen, it appears to have been produced around the late Kamakura period.
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This hondo, or main hall, was originally built in the mid-seventeenth century by the second lord of the Mori
clan. It was subsequently destroyed by fire in 1747, then rebuilt in 1750 by the sixth lord of the Morti clan. As the main
building of Daishoin Temple, it is here that rituals honoring Buddhist deities are conducted.

The most highly venerated statue in this hall is a 1,200-year-old image of Kannon, the bodhisattva of
compassion. However, the largest sculpture is of Shakyamuni, the historical Buddha. Also enshrined within are objects
of ancestral worship devoted to both men and women of the Mori clan, as well as to the spirits of the twenty-six
previous abbots of Daishoin. Visible in other rooms are 270-year-old sliding door panels, painted in the fifteenth

century in the style of the Sesshu school.
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Daishoi-in is a temple of the Rinzar School constructured by the second Hagi Domain Lord, Mori Tsunahiro, as a

family temple and resting place for the first Hagi Domain Lord, Mori Hidenari. A fire in 1747 destroyed the whole

strucuture, and the building we today was reconstructed by the sixth Hagi Domain Lord, Mori Munechiro, in 1750.
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This expansive shoin, or study, was built in the late eighteenth century as a place to entertain guests of the
temple. The Mori lords used the shoin’s many rooms to meet with guests and hold tea ceremonies. The main meeting
room had a secret room behind the Daimyo’s seat, where guards could be hidden in case of an attack.

The Morti used several of the rooms at rear of the building for changing or resting before and after traveling
to the castle downstream by boat. Despite the building’s age, the tea room, first designed for the exclusive use of the

daimyo, is still in use today.
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The study are comprised of the main building with three rooms on the south side and four rooms on the north side,
the hall protruding on the west side and the protruding part on the north side with two sets of four rooms including a
tea rooms. It is estimated that the building was built in the late 18th century. It is a masterpiece of simple structure

with class.
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Shokasonjuku was originally a small private school run from the nearby home of Yoshida Shoin’s (1830—
1859) uncle, Tamaki Bunnoshin (1810-1876). Shoin was put under house arrest in 1854 after trying to sneak out of
Japan on an American ship departing from Yokohama. He was sent back to Hagi, and during his confinement Shoin
began to hold lectures in his tiny #zzami mat room. As his popularity grew, a larger schoolhouse became necessary.

In November of 1857 a small shack on his family’s estate was converted into a one-story schoolhouse. It
had a tile roof covering an eight-zatami-mat-sized room (approx. 14.6 m?). The main room’s sliding panels have been
opened so that visitors to Shoin Shrine can see the interior. A portrait of Yoshida Shoin hangs in the middle of the
room at the rear.

Even after its conversion the single room quickly became too small, and four months later Shoin and his
students worked together to expand their schoolhouse. The added three smaller rooms, a total of ten-and-a-half fatami
mats (approx. 19.1 m?. Now at eighteen-and-a-half atami mats (approx. 33.7 m?, Shokasonjuku could accommodate
twenty to thirty students at a time.

Due to the impact that Shoin’s students would have on the course of Japanese history during the Meiji period
(1868-1912), this area was inscribed as one of the “Sites of Japan’s Meiji Industrial Revolution” on the UNESCO
World Heritage List.
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The Shoka Sonjuku private school is a small wooden one-storey building with a tiled roof. Originally, the school building
consisted of one classroom with a tatami floor of 8 mats (approximately 13m?). Later, students helped to build an
extension to the building, adding an area of 10.5 mats (approximately 17m?).

Initially, Shoin Yoshida's uncle Bunnoshin Tamaki opened a private school at his home, which was not far from the
current location, and named the school shoka Sonjuku. Gorozaemon Kubo took over the school and was involved in
the education of young people.

In the fourth year of the Ansei era (1857), on November 5, 28 year-old Shoin Yoshida took over the school and
transferred it from the confined space in his uncle's house to the cutrent location, where he gave lectutes. This is the
place where Shoin spent one year with the students, until November 20 of the following year, the fifth year of the
Ansei era (1858).

The Shoka Sonjuku private school taught the youths who gathered there that, regardless of their social status, they

were Japanese who could take action with determination and pride.
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Shokasonjuku was active as a private academy from 1842 to 1892 and is regarded as one of the most
important schools in Japanese history. Of the 92 students who attended lectures over the year that Yoshida Shoin
(1830-1859) taught here, from 1857 to 1858, two became prime ministers, many became high-level bureaucrats, and
almost all contributed to the birth of modern Japan during the Meiji period (1868-1912).

The small school’s comparatively large impact was due to the leadership of Yoshida Shoin. Born in 1830 to
a samural family of the lowest rank, he grew up helping on his family’s farm. Because his family was not wealthy, young
Shoin received his education from his father as he worked alongside him. This learn-by-doing approach would come
to define his future teaching style.

In 1854, Shoin was sent home to Hagi and placed under house arrest after attempting to board one of the
“black ships” that American Commodore Matthew Perry used to intimidate the shogunate into opening Japan’s ports.
He had read of the defeat of China’s Qing dynasty in the Opium Wars, and having seen the West’s technological
superiority for himself, Shoin became convinced that in order to defend itself Japan had to modernize both
technologically and socially. Already known as a teacher in his hometown of Hagi, after his arrest he began lecturing
from his small room, and news of his revolutionary teachings spread by word of mouth.

From the Shokasonjuku Academy, Shoin taught military tactics, philosophy, history, agriculture and more; in
his teaching he drew on the intellectual traditions of Japan, China, and the West. His main goal, however, was to teach
his students how to contribute to society regardless of their social standing. Although he was eventually summoned to
Edo (Tokyo) and put to death for plotting to attack a government official in Kyoto, Shoin’s ambition and ideals carried

on through his students.
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This small #afami room in his family’s home is where Yoshida Shoin (1830—1859) was placed under house
arrest in December of 1855 after his imprisonment in both the Edo (Tokyo) Tenmacho Prison and Noyama Prison in
Hagi. He was charged with attempting to stow away on one of the “black ships” that American Commodore Matthew
Perry used to force open Japan’s ports in 1854. The Tokugawa shogunate’s strict isolationist policies forbade any travel
abroad, and Shoin’s attempt was punished with house arrest.

Despite being confined to a single room Shoin did not stop reading and writing, and at the urging of his
former students he resumed lecturing. His popularity grew, and due to the leniency of the Mori clan he was allowed to
move around on his family’s land. His lectures continued in a small shack on the property, which became the new

location of the Shokasonjuku Academy.
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This is the house where Shoin Yoshida had been arrested for several years since 1855 for having tried to go abroad.

Besides reading and writing he had taught his relatives and disciples here.
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Shoin Shrine is located on the former lands of the Sugi family on the outskirts of Hagi. Yoshida Shoin (born
Sugi Toranosuke in 1830) grew up here and taught here periodically until his execution in 1859.

The school where Shoin taught, Shokasonjuku, was restored in 1890, and a small private memorial was
erected nearby. Seventeen years later in 1907, two of his most famous students, four-time prime minister Ito Hirobumi
(1841-1909) and the diplomat and bureaucrat Nomura Yasushi (1842—1909), built Shoin Shrine behind their former
school as a monument to their teacher.

From 1936 to 1940, donations arrived from all over Japan for the construction of a brand-new shrine located
at the rear of the property. Although work lapsed during World War II, the new copper-roofed shrine was completed
in 1955. The roof was replaced in 2007 on the 100th anniversary of the shrine’s founding. The original shrine building
is now called Shomon Shrine and is still maintained on the property as a shrine for Shoin’s students.

As the shrine complex has expanded, it has come to encompass several historical buildings from the Edo
petiod, including two museums and countless landmarks to the life of Yoshida Shoin and other Meiji revolutionaries.

Approaching Shoin Shrine from the street, a large stone memorial is visible to your left. This is a monument
to the 1862 meeting of three Meiji revolutionaties—Tagami Toshichi (dates unknown) of Satsuma, now Kagoshima
Prefecture, Sakamoto Ryoma (1836—1867) of Tosa, now Kochi Prefecture, and Kusaka Genzui (1840-1864) of
Choshu, now Yamaguchi Prefecture. Their meeting took place at an inn that once stood on this site.

After passing through the shrine’s first 7077 gate, to the immediate left is another large stone memorial
commemorating the 100th anniversary of the beginning of the Meiji period, erected in 1968 and inscribed with words
written by Sato Eisaku (1901-1975), Japan’s then-prime minister, recipient of the 1974 Nobel Peace Prize, and a native
of Yamaguchi Prefecture.

Farther down the path is a large stone inscribed with a poem Yoshida Shoin wrote to his parents shortly
before his execution in 1859.

In the center of Shoin Shrine is the Shokasonjuku Academy and the old residence of the Sugi family. The
Academy is listed as a National Historic Site and is on the UNESCO World Heritage List as one of the “Sites of Japan’s
Meiji Industrial Revolution.” The Sugi residence which lies behind it is an excellent example of a lower-ranking samurai

home from the Edo period. In the Shiseikan building nearby displays many artifacts connected to Yoshida Shoin.
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Yoshida Shoin's private school, named Shokason Juku, was tebuilt in 1890. At that time a small private memorial was
made for him. Seventeen years later in 1907 two of his students, Ito Hirobumi and Nomura Yasushi decided to make
it into a public shrine. The shrine was originally dedicated to Shoin's pattiotism.

In 1936, it was decided to build a new shrine. People from all over Japan donated money. Construction was started in
1940 and completed in 1942. In 1955 the copper roof was added. In 2007 for the 100th year celebration the copper
roofing was replaced.

His methods of teaching were so good that many of his students became leaders of modern Japan. Because of this
he is respected as a great teacher and students come from all over Japan to pray for academic success at his shrine.
This was the original building of the private memorial to Yoshida Shoin built in 1890. In 1936, when they built a new
shrine, it was decided to use this building as a memorial for his students. Shomon means students who studied at the

Shokason Juku.
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The Hagi Uragami Museum was founded in 1996 by Hagi-born entrepreneur Uragami Toshiro (1926—) as

a place to share his extensive collection of ceramics and #£zyo-¢ art pieces with the public. Since its founding the museum
collection has grown from other donations and acquisitions. The museum comprises the original museum building
from 1996 and a new addition built in 2010.

The main building has six exhibition rooms: two on the first floor and four on the second. One of the first-
floor rooms is used to display a monthly exhibition of about thirty pieces from the museum’s collection of over 5,500
ukiyo-e prints arranged within a single theme. The other room is used to showcase thematic selections of Korean,
Chinese, and other Asian ceramics from the museum’s collection of around 600 pieces. Past the larger exhibition rooms
are two smaller rooms. One is a “special appreciation room” where a single exceptional #£&7yo-¢ image is displayed for a
month at a time. The room’ walls are made of cherry, the same wood used for carving #kzyo-¢ printing blocks. Next
door is a small tea room where a single artist’s work is displayed for a year. This floor also contains the gift shop,
reference cornet, lecture hall, and a small cafe. The four exhibition rooms on the second floor of the main building are
used for special exhibitions.

The museum’s new addition, the Pottery Annex, was built to provide a space devoted to ceramic art from
Hagi and the surrounding area. Inside the annex, visitors can watch videos on how Hagi ware is made and see special

exhibitions in the other rooms.
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No.29 Ukiyo-¢ at the Hagi Uragami Museum <gkr, LLOE>
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Ukiyo-e, literally “pictures of the floating world,” is a genre of Japanese painting and woodblock printing
that began in the mid-seventeenth century and remained prominent until the early twentieth century. Originally #&zyo
was a Buddhist term that referred to the transient here and now, but during the Edo period (1603-1867) the word’s
meaning grew to describe the entertainment quarters. By the middle of the seventeenth century #kiyo-¢ prints had
begun to portray the daily life of commoners, especially those who lived in and around Edo (modern Tokyo).

Ukiyo-¢ depict many different things, but many of the prints are either bzin-ga (images of beautiful women)
or yakusha-¢ (portraits of kabuki actors). These prints, which were mass-produced and could be bought relatively
cheaply, reflect the interests and values of the common people who purchased them. Prints that depicted figures like
sumo wrestlers and warriors, landscapes, and nature scenes were also popular. Prints of caricatures, fantastical scenes,
and erotic content were common as well. Creating these prints required great skill, and each print was usually made
by a team of people: one to create the painting, one to carve the boards, and one to apply the ink to the prints. Ukéyo-
¢ prints have sharp, rich colors in order to catch the eyes of potential customers.

The Hagi Uragami Museum holds a collection of approximately 5,500 #kiyo-¢ prints, and each month
around thirty of these are selected and displayed around a single theme. Included in the collection are prints from
famous artists such as Hokusai, Utamaro, Sharaku, and Hiroshige. The collection spans the history of the artform

and is a valuable resource for researchers and enthusiasts alike.
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Hagi ware is a traditional form of Japanese pottery made exclusively in Hagi, Yamaguchi Prefecture. It is
derived from the styles of Korean potters who were brought to Hagi following the Japanese military invasion of
Korea in the late sixteenth century. Hagi ware is famous in Japan as one of the three traditional types of pottery used
in tea ceremonies, the other two are Raku and Karatsu ware.

Hagi ware is made from local clay that becomes a porous, red-brown stoneware when fired. Glaze is used to
produce the distinct colors of Hagi ware, the most common of which is a milky white. The firing process is performed
across several days using a long, multilevel kiln. After the pieces are fired the kiln is left closed for several days to cool.
As the pieces inside the kiln cool, the glaze and clay contract at different speeds. During this process, the glaze often
develops hairline fractures known as crazing;

The crazing of the glaze and the porousness of the clay cause the pottery to absorb tea during its use. This
absorption will change the color of the piece over time, a process known as nanabake. Hagi ware is said to go through
as many as seven different color changes as it is used, and pieces that have changed color in this way are highly prized.
There are numerous styles and shapes of Hagi ware. Rather than being a static, unchanging craft, it is very much a

living tradition.
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No.32 Overview of the Hagi Uragami Museum <gkr, LWOE>
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The Hagi Uragami Museum was founded by Hagi-born entrepreneur Uragami Toshiro (1926—) to preserve
and share his extensive collection of ukiys-e prints and East Asian ceramics with the public. The museum comprises
two buildings: the original museum built in 1996, and the new Pottery Annex built in 2010. The main building was
designed by Kenzo Tange (1913-2005), an internationally famous Japanese architect known for designing the
Hiroshima Peace Memorial Park and Olympic arenas for the 1964 Tokyo Olympics. The Pottery Annex was built to

provide a space devoted to ceramic art from Hagi and the surrounding area.
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No.1 Kanamaruza (formerly Konpira Oshibai) <&l EBINE>
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Kanamaruza (formerly Konpira Oshibai)

Built in 1835, Kanamaruza is Japan’s oldest surviving complete kabuki theater. Konpira Daigongen (now known as
Konpira san and Konpira Shrine) became a site of national pilgrimage in the middle of the Edo period (eighteenth
century), drawing visitors to Kotohira from all over Japan. Kabuki and other forms of entertainment had been provided
for these pilgrims several times a year in a temporary playhouse. As the town developed and expanded at the base of
the shrine, Konpira Oshibai was constructed as a permanent kabuki theater to entertain the pilgrims. Renamed

Kanamaruza around 1900, it has been known affectionately by that name ever since.

Kanamaruza was registered as an Important Cultural Property in 1970. Over a four-year period beginning in 1972, it
was dismantled and reconstructed in its present location. In 2003, restoration work was begun and the theater was

restored to its original Edo-period state.

In 1984, the theater attracted the attention of the professional kabuki world. Three famous actors, Nakamura
Kichiemon II, Sawamura Tojuro 11, and Nakamura Kankuro V, visited Kanamaruza to produce a TV program about
it, which made it well known throughout Japan. They were fascinated by the theater’s unique atmosphere and traditional
design, and thus the idea to hold regular performances there was born. In late June 1985, a kabuki troupe led by
Kichiemon staged the play Saikai Zakura Misome no Kiyomizu (Reunion Among the Cherry Blossoms After the First

Meeting at Kiyomizu) and the dance drama Niwaka Jishi (Spirited Lion) at the Kanamaruza.

Since 1985, annual kabuki performances called the Shikoku Konpira Kabuki Oshibai have been held in the month of April
or May, an event that marks the arrival of spring to Shikoku island. First-rank kabuki actors come to perform, and the
audience can relish kabuki in the compact size of theater for which it was originally designed, allowing close proximity

to the stage and banamachi, and a marvelous sense of intimacy with the players.
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Theater Entrances

There were three entrances to the theater, which were all based on rank. The entrance for ordinary members of the
public was at the center of the building and is called the “mouse entrance” (nezumi kido). 1t is said that to ensure that
all guests paid to view the show, the opening was designed to be so narrow and low that only by leaning forward could

guests enter the building and then only one by one, hence the name.

Two other entrances are found at the front of the building. The goyo #ido (VIP entrance) is on the right side. The okido

(large entrance) is on the left-hand side and was for holders of expensive tickets.
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No.3 Tickets and Shoes <Bl. BINE>
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Tickets and Shoes

After entering the £7do entrance, there is a large earthen floor space. On the right there is a ticket gate, where one can
purchase tickets. On both sides of the entrance space, there are spaces for storing shoes. After stepping up into the
inner entrance (uchi kido), the footwear is hung up by the attendant and one receives a docket for them. When you

receive the numbered ticket for your shoes, you are free to go to your seat.
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No.4 Toya and Agemaku <&/l ENE>
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Toya and Agemaku

The #gya is a backstage space. It is located at the end of the hanamichz, which is a long narrow additional part of the stage
in Japanese kabuki theater, connecting the stage to the back of the theater. Actors enter the 7ya from the underground
space behind the stage and wait for their turns to come out onto the hanamichi. The #9ya is also used as an exit from the

stage, so it is a very important space.

In front of the #gya room, a curtain, called agemakn, displays the crest of the theater. The rings attached to the curtain

make a distinctive sound when the curtain is opened and closed, creating a dramatic effect.
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Hiraba, Ayumi, and Masuseki

The hiraba (lit.““level area”) is the center part of the first-floor seating. The seats are labeled from right to left in the
traditional Japanese style, using the hiragana letters i, ro, ha, ni, ho, be, to, chi, ri, nu... From the stage to the back of the
theater, the seats are numbered in Chinese character numbers from 1 to 11. The seats in this center part of the theater
are called masuseki (“squared box seats”) where up to five people can sit. The flexible seating arrangement allows
members of the audience to move and turn around freely so that they may see the main stage, the hanamichi, or the
flying players. A gentle slope upwards away from the stage ensures that the spectators can see well.

There are also boxes (sgjiki) on both sides of the theater on the first and second level.

In addition there are five walking planks (@yum:) 15 cm in width that stretch across the biraba seating area. These planks
gp 7)) g p
facilitate access to the seating areas.
The front row seating area is called kaburitsuki, which literally means “to bite into.” Here the audience can enjoy the
g > y JOY
kabuki at its most intense. Yet another name for the front row seats is the amaochi (“rain falls”), because when a lot of
b

water is used in the play the audience will get splashed upon.

X Note that there may be slight changes in the names and numbers of the seats in the Shikoku Konpira Kabuki Oshibai

performances.
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Seating: Deseki and Okuba

The box seats, which are slightly raised, are called deseks and demago seats and are to the left and the right of the hiraba
central seating area. In the past, these seats were reserved for patrons and frequent visitors to the theater. Currently,

the seats on the west side are called nishi demago seats, and the seats on the east side are called higashi deseki seats.

The oknba is a space at the back of the main hanamichi (hon banamichi) and the secondary banamichi (kari hanamichi.) The
oknba was historically a surveillance area marked off by a low fence. Attendants collected additional fees here for the
seating areas, separately from the fee paid at the entrance. The attendants also observed from here if the members of

the audience sat in their correct seats.

X Note that there may be slight changes in the names and numbers of the seats in the Shikoku Konpira Kabuki Oshibai

performances.
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Hanamichi and Kari Hanamichi

The hanamichi (lit.“flower path”) is an additional part of the stage in a Japanese kabuki theater. It is a long, raised narrow
walkway that runs to the left of the center of the main seating area from the back of the theater, through the audience,
to connect with the main stage. The walkway can be used for a variety of scenes, providing settings such as a road, the
aisle of a castle, or even the ocean. When the actors use this walkway they move right in the midst of the audience,
adding great drama and excitement to the play. The actors appear from behind the agemakn curtain. This opens with a
clattering sound made by wooden blocks to alert the audience that the actors will appear, further building up the

dramatic tension.

The walkway is 1.3 meters in width and 14 meters in length. It leads to the small waiting space called the 79y, where
the actors enter and exit. In addition to being used for characters’ entrances and exits, the hanamichi is also used

for scenes taking place apart from the main action. It is an integral part of the kabuki stage.

A kari hanamichi (secondary banamichi) runs along the right side of the theater from the back of the theater to the stage.
It is 0.8 meters in width, 14 meters in length. This sub-banamichi was originally created in the Edo period as a pathway
to the audience seats. But the players of old realized its potential dramatic effect and began using it in the kabuki plays

as a secondary banamichi. The Kanamaruza uses both hanamichi so the audience can enjoy the kabuki at its best.
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Karaido and Suppon

The karaido (lit. “dry well”) is a square opening (closed over when not in use), located at the intersection where the
main stage joins the banamichi. It disappeared from the modern theater, but it is said that it was used in the Kamigata
(Kyoto Osaka) area of Japan in the Edo period. It is connected to the underground area (#araku) and has many uses.
In addition to the actors’ entrances and exits and quick costume changes, it can also function as a well or a pond. The

Kanamaruza is the only theater that has retained this function to the present day.

The suppon hole is a “trap doot” on the banamichi, close to the stage. It is 0.8 meters long and 0.6 meters wide. In the
Kanamaruza, the trap door is moved up and down by men underneath. The name suppon (“turtle”) comes from the
fact that when the kabuki actor sticks out his head from underneath the stage, it looks like a turtle’s head craning. This

door is mainly used to introduce phantoms, ghosts, and goblins.
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Seri and Mawari Butai

The revolving stage (mawari butai) is a circular platform 7.3 meters in diameter, in the center of the stage. A circle is cut
from the center of the flooring, and there is a mechanism underneath it to turn the stage. The revolving stage can turn
360 degrees, and was first developed for Kabuki theaters. It is used for scene changes and other effects. Modern theaters

use electricity to rotate the stage, but at Kanamaruza it is still people powered.

Beneath the revolving stage is a space called #araku, with four poles and thirty-six stone footholds arranged on the
earthen floor. Pushing the poles, the movers move from one foothold to the next to rotate the central stage. Between
the stage above and its frame are wooden rollers (or roller bearings). There are twenty-six sets, each with three rollers
inside, and these are used to facilitate the rotating of the stage. In 2010, the wooden rollers were recognized as a

Mechanical Engineering Heritage by the Japan Society of Mechanical Engineers.

Within the revolving stage, there is a cutout lift or another trap door (ser7) (0.9 m x 1.9 m). This is a rectangular platform
that operates as a lift, descending into the #araku below and rising again to the stage level. The use of the ser7 is yet

another way to add dramatic tension to the play. This too is human-powered.
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Choboyuka and Hayashiba

The bayashiba is the place where the accompanying music of the kabuki is performed. It is generally located, as here, in
a small space just off-stage behind a barred window, and the players are only barely visible to the audience. At
Kanamaruza, the bayashiba is on the left side of the stage. Here the performers sing the nagauta, tokiwazn, and kiyomoto

and perform music to heighten the dramatic effects of the drama.

The naganta, literally “long song,” which dates from the Edo period, is a kind of traditional song that accompanies the
performance. It was influenced by Noh style of singing, and the shamisen and drums (#z7#0) are played to accompany
the songs. Depending on the type of play there may also be drums of varying sizes, different types of flutes, and other
instruments, as well as a myriad of devices for creating sound effects.

The choboynka is the area on the upper level on each side of the stage where the narrators (7zyx) sing the accompanying

songs.
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Naraku (Abyss or Hell)

The narakn is a generic term used to refer to the area under the stage and the hanamichi. 1t takes its name from the
Buddhist word for hell, naraku. This name relates to the fact that this dark and gloomy underground space is reminiscent

of a Buddhist hell.

It is also the place from which the various technical operations that are part of the kabuki are performed, such as
opening the lift on the circular stage, the dry well, and the suppon, and rotating the circular stage. Unlike other

contemporary kabuki theaters, everything at Kanamaruza is human-powered.

The surrounding walls are made of stone with a depth of 2.5 meters, and the ground is an earthen floor. The naraku

is located underground, so actors can move from the green room to the 7gya without being seen by audience.
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Gakuya

The gakuya is on two floors. It is here that the actors and staff prepare for the performance, not unlike the Green Room
of a Western theater. It includes the actors’ changing rooms, the musicians’ (hayashi fata) resting rooms, and a place for
the hairdresser (fokgyama) to prepare the elaborate hairstyles of the actors. The gakuya in this theater still retains the
atmosphere of the Edo period. However because actors today are much taller than they were in eatlier eras, it is difficult

for them to descend the stairs in full costume. Thus only the first floor is now in regular use.
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Second Floor

The second floor offers a commanding view of the hanamichi and the stage. It contains boxes on both sides and a
section of seating at the back. The latter is called muko sajiki (lit. “the boxes beyond”). This area is divided into three
tiers, or sections: front, middle, and rear. These sections are known by the names, “front boat” (waebune), “middle boat”

(nakabune), and “rear boat” (atobune).
Historically, there were general admission seats on the first floor, in the section called hinode next to the hanamichi on
the side away from the stage. This seating area is not divided into sections. The name hinode (“sunrise”) relates to its

location, on the east side. Hinode means “rising sun.”

* For performances of Shikoku Konpira Kabuki Oshibai, the names of the seating sections may be slightly different.
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Budodana and Kakesuji

A renovation that took place in 2003 at Kanamaruza revealed the grapevine trellis (b#dodana) and a mechanism allowing
actors to fly into the air (kakesuji). In the historic Kanamaruza, the grapevine trellis was not just above the stage itself,

but also extended over the audience seats.

The grapevine trellis is a like a net ceiling, made of five hundred long stalks of bamboo and bound in a grid pattern
with straw rope. This ceiling provides a perch from which paper snow or cherry blossoms can be scattered over the

audience. Sometimes, in darkness, tiny electric lights are flown to suggest fireflies.

The kakesuji is the mechanism that allows actors to fly into the air. It is about 17 meters long and 60 cm wide, suspended
five meters above the banamichi, extending from the stage to the ceiling above the balcony seats. The &akesuji in the
Kanamaruza is exceedingly rare, one of only a very few that survive from its time. As such it is also an important object

for research into theatrical history.

In the past, straw ropes were used, but in more modern times wires and electric motors are used instead for safety

reasons. The spectacle of an actor rising into the air never fails to excite and delight the audience.
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Akari Mado and Kaomise Chochin

In the Kanamaruza, there are windows and shutters (akari made) behind and above the balcony seats on the east and
west sides that can be opened and closed to adjust the level of brightness in the theater. There are both paper shutters
and wooden shutters, which can be arranged in different ways to achieve different lighting styles. Using the paper
lighting one can invoke natural daylight. When required by the performance, the wooden shutters can be manually

closed all at once, plunging the theater into darkness.

The kaomise chochin are lanterns with the family crests of the actors written on them. They are hung above the audience
seats. During a performance, these lanterns indicate which performers are playing and the ranks that they hold. When
audience members enter the theater, they are sure to be amazed by these lanterns, because of their large and impressive

size and striking appearance (1.2 m tall x 45 cm wide).
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Yagura

The yagnra is a small wooden and fenced lookout platform high on the outside wall of the theater. During the
performance period, drums are beaten every morning, and banners are hung from the railing displaying the crest of
the theatrical producers or the current company. In the heyday of the Konpira Kabuki Oshibai, the round crane of the

Saeki family crest (called Saek: zuru no maru) appeared on the banner.

* The image of the Saeki zuru no marn is taken from a depiction of a theater painted on a Genroku-period screen

depicting the Konpira Festival, in the collection of the Konpira Shrine Treasury.
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Kinryo no Sato

The origin of Seishu Kinryo sake dates to 1616. In that period there were several sake makers. One of these was
Tsuruhaya, followed by Haneya who changed the name of the sake to Tsurutaya. The sake stock of this sake maker
was later bought by the eighth generation Nishino Kaemon in 1789, at the end of Edo era. This was the birth of the
refined sake, Kinryo.

There were three sake storage houses in the Kotohira headquarters. One of the storage houses is called Dainiko (second
storage house), which faces the main street. It is approximately 2,916 square meters, and this was opened as Kinryo no
Sato in 1988. At the entrance to the building is a sugidama, a ball made from sprigs of Japanese cedar, traditionally

hung in the eaves of sake breweries to indicate that sake has been freshly brewed.

This traditional storage house contains the original white walls of the brewing company when it was established.
Visitors to Kinryo no Sato can learn about the original sake production and see old sake-making tools and scenes that

depict the sake-making process, while enjoying the audiovisual information provided.

We hope that you will learn about Japanese sake culture and encounter a refined sake in a relaxed atmosphere. Please

enjoy tasting the sake, too, and having a relaxing rest under the shade of a 900-year-old sacred camphor tree.
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Sacred Camphor Tree Square

Dominated by the beautiful sacred camphor tree, visitors can enjoy a relaxing time in this square, where tradition has

it that a Tengu once took a rest under the camphor tree, before returning to his home on Mount Zozu.

Sacred Camphor Tree

This huge sacred tree is said to be inhabited by a god. For centuries, it has been venerated by sake brewers. Experts
estimate that this tree has been standing since the Heian period (794—1192). Up to the Meiji period Kotohira Shrine
combined both Buddhist and Shinto worship, and people worshipped both the Buddhist god of seafaring, Konpira,
and the Tengu, a Shinto god associated with the ascetic practices of Shugendo. The Tengu were originally considered
to be disruptive demons but eventually came to be seen as protective spirits of mountains and forests. A legend
recounts that after rescuing people from misfortune, a Tengu stopped to rest at this camphor tree before returning to

Mount Zozu.

Please relax under the shade of the tree, enjoy the dappled light on a sunny day and the rustling of the leaves, and feel

at home in Konpira. Also available is a Japanese sake made by using natural yeast from the sacred tree.
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Sake Hall of History

In this lovely old building with it is original white walls, you can enjoy the atmosphere of an Edo-period sake making
brewery. The Sake Hall of History features an exhibition of the process of sake making. Walking through the hall, you
can see life-size models of craftsmen at work in the various stages of the sake-making process. Many different tools
are on display that were used in sake production during the Edo period. The exhibits include barrels, tubs, straw vats,
buckets, and other production tools.

The exhibits and videos provide detailed explanations of each step of the sake brewing process. The many sake cups
and sake containers on view illustrate the rich culture of sake in the everyday lives of the residents living at the foot of

Kotohira Shrine.
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Hall of Sake Culture

Sake has been an integral part of Japanese society since the Yayoi period (300 BCE —300 CE) and has played a deep
and important role in the development of Japanese culture. This building was originally a place for making sake, but
now it displays many different kinds of sake cups and sake vessels, as well as earthenware sake containers. Some of
these were used for religious festivals, and some were used in everyday life. From these exhibits, you will be able to get

a sense of the deep role that sake has played in Japanese culture and in the lives of the Japanese.
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Sanshukan

The Sanshukan faces onto the main pilgrimage street and was originally a shop for selling sake to the many pilgrims
that passed by. In the heyday of worship, when pilgrims gathered from all over Japan, the area in front of the Sanshukan
would always have been very lively. These days the Sanshukan is a place for introducing the ancient and historic sake
culture. An informational guide map and a video introducing the Hall of Sake History and the Hall of Sake Culture
are also on show. We hope that you will view this space as a place to foster the culture of sake in everyday life.

There is also an enormous bottle of sake on display that holds the equivalent of 670 1.8 liter bottles of sake. Please

feel free to take a commemorative photo here.
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Kotohira Town Public Hall

The Kotohira-cho Public Hall, constructed in 1934, is built in the traditional Japanese architectural style of irimoya, a
style common in many East Asian countries. This style features a roof that slopes down on all four sides with a gable
that is integrated on two opposing sides. It is usually constructed with two large sloping roof sections in the front and
back respectively, while each of the two sides is normally constructed with a smaller roof section. This style is still in
wide use in Buddhist temples and Shinto shrines in Japan, and also in palaces, castles, and residential dwellings. In the

case of dwellings for common people, as in this case, the style is called moya-zukur:.

The earliest examples of this style can be found in Jomon-period architecture (approx. 14,000-300 BCE), and it is
employed in many of the famous buildings of Japan. The gables that stretch out over the sides of the building are the

most recognizable feature of this architectural style.

The Kotohira-cho Public Hall is a wooden structure, featuring a massive gabled roof with shingles, an entryway wing
for VIPs, and a main wing with Japanese-style rooms. The beautiful wood-shingled roof has an ancient history in Japan
dating back to the seventh century. The hall includes a large theater space that can accommodate three hundred guests.
Concerts and other community events are held on a regular basis here and in the garden, where one can also enjoy the

changing scenery of the four seasons.
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Nakayama Rural Kabuki

Nakayama Rural Kabuki is a traditional kabuki theater of Shodoshima Island, dating from the Edo period (1603~
1868), that was petformed as an offering to the local Kasuga Shrine. It is said that the island landlotds, after praying
at the Ise Shrine and while waiting for good seafaring weather, enjoyed kabuki in the Kamigata area (Kyoto and Osaka)
so much they brought it back home. What makes the kabuki here unique is that, unlike professional kabuki
performances, the actors, narrators (gidays), makeup artists, and stage carpenters are all local residents.

The stage of Nakayama Kabuki is set in a traditional thatched-roof Japanese house, equipped with several kabuki
theater devices.

Nakayama Rural Kabuki was designated as a Kagawa Prefecture Intangible Folk Cultural Property in 1975, and its stage
was registered as a National Tangible Folk Cultural Property in 1987.
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Hitoyama Rural Kabuki

It is said that Hitoyama Kabuki got its start in 1686, when a small shack was first built here for theatrical performances
to celebrate the completion of Kaeruga ike, a pond that was constructed to overcome a water shortage. Since that time,
many kabuki performances have been offered up to the Hachiman Shrine, where the theater is located. The building is

a representative example of a Shikoku stage.

The current stage was built in 1900, as a slightly larger version of a previous building that was destroyed by a typhoon
four years earlier. The theater has all the characteristic features of a kabuki house: hanamichi, revolving stage, lift, the

abyss (naraku), grapevine trellis (budodana), ceiling, dressing room, green room, head actor’s and dressing room.
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Higashitani Rural Kabuki

Kabuki is a traditional pursuit of the Higashitani area of Kagawa-cho in the city of Takamatsu. People say Shitaya
Kabuki got its start in the Bunsei era (1818—1830), when young people who came to Tokushima to work as indigo
dyers started putting on plays to honor the local Shinto gods. When this early form of kabuki was in its heyday, everyone

in the area was involved, and there was practically no one who did not appear on a kabuki stage at some point.

With the support of the local populace, in 2001 the newly named Gion-za Noson Kabuki Theater was formed on the
grounds of Hirao Hachiman Shrine. Regular performances are held in May each year and occasionally at other times

as well.

In 1963, the Kagawacho Cultural Property Preservation Association Kabuki Division was formed, and in 1965 Kagawa

Prefecture recognized Higashitani Noson Kabuki as an Intangible Folk Cultural Property.
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Lion Dance

The lion dance originally came from China but has been performed in Japan for over a thousand years. Performers
wear lion costumes and mimic the movements of a lion in a dance that banishes evil and brings in good luck and
fortune. Lion dances are performed throughout Japan at festivals and for celebrations, and there are said to be some

8,000 varieties in Japan. Of these, over 1,200 distinct varieties of lion dance are performed in Kagawa Prefecture alone.

The lion dances of Kagawa are unlike those performed elsewhere. While many lion dance masks are made of wood,
most of the masks in Kagawa are made of paper. The ears stand straight up, the eyes roll around, and the mouths have
sharp teeth. In Kagawa, the bells used to accompany the lion dance are big, over thirty centimeters tall. The lion dance
is one of the liveliest performances of autumn festivals in Kagawa Prefecture, and with over a thousand variations of

the dance to enjoy, you will never get bored.

We hope you have a chance to see several, so you can compare the differences, and come to know the fascination of

the lion dance.

For more information please see: https://shishimaiouendan.com
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Sanuki Udon

Nowhere is udon more popular than Kagawa Prefecture, where the per-capita consumption is said to be greater than

anywhere else in Japan. Kagawa is famous for its own distinct udon, known as “Sanuki udon.” Sanuki is the Edo-

period name for what is now Kagawa Prefecture, and for hundreds of years udon has been a mainstay of the Kagawa

diet. Since the Edo period, Kagawa has become famous for the delicious taste of its udon noodles.

Kagawa has long been famous for its udon. Several factors contributed to the making of delicious udon. Kagawa has
long been famous for good-quality flour, and a rich supply of the 7ko dried sardines used to make the distinctive
Kagawa udon broth. Additionally, because of the low rainfall there was a vibrant salt-making industry, and salt is
important ingredient in udon.

Also the island of Shodoshima has long been famous for making delicious shoyu used for the broth. A special feature
of Sanuki udon comes from the pounding of the dough with one’s feet, which makes its glutinous quality even more

elastic and chewy.

Throughout the year the people of Kagawa eat great quantities of udon noodle dishes, typically prepared from top-

quality wheat, salt, soy sauce, and a delicious broth (dashi) made with the small dried fish known locally as iriko, (katakuchi

iwashi). Kagawa Prefecture is the birthplace of self-service udon known as “self udon,” where diners decide for

themselves what to add to their udon, and Kagawa is also famous for the great variety of udon dishes it serves.

Here is a list of some types of udon noodles to try:

Kake

Udon noodles with a light broth, minced scallions, and sometimes tempura flakes.

Kzjoyu

Udon with just little soy sauce added. Sometimes seasoned soy sauce is used, with Japanese condiments or




other flavorings added.

Bukkake

One of the most distinctive of Kagawa udon dishes, it is served with a smaller amount of heavier broth.

Yudame

In yudame udon, the noodles are cooked until they are done, then quenched in cold water, and then heated

once more. The diner dips the noodles in broth before eating.

Shippoku
This is udon in a sweetened broth with meat or perhaps also vegetables. Home cooks generally add taro (safo-

imo), carrots, Japanese radish (daikon), or fried rofu, while in restaurants it is often served with tempura or

chikua fish paste.

Kama-age
This udon is eaten piping hot, taken straight from the pot and served without rinsing. It tastes a little

undercooked and has a slightly sticky texture.

Kama-tama

For this dish, egg, broth, Japanese condiments and perhaps soy sauce are added to kama-age in a bowl.
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Nakano Udon School in Kagawa Japan

Let’s Make Sanuki udon

Making udon is a truly fun experience, and you will be surprised at how simple udon is to make. In Kagawa Prefecture,
there are many places that provide lessons. You will learn everything from the amount of wheat flour you will need to
make udon for five people to the correct ratios of salt and water for each season—the most salt is required in summer

and the least in winter.

After learning the ingredients, you are ready to start making your first batch of udon. You will have fun mixing the
ingredients, and then flattening them with your feet to music, letting the dough rest, and finally rolling it and cutting it

into long thin strips.

And at the end of your experience, the udon you made will be cooked and served to you so can taste your own

homemade udon. Finally you get a package of your own homemade dough to bring home for your loved ones.
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Wasanbon: Making Fine-Grained Japanese Sugar Confections

For over two hundred years wasanbon have been produced mainly in the eastern part of Shikoku, in Kagawa and
Tokushima Prefectures. The sugar is of the finest quality, made from crystallized sugar cane mixed with just the right
amount of water to create these finely textured high-quality sweets. The name wasanbon relates to the fact that the sugar
is ground three times on a board. Only the finest sugar is used. In the past, the method for making this sugar was a

closely guarded secret.

Please take the opportunity to create these delightful candies. First mix the sugar. Then press the mixture into the
wooden molds. Finally turn the pressed sugar onto the board. The sweets are so easy to make that anyone can do it.

These candies reflect the beauty of the four seasons and an artistic appreciation of nature.

The wooden molds that are such an important part of the candy-making process are all made by one man, Yoshihiro

Ichihara, the only practitioner of this traditional woodworking art in all Shikoku.
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Enjoying Kagawa’s Wonderful Onsen

Since the Edo period, Kotohira has been known for providing accommodations for pilgrims visiting the nearby shrines
and temples. Korin Chikakane used to operate a hotel in Kotohira, but in 1997 he created a hot spring resort by digging
a well, tapping into this area’s natural hot springs to supply the naturally hot water to local hotels. There are now sixteen
inns in the Kotohira Hot Springs area that use this water, stretching from the banks of the Kanakuragawa to the area
near Konpira Shrine. Bathers have a choice of a variety of waters. Some of the baths are rich in sodium and calcium
salts, while others have table salt and carbonic acid, or mild radioactivity. Some are effective against neuralgia, while

others are good for gout. Pick the bath that is best for you! The Kotohira Hot Springs Festival takes place once a year.
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Marugame Uchiwa

Marugame #chiwa (fans) date back to eatly in the Edo period, when these distinctive fans were first made as souvenirs
for pilgrims who came to Konpira Shrine. They typically had the character for “gold” inscribed on them, which is the
first Chinese character in the name of Konpira Shrine. The stamping of the gold mark on the fan was both a reminder

of the name of the place one had visited and also seen as bringing good fortune to the receiver.

Marugame #echiwa now account for 90% of all fans produced in Japan, and over one billion are made each year. In 1997

the Japanese government officially recognized them as traditional craft products.

The process of making them is complex, with forty-seven separate steps involved, and the craftsmen mostly perform
these by hand. Throughout the history of making the fans, many distinctive shapes were invented, not only for the
purpose of cooling oneself in the summer but also for cooling food, starting fires, swatting insects, and as fashion

statements and decorations. This tradition continues to evolve today, connecting the past with the present.

Please see the Marugame Uchiwa website for further information on these lovely fans. You can design your own fan

in a fan-making experience. For details, visit the website: https://marugameuchiwa.jp
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Olive Beef

Olive farming first came to Japan in 1908, when the Ministry of Agriculture and Commerce imported seedlings from
America to be grown on an experimental basis in Mie, Kagawa, and Kagoshima Prefectures. Only those grown on
Shodshima Island in Kagawa flourished successfully, and the olive tree became the official tree and flower of Kagawa.
The history of raising cattle for beef dates back seven hundred years in Sanuki, the old name for Kagawa. And in the
Meiji period, Kagawa was the first prefecture to raise Japanese beef commercially, known as Sanuki wagyu (Japanese

beef from Sanuki). This dish soon became very popular throughout Japan.

Now the Sanuki #shi are fed on the lees that remain after the olives are pressed for oil. Japanese black cattle from
Kagawa, known as Sanuki #sh7, that are raised for at least two months on this feed are referred to as “olive cattle.” The
olive lees contain a lot of oleic acid, which prevents the meat from oxidizing and also makes it tender and flavorful.
Oleic acid is also very healthy. Olive cattle have been awarded many major prizes in Japan, including a special prize for

the quality of the fat, and interest in them is growing rapidly abroad.

Please see the Olive Beef official website for further information about olive beef : http://www.olive-

wagyu.com/profile
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Kabuki

Kabuki is a classical Japanese drama that involves dance and music. It dates to 1603 and developed fully in the Genroku
petiod (1688—1704). Kabuki was originally performed by women, but they were banned from appearing on the stage

in 1629, and since then all the roles have been played by male actors. The female role specialists are called o#nagata.

Kabuki was the most popular performing art in the Edo period, although the Tokugawa government periodically
attempted to ban in order to keep it under control. It continued to attract audiences in the Meiji period as well. Kabuki
declined for a while after the Second World War, but these days it is the most popular of the traditional styles of
Japanese drama, and its stars are household names who often appear on TV, and also in movies and advertisements.
Bando Tamasaburo is one such famous onnagata. Kabuki has greatly influenced Japanese culture and also appears in
various forms of pop culture, such as anime. Indeed, it is seen by some as one of the most significant sources of pop

culture in Japan.

There are several types of plays: history plays, contemporary plays, and dance pieces. History plays (jidaimono) often
depicted real events in Japanese history but changed the setting to another period to avoid the censorship of the
Tokugawa government. Contemporary or domestic stories (sewamono) often feature family drama and romance, and

some of the most famous are about love suicides. In addition, there are some delightful dance pieces.

Kabuki is famous for the stylization of its drama and for the elaborate costumes and makeup of the actors. Kabuki
theaters are also celebrated for their many unique features, such as the banamichi, the walkway that extends into the
audience and is used not only for dramatic entrances and exits but also to enact important scenes of the play. A variety
of other devices also serve to enhance the performance, such as trap doors with differing functions and a revolving

stage.

These devices are especially important in kabuki because the plays often involve a sudden and dramatic revelation or
the transformation of a character. The banamichi and trap doors atre a highly effective means of creating the necessary
drama for such revelations. Stage effects, including the actors’ rapid appearance and disappearance, employ these

devices too. The plays sometimes involve flying scenes as well, in which the actor moves about in the air above the

audience, and this is one of the most popular stunts in Kabuki today. All these devices can be seen at the Kanamaruza,




which is the only kabuki theater where a complete tour is possible.

In 2008, kabuki was inscribed in the UNESCO Representative List of the Intangible Cultural Heritage of Humanity.
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